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situation of consolidated, together with the description of principal risks and uncertainties encountered.

General Manager of AB Kauno Energija Rimantas Bakas
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1. Reporting period of the Consolidated Annual Report

Reporting period, for which the Consolidated Annual Report of AB Kauno Energija was prepared, is the year
2013.

2. Companies composing the group of companies and their contact details

AB Kauno Energija (hereinafter referred to as the Company or the Issuer) prepares both the Company‘s and
the consolidated financial statements. The group (hereinafter referred to as the Group) consists of AB Kauno
Energija and its subsidiary undertaking UAB Pastaty Priezitiros Paslaugos and UAB Kauno Energija NT, in
which the Issuer directly controls 100 per cent of shares.

Main details of the Company:

Name of the Company:
Legal-organizational form:
Headquarters address
Code of legal entity:
Telephone

Fax

E-mail:

Webpage

Registration date and place
Register manager

VAT payer code

Open Limited Liability Company Kauno Energija
Open Limited Liability Company

Raudondvario pl. 84, 47179 Kaunas

235014830

(8 37) 305 650

(8 37) 305 622

info@kaunoenergija.lt

www.kaunoenergija.lt

22 August 1997, Kaunas, Order No 513

Kaunas Branch of State Enterprise Centre of Registers
LT350148314

Main information about the subsidiaries:

Company name
Legal-organizational form
Status of legal entity
Headquarters address
Code of legal entity
Telephone

E-mail

Webpage

Fax

Registration date and place
Register manager

VAT payer code

Company name
Legal-organizational form
Headquarters address
Code of legal entity
Telephone

E-mail

Registration date and place
Register manager

Private Limited Liability Company Pastaty Priezitiros Paslaugos
Private Limited Liability Company

In liquidation

Savanoriy pr. 347, 49423 Kaunas

300580563

(8 37) 305 959

info@kaunoenergija.lt

www.p-p-p.lt

(8 37) 311 877

1 July 2006, Kaunas

Kaunas Branch of State Enterprise Centre of Registers
LT100002506015

Private Limited Liability Company Kauno Energija NT
Private Limited Liability Company

Savanoriy pr. 347, 49423 Kaunas

303042623

(8 37) 305 693

kent@kaunoenergija.lt

16 April 2013, Kaunas

Kaunas Branch of State Enterprise Centre of Registers

3. Nature of core activities of the companies composing the group of companies

The nature of core activities of the Group is manufacture and delivery services. The Company is the parent
company of the Group. The Company generates and distributes heat to consumers in the city of Kaunas and
town of Jurbarkas and in Kaunas district (Akademija town, EZerélis, Domeikava village, Garliava, Girionys
village, Neveronys village, Raudondvaris village), (hereinafter referred to as Kaunas district).

After amendment of provisions of the Law on Heat Sector, from 1 May 2010 the Company supplies hot
water (is engaged in hot domestic water supplier activities) for part of residential apartment buildings in the
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city of Kaunas and town of Jurbarkas and Kaunas district (hereinafter the supplies of heat and hot domestic
water are referred to as heat, with the exception of information provided in Table 3 “Comparison of financial
indicators of 2013 with indicators of 2011-2012”) to consumers who chose the Company as a hot water
supplier according to legislation. As of 31 December 2013, the Company was a hot water supplier for 320
houses in Kaunas, 5 in Kaunas district and 5 in Jurbarkas. Income from hot water supplies amounts to
approximately 2.7 per cent of all of Company’s sales revenue.

In addition, the Company produces electric energy in small quantities in Kaunas city and Kaunas district and
steam in Kaunas city, maintains engineering structures (collectors — manifolds), and operates heat and
electricity production sources. The Group and the Company carries out a supervision of indoor heat and hot
water supply systems, maintenance of heat unit equipment, repairs of buildings and constructions, repairs of
heat units and other heating equipment, provides rental services of transport and premises, and other services
to individuals and legal entities in relation to the supervision and maintenance of heat economy. The Group
and the Company are engaged in licensed activity in accordance with the licenses held.

4. TIssuer‘s agreements with finance broker companies and (or) credit institutions
On 1 April 2003 the Issuer signed the Service Agreement with AB SEB Bankas (company code 112021238,
Gedimino pr. 12, Vilnius), represented by the Finance Markets Department.

5. Trade in securities of companies composing the group of companies in regulated markets (name
of regulated market, amount of securities in trade)

As of 31 December 2013, the 20,031,977 (twenty million thirty one thousand nine hundred seventy seven) of
the Issuer‘s ordinary registered shares (VP ISIN code LT0000123010) with the total nominal value equal to
LTL 120,191,862 (one hundred and twenty million one hundred ninety one thousand eight hundred sixty two
litas) were listed in the secondary trade list of NASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange Baltic. The
beginning of listing of the Company’s shares is 28 December 1998.

6. Objective overview of the condition, performance and development of the group of companies,
and description of exposure to key risks and uncertainties

6.1. Company*s condition, performance and development overview

The Company covers a major part of heat supply market in the city of Kaunas and the town of Jurbarkas and
part of Kaunas district. A total of 3,341 businesses, organizations, and 114,533 of domestic users, in
total 117,874 users (objects by addresses) connected to the Company's integrated heating and local
area networks on 31 December 2013. The total of 12 new consumers connected to the Company’s heat
supply network in 2013, with the total installed capacity of 2.817 MW. Distribution in the number of
consumers by groups is shown in Chart 1.

Chart 1

Distribution of the number of heat consumers of the
company by groups
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The vision of the Group and the Company is to be a modern, effective, competitive, and added value creating
group of companies engaged in heat and electric energy generation, supply and distribution and in
maintenance of buildings and indoor heating and hot water supply systems, and property lease. Maintenance
of buildings and indoor heating and hot water supply systems are performed following the provisions of
Acrticle 20 of the Law on Heat Sector of the Republic of Lithuania.

Values of the Group and the Company:

o 50 years of experience in heat production and supplies business;

e responsibility against consumers for fail-safe heat and hot water supplies and for quality
maintenance of buildings and of heating and hot water supplies systems at the lowest cost;

e high qualifications of employees, enabling to reach a highest rates of efficiency;

e ability to implement latest scientific achievements in the activities of the Group and the Company;

o close cooperation with state and municipal institutions, universities, research institutions and with
academic institutions;

¢ ability to participate in development and implementation of scientific programs;

e reputation of a reliable, modern and solid group of companies.

Strategic goals of the Group and the Company:

e to reduce the costs of heat generation, supply, delivery of services and management in order to
reduce competition in the heat production sector, reduce the final value of centrally supplied heat and
hot water for customers;

o to fulfil all measures indicated in investment plans until the end of the year 2015 in order to ensure
fail-safe heat supplies for customers and reduction of its costs ;

e to expand the use of renewable energy sources in the Company’s heat production facilities in order
to reduce the cost of heat production and fulfil the requirement of Directive 2009/28/EB to produce
not less than 23 per cent of heat from renewable energy sources in Lithuanian by 2020;

¢ to expand the competition in the heat generation sector;

e to expand the current position of the Group companies in the market.

The Company continued its activities in the first half of the year 2013 following the strategic guidelines of
Kaunas city central heat supplies, approved by decision No T-236 of Kaunas City Council of 7 April 2011
“On the strategic guidelines of Kaunas city central heat supply” and following the Strategy of Kaunas city
central heat supplies accepted by decision No T-626 of Kaunas City Council of 14 November 2012 “On the
approval of Strategy of Kaunas city central heat supplies”.

In preparing development guidelines, the Company also takes into account the AB Kauno Energija strategy
for the heating system development for the years 2007-2020 developed by the Lithuanian Energy Institute.
The Company continues to carry out the trunk pipeline replacement projects co-financed by the European
Union structural funds, to optimize pipeline diameters, connect new customers to the district heating network
and modernise the sources of heat production. With the start of a new period of the basic heat price approved
by the Prices and Energy Control Commission (for the year 2013-2016), and changes in the regulating
environment, in order to reduce the heat production costs, heat price to consumers, the Company refocused
its activity development guidelines and intents to spend most part of investments to the development and
modernisation of new heat generating sources from renewable energy resources.

In 2013 the Group's net profit amounted to 3,019 thousand litas, the Company's profit — 1,858 thousand litas.
Group’s operating income amounted to 322,363 thousand litas, the Company's — 322,338 thousand litas.
Majority of revenue were generated from the sales of heat: Group’s — 98.62 per cent, Company’s — 98.62
per cent (Heat and hot water without the cost of cold water).

The Company’s income from sales of heat amounted to 317,901 thousand litas and increased by 2012 per
cent compared to the first half of the year 2012 (Chart 2). In 2013, the Company's variable cost in thermal
operations (fuel, purchased heat, water and electricity technology) was 13.22 per cent lower (39.5 million
litas) compared with 2012. More information is given in section 7.
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Chart 2
Company's heat sales revenue for 2009-2013, million litas
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Company’s investments in latest technologies (reconstruction of heat production sources, equipping them
with, misers, automation of boiler-houses of isolated and integrated networks, e-service system for
customers, system of data transfer and processing from remote heat meters, modern customer servicing
system based on the ‘One Call’ principle), reconstruction of heat supply networks helps the Company to
reduce heat supply losses, quickly adapt to changes in the market and to become an innovative company of
heat and hot water supply, maintenance of heating networks and generation sources in the city of Kaunas and
the town of Jurbarkas and in Kaunas district.

As the regulation settings have changed and as the National Control Commission for Prices and Energy
(hereinafter the Commission) determined new constituency of the Company’s heat price for the first year of
validity of the base prices on 24 January 2013, the Company prepared and continued to implement the new
projects of modernization of heat production sources of Kaunas city integrated network and EZerélis and
Noreikiskés boiler-houses. The main projects: installation of new gas burning boilers, condensers
(economizers) in existing heat production sources and development of bio-fuel burning projects.

Amendments to the Law on Heat Sector of the Republic of Lithuania and changes in NCC’s regulation
allowed favourable conditions to invest to construction and reconstruction of heat production sources, thus
increasing competition in heat production sector and effectively reducing heat price for consumers.

On 24 January 2013 the National Control Commission for Prices and Energy (hereinafter the Commission)
determined in its decision ex-parte lower components of the Company’s heat price for the first year of
validity of the base price. In cooperation with the Commission, the project of base heat price components
submitted by the Company was corrected by determining lower expense value for repairs, wage and interests
to banks for borrowing the working capital. This Commission's decision was made after the assessment of
the good Company’s heat supply performance indicators and an increase in operational profit. New heat
price components were applied from 1 March 2013. Hot water price constituents were agreed with the
Commission by decision No 03-44 of 22 February 2013 and were started to apply from 1 March 2013.

In carrying out the aforementioned Commission's decision on cost reduction for wage, the Company‘s
Management Board in its decision No 2013-4-2 of 21 February 2013 approved a new management structure
in order to reduce the number of employees and the wage fund, which came into force on 1 July 2013.

A new constant heat price constituent went down from 4.91 ct/kWh to 4.23 ct/kWh, i. e. by 13.8 per cent
(LTL 10 million) due to the reduced expenses for repairs, wage and interests. A comparison of the constant
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heat price constituent and valid until 28 February 2013 and of a new constituent effective from 1 March 2013
is presented in Chart 3.

Chart 3
Comparison of constant heat price components
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The Company makes investments in accordance with the Company's revised investment plan for 2012-2015,
which was approved by decision No T-60 of Kaunas City Council of 6 February 2014 “On the revised
investment plan of AB Kauno Energija for 2012-2015.” Over the period of 2012-2015, the planned
investments in the Company's assets should be 188.04 million litas.

During the first half of the year 2013 the Company invested 44.718 million litas (funds from other sources,
among them, i.e. 23.825 million litas are loans of commercial banks, 7.397 million litas is financial support
from the European Union Structural Funds, from which 12 million litas was allocated to connect 12 new
consumers to the central heat supply networks with a summary power of 2,817 MW. The Company also laid
0.893 km of new heat supply networks and reconstructed and repaired 4.789 km of heat supply networks.
Company's investments by funding sources for 2012-2013 are shown in Chart 4.

Chart 4
Utilisation of investment by sources of funding, million litas
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The change of investment uptake of the Issuer during 2009-2013 reflects changes in the amount of
investment and macro-economic processes in the country and in the European Union: In 2009, the
investment performance was 20.634 million litas, and the volumes of used investments in 2010 amounted to
30.242 million litas. In 2011, the investment volumes compared to 2010 increased by 16.4 per cent. In 2012,
compared to 2011, investment volumes changed insignificantly and amounted to 30.661 million litas, while
the Company’s investments in equity in 2013, compared with 2012, increased by 45.85 per cent. Such
growth of investment volume is due to the effective operations of the Company, partial investment funding
from the European Union structural funds and the Lithuanian Environmental Investment Fund, improved
lending conditions (interest rate stabilization), the country's economic recovery from the recession and
optimistic expectations.

In 2013 the Company conducted new projects of generation source and network modernization:

() In Silkas boiler unit it installed a reserve fuel facility and reconstructed the steam boiler DKVR
10/13 to adapt it to operate on biofuel, and built a new gas boiler and flue condensing economizer in
this boiler station (the project value is 5.239 million litas, the project preparatory work began in
2011). The Company built a modern new 15 MW gas fired hot water boiler, together with process
control instrumentation and automation and electrical equipment (the project value is 1.908 million
litas, work on the project began in 2013);

(i)  According to the pollution reduction program for higher efficiency of heat production process
supported by the Lithuanian Environmental Investment Fund (hereinafter the LEIF) in Pergalé
boiler station in 2012, the Company installed the smoke condensing economizer and in 2013
installed a new 18 MW hot water boiler, connecting it to the existing economizer (value of these
projects is 3.64 million litas);

(ili)  according to the special programme of climate change “Installation of biofuel boilers from 500 kW
to 5 MW for district heating supply in municipalities with a total population of no more than
100 thousand” co-financed by the LEIF the Company performed Noreikiskés boiler station
reconstruction, installing a biofuel-powered 4 MW hot water boiler (project value 6.58 million litas)
and Ezerélis boiler reconstruction, installation of biofuel- fired 3.5 MW hot water boiler (project
value 4.63 million litas; applications were submitted in 2011);

(iv)  “Modernization of Kaunas integrated network Aukstieji Sangiai line (2Z) (district heating pipeline
from SK 2Z-11 to SK 27-15 and from SK 2Z-26 to SK 2Z-29, Kaunas)” (project value 4.64 million
litas). This project received the funding of 1.617 million litas according to order No 4-160 of the
Minister of Economy of the Republic of Lithuania of 29 March 2011 according to the facility VP2-
4.2-UM-02-K ,,Modernisation and development of heat supply system* (applied in 2010);

(v)  “Reconstruction of Kaunas integrated network Vilijampolé heat supply networks (9K) from Inkaras
boiler station to Silainiai neighbourhood” (project value 2.13 million litas). The funding of 0.595
million litas was granted for this project also according to the same order No 4-160 of the Minister
of Economy of the Republic of Lithuania of 29 March 2011 according to the facility VP2-4.2-UM-
02-K ,,Modernisation and development of heat supply system* (applied in 2010);

To quickly and effectively assess the condition of pipelines and identify the most problem areas, at night of
22 April 2015 the Company applied the modern aerial aerothermography technology to check the condition
of heat supply networks and their insulation, recorded cases of potential unauthorized access. This method
has proved useful as the assessment of technical condition of the district heating network (hereinafter the
DH) in determining priorities of renovation and investment planning. The use of aero mapping allows an
objective comparison of information on underground piping insulation quality and allows making accurate
investment decisions. The information obtained helps to better identify the worst and the least secure
network points and to adjust network renovation plans accordingly. It also enables to identify leaking areas
of underground networks, to check (specify) the locations and configuration of the underground pipelines.
More accurate spatial information saves operator costs and reduces the third party pipeline emergency
damage risks. Specialists conducted a rapid (express) diagnostics, including the analysis of thermal maps,
and identified underground district heating network areas showing the signs of drain (leakage). After the
flight the Company carried out the underground piping analysis and classification according to the released
heat. Each pipeline segment has been estimated. The entire test area was about 100 km2.
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On 20 January 2013, the Company became a participant of the Natural Gas Exchange. Upon launching the
gas exchange, the Company has gained more flexibility in acquiring the shortage or selling excess quantities
and performing contractual obligations to gas suppliers. Participation in the Natural Gas Exchange enables
companies to immediately know exactly what the price of the purchased natural gas is, to avoid the “take-or-
pay” treatment and balance the amount of natural gas. Natural Gas Exchange participants are natural or legal
persons — the natural gas market participants (i.e., natural gas consumers, supply companies, transmission
system operators and distribution system operators, storage system operators and LNG system operators)
which have a valid contract with the transmission system operator, providing the balancing rules.

6.2. Description of exposure to key risks and uncertainties we confront with and their impact on
Company’s results

External risk factors affecting the Company's core business: inflation, increase of oil prices, ever-changing
legal environment, as well as the heat production pricing policies.

The Company, in order to operate effectively and reliably, in creating the added value for shareholders, is
faced with specific threats to the sphere of its activity, but also takes advantage of opportunities to work
efficiently and effectively by exploiting the available potential. One of the biggest threats that the Company
may face is a relatively high price for heat purchased from independent manufacturers of heat, which is
regulated in the Description of procedure for purchase of heat from independent suppliers of heat. In 2003
Kaunas power plant formerly owned by the Company was sold to UAB Kauno Termofikacijos Elektriné. It
is the main, most modern and the newest source in Kaunas, the facility producing heat in co-generation mode
with the lowest natural gas price (buying it from the main gas pipeline). UAB Kauno Termofikacijos
Elektriné failing to provide the investments specified in the agreement on the purchase of Kaunas power
plant (Investment Agreement), with the rapid development of independent heat producers in the city of
Kaunas, the main competition of the sale and purchase of heat is occurring in the high-price area. In turn, the
Company invests extensively in modernization and construction of its own manufacturing sources, to reduce
the comparative costs of heat production. Thus it takes advantage of the regulatory environment and reduces
the energy purchase price.

In 2013, the Company bought heat of 5 independent heat producers in the city and district of Kaunas:
UAB Kauno Termofikacijos Elektriné, UAB GECO Kaunas, UAB Lorizon energy, UAB Ekoresursai and
UAB ENG. Total purchases were 1,174.4 thousand MWh of heat, i.e. 81.6 per cent of heat is applied to the
network (in 2012 the indicator was 86.9 per cent).

Natural gas was the Company's main fuel used for heat and electricity production in 2013 (85.41 per cent, in
2012 — 92.43 per cent). Changing fuel prices affect the price of the Company's combined heat and power
production and the heat purchased from UAB Kauno Termofikacijos Elektriné which in 2013 was the
dominant source of production (heat purchased from UAB Kauno Termofikacijos Elektriné amounted to
79.8 per cent of the total purchased heat).

Economic factors: The Company is a major supplier of the heat produced centrally to the town of Jurbarkas
and the city of Kaunas, and part of Kaunas district. In order to maintain this, it is necessary to adapt to the
changing heat supply conditions and continue the implementation of modern and efficient technologies in the
production of heat, to focus on the reliable supply at the lowest cost, benefiting from private differences of
different types of fuel and delivery of quality service to consumers.

The Company’s sales of heat are directly dependent on heat demand, i.e. heat consumption, which is mostly
affected by the average outdoor air temperature, the amount of investment of consumers in energy-saving
and rational use of heat and the pace of development of the heat sales.
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Dynamics of consumer connection and disconnection from the centralized heat supply network is presented
in Table 1.

Table 1
Powerin  Powerin Powerin  Power in oA Power in
2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013. MW 2009-2013,
MW MW MW MW ' MW
Consumer 1.95 1.10 3.183 2.242 4.813 13.288
disconnections
Consumer connections 1.29 10.14 2.02 8.022 2.817 24.289

A total 12 new customers were connected to the Company's heat supply networks during 2013 including new
shopping centres in Siaurés prospektas and T.Masiulio g. 16E, a residential apartment building developed by
UAB YIT Kausta biistas, an office building at V. Krévés prospektas, catering premises at Vilniaus g. The
total installed thermal power of these four customers alone is in excess of 2.15 MW. The total installed
capacity of the facilities connected to the DH over the year is more than 2.8 MW. The list of newly
connected users is given in Table 2.

Table 2
No Heat user’s name Address Power, MW Heated area, m?
. . Pilies takas 1,
1 UAB Via Baltika dvaras, Raudondvaris, Kaunas 0.075000 556.14
conservatory distri
Istrict
2 | UAB Hes-Pro Vilnius A. BarSausko g. 66D, 0.078000 27153
Kaunas
3 | UAB Kauno saulétekis Siaurés pr. 8D, Kaunas 0.928000 5,294.00
4 UAB Lanlgera,. T. Masiulio g. 16E, 0416000 3.134.40
Maxima shopping centre Kaunas
5 | UAB YIT Kausta bustas, Birzisky g. 1E, Kaunas 0.405000 2,504.41
apartment house
6 | UAB Homes in the Wood V. Kréves pr. 120A, 0.226000 1,882.18
Kaunas
7 | UAB Optina Vilniaus g. 10, Kaunas 0.240000 959.46
8 lea_ Skujle_né, non_—reS|dent|aI Kalnie¢iy g. 186A, 0.065000 110.76
building, boiler station Kaunas
Vytautas Siaurys, non- i
9 | residential building, boiler Pramonés pr. 36A, 0.086000 95.33
. Kaunas
station
Savanoriy pr. 120,
10 UAB Algiro, hotel Kaunas 0.238000 807.75
12 | Kaunas city social service V. Kreves pr. 9A, 0.060011 607.36
centre Kaunas
Total: 2.817011 16,223.32

Risk of decline in consumption: Company's performance is affected by the decline in sales due to reduced
heat demand, high effect of changes in fuel prices to the price of heat, and these connections of consumers.
Risks can be mitigated by the Company investing in renewable energy sources using heat and electricity
production facilities, promotion of competition in the heat production industry, thereby reducing the heat
production cost and the price of heat offered for consumers, educating consumers about the benefits of
district heating systems in comparison with autonomous heating.

The effects of other competing companies in the heat supply sector with the Company are disconnection of
consumers from the district heating system. During 2013, consumers disconnected 4.813 MW installed
power plant from it changing the type of fuel to gas, electricity or other fuels, and equipping alternative
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sources of heat generation. Heating equipment disconnection from the district heating networks and heating
mode changes are carried out in accordance with the procedures specified in the Civil Code of the Republic
of Lithuania, the Law on Heat Sector and the Law on Construction, and secondary legislation implementing
the aforementioned legal acts. Heat disconnection is governed by the “Rules on heat supply and
consumption” approved by order No 1-297 of 25 October 2010 of the Minister of Energy of the Republic of
Lithuania and their amendment approved by order No 1-191 of 20 July 2011, and the Description of
procedure for disconnection of the building or heating facilities of premises from heat supply networks at the
initiative of consumers approved by order No A 1830 of the director of administration of Kaunas City
Municipality of 14 May 2012. Kaunas City Municipality has approved a special heat supply plan, which
provides a way to separate the heat supply in different urban areas. Disconnection of buildings in the district
heating area from the DH network is only possible with the appropriate permit of Kaunas City Municipality.

Financial /economic risk: User solvency decline and debts. Risks can be mitigated by the factoring of debts
and applying more stringent debt collection techniques/methods. Other possible financial/economic risk —
changes in interest rates in the banking market. Currently, the interest rates are stable.

In 2013 the economic growth, the solvency of the heat consumers enabled customers to reduce their debts.
During 2013 compared with 2012, heat consumer debts fell by 13.72 per cent, from 129.858 million litas in
2012 to 112.036 million litas in 2013. This was resulted from the decline of heat rates due to lower fuel
prices and competition increase in heat industry, the better Company's operating efficiency and investment in
heat generation sources and supply systems. In 2013 compared with 2012, debts of educational institutions
funded by the Kaunas city municipal budget increased by 0.796 million litas, i.e. from 18.459 million litas in
2012 to 19.255 million litas in 2013. In 2012, the 10 million debt repayment schedule was made providing
the start of debt repayment from 2014. On 3 December 2013 the amendment of the agreement was signed by
transferring the final deadline of settlement to 2015. In 2013, the agreement on short-term credit of 10.567
million litas was signed by refinancing the repayment of debts of Kaunas municipality for heat.

In order to recover these debts as soon as possible, the Company uses a variety of active debt management
measures, cooperating with debt collection companies, and introducing other new instruments.

In all cases, the Company first notifies the user of his indebtedness. When debtors respond to warnings and
contact the Company, the Company discusses the options of debt settlement with them, signs documents
guaranteeing the repayment of the debt. If the debtor does not respond to warnings, does not cooperate with
the Company, it is then applies to the court for the award of the debt. In such case the debtor must pay not
only the debt but also the court and execution costs.

Information on debtors avoiding timely payments is passed to the Creditinfo debtor administration
information system according to the laws where all of its participants (different service providers) can see
and evaluate the person's solvency. A debtor listed in this database is assigned to a group of unreliable payers
and may have difficulties in the future to get a credit, to sign a leasing contract, or, for instance, to become a
mobile communication subscriber.

Activities of the Company are cyclical. During the heating season (October — April) the highest operating
income is earned. During the non-heating season, the Company's revenues are at their lowest since only heat
for hot water is used. In addition, during the non-heating season, the Company incurs more costs because it
has to prepare for the upcoming heating season, i.e. to carry out the repairs and reconstruction of heat supply
networks and heat production sources.

Political and legal factors: Energy activities are governed by the Law on Heat Sector, the Law on Energy,
the Law on Electricity, the Law on Natural Gas, the Law on Drinking Water Supply and Wastewater
Management, Government resolutions, Heat supply and consumption rules, Methodology of heat prices and
payments for heat of the National Control Commission for Prices and other legislation. Their amendments
affect the heating industry.

In 2013, Lithuania adopted a new methodology for calculating the prices of heat, in force since 1 January
2014. Also, the National Control Commission for Prices approved a new Schedule of heat purchase from
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independently producers enabling the Company to take part in the heat purchasing auction with its
manufacturing resources.

With new amendments of articles 2, 3, 20, 22, 28, 31, and 32 of the Law on Heat Sector No X1-1608 of the
Republic of Lithuania coming in affect from 1 November 2011, in accordance with Article 7, the heat and
hot water prices may not include any costs related with the indoor building heating (including heat units),
and hot water systems. In implementing the legislation, from 1 November 2011, all of these costs directly
reduce the profit of the Company as the Company has invested 61.8 million litas to the upgrade of from
1997.

The political and legal risks also include political decisions of Kaunas City Municipality, with a controlling
stake in the Company, that affect the Company's decision-making on the issues of agenda at the meetings of
shareholders (the most significant issues, excluding the shareholder structure formation, are the distribution
of profits and support), election of members of the Supervisory Board, who appoint the Company‘s
Management Board members (who are often influenced by the politicians who elected them). The risk can be
mitigated by informing the main shareholder of the Company's operations, performance, future plans and
non-politicized notification of the board.

The main risks and uncertainties of the financial operation of the company are provided in Notes 2.25, 2.26
and 23 to the financial statements of the Company for the year 2013 and consolidated statements of
AB Kauno Energija.

Social factors: social factors that have had an impact on the Company's operations in recent years include the
decline in the number of users, slight degree of growth in real consumer income (purchasing power),
unemployment and building negative opinions about district heating and of the Company in the public
domain.

Decline in the number of consumers in 2013, compared to 2012, from 118,104 in 2012 to 117,874 in 2013,
was determined by the disconnection of user equipment from the district heating system. During 2013, the
number of Company's heat consumers decreased by 242 (mostly households). However, 12 new consumers
were connected to the Company's district heating network during the same period, with a total consumption
of 2.817 MW capacity (mostly businesses with large buildings, i.e. heated areas).

Social risk: The Company's activities are most important to many Kaunas region residents and businesses
due to the relatively high costs for heating and hot water (as measured in terms of Lithuania, the Company's
district heating price was close to the average among all heat supply companies in 2013). This risk is
mitigated by raising the awareness of consumers about the Company's activities in order to ensure quality
services and greater attention to consumers. The Company receives most complaints for the amount of
charges for heat. In order to analyze and resolve these complaints, customer service professionals work with
consumers who advise customers in the Company’s premises, by phone, in letters and e-mails. Heat users
periodically, i.e. 2-4 times per year, are invited to meet with the Company's specialists, and discuss consumer
issues related to the Company's activities, and also to mitigate the negative image of the heat suppliers
promoted by the media.

Technical and process factors: greatest process risks are so shaded with the condition of heating systems.
A majority of the Company's trunk pipelines are about thirty years old. Hydraulic testing identifies their
weakest points. Every year, about 300 points where cracks occur are identified during the tests. Upon
discovery of defects, pipes are exposed and promptly repaired.

Other maintenance work is carried out along with pipe repairs. Each year, leaking shutoff valves are replaced
in heat chambers — valves, to which the heating media supply is disconnected in part of the city’s
neighbourhoods. These works are carried out by the Company out of its own funds.

Trunk heating networks in the most worn out places are reconstructed through the use of support from the
EU Structural Funds. In 2013, the Company implemented 2 projects of the trunk heating network
reconstruction: ‘“Modernization of Kaunas integrated network Aukstieji Sanciai line (272)“ and
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“Reconstruction of Kaunas integrated network Vilijampolé heat supply networks (9K) from Inkaras boiler
station to Silainiai neighbourhood”. A total of 1.618 million litas of European Union structural funds were
used for the reconstruction of the trunk line in Aukstieji San¢iai and 0.595 million litas for the district
heating pipeline in Vilijampolé. The total value of these projects was 4.641 million litas and 2.133 million
litas, respectively.

New industrially (polyurethane foam insulation in polyethylene shell) insulated pipes not requiring concrete
channels are mounted in the reconstructed sections of the heat supply network. Heat loss is very low in
reconstructed sections (process level), while the pipelines no longer pose a threat of rupture and ensure
reliable heat supply to consumers.

The greatest technical risk factor for heat generation sources is the age of heat production facilities. Each
year, boiler repairs and preventive work is carried out during the non-heating season. The Company also
invests in the renovation of production sources. More information on the Company's production and
investment in the modernization of sources is provided in sections 6.1 and 7.

Process risk can be reduced by reconstructing the sources of heat production and supply pipelines, utilizing
the latest and advanced technologies and thereby increasing the efficiency of the thermal system. In addition,
significant investments in the modernization of the Company's assets must be made according to the country
standards and regulations in line with European Union standards and normative acts regulating qualitative
and technical indicators of heat supply systems.

Ecological factors: In terms of the Company they may be divided into those affecting the Company and
there was influenced by the Company's operations.

In order not to adversely impact the environment and comply with the pollution limits, vibration and noise
values, in its activities the Company is guided by the requirements of the Kyoto Protocol, the Helsinki
Commission (HELCOM) and environmental constraints of Helsinki Convention, as well as the European
Parliament and Council Directive 2001/80/EC of regulating energy emissions and Lithuanian environmental
normative document LAND 43-2001 for the use of natural resources, and releases and emissions of air
pollutants to the environment. Main sources of pollution of the Company: burning fossil fuel in the
Company's heat sources, production of heat and waste water, are used in the industrial processes.

The Company pays taxes for atmospheric and water pollution. If allowable emission rate limits or annual
limits are exceeded, the Company must pay the fines under the applicable laws of the Republic of Lithuania.
In 2013, there have been no pollution-related incidents and the Company was not imposed any penalties.

Main Company's emission reduction measures: modernization of heat generation sources, heat transfer loss
reduction by replacing the existing pipes to the pipes with polyurethane foam insulation, installation of new
technology and improvement of existing facilities, use of less polluting fuels, and continuous emission
monitoring (in 2013, the fuel balance was dominated by natural gas — 84.93 per cent, turf — 2.59 per cent,
biogas — 1.36 per cent, sawdust — 0.07 per cent, biofuels of wood origin — 11.05 per cent, diesel — 0.002 per
cent.

Bank loan repayment: more on this issue is presented in Note 11 to the explanatory notes of financial
statements of AB Kauno Energija for 2013. The Group and the Company repay the loans on time.

One of the most important objectives of the Company is to upgrade the heat supply networks, as the
Company's heat supply networks are being operated for an average of about 30 years and are heavily worn
out, and to modernize the heat production sources. Every year, significant part of funds for facility upgrade
are borrowed, as own resources, i.e. accumulated depreciation and amortization, are not sufficient to perform
the necessary investment program. The volumes of the repayment of loans taken out for the investment
program, are not included in the sale price of heat, as the price components in accordance with the current
methodology, therefore, the Company aims to be profitable, to be financially able to settle with credit
institutions in accordance with loan agreements.
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7. Analysis of financial and non-financial performance results of the group of companies, information
related to environmental and personnel issues

It has been planned that in 2013, the core business sales revenue will be slightly lower due to reduced
heating prices; the amount of heat sold to consumers will remain the same as in 2012. Sales revenue from the
main activities, compared with 2012, is 12.75 per cent lower. This change was mainly affected by the price
of heat, the main part of it contains of purchased heat and fuel component. In 2013, the average price of heat
(27.01 ct/kwh) was 7.9 per cent lower than in 2012 (29.33 cents/lkWh). The amount of salt heat in 2013
compared with 2012 was 5.8 per cent less, and the average annual temperatures were 0.23 °C higher. During
the heating season 2013, the average outdoor air temperature was 0.02 °C and in 2012 -1.15 °C.

Comparison of financial indicators of 2013 with the indicators of 2011-2012 is presented in Table 3.

Table 3
. Company Group Company Group Company Group
No LN CTATEILS 2011 2011 2012 2012 2013 2013
Net profitability,% (net profit
/sales and services)*100 44 44 0.2 03 06 0.9
Return on tangible assets,%
2 (net profit/average value of 4.1 4.1 0.2 0.4 0.5 0.9
tangible assets)*100
3 Debt ratio (liabilities /assets) 0.34 0.34 0.41 0.42 0.41 0.41
A Det_Jt—to—equny ratio (liabilities / 05 05 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7
equity)
General liquidity ratio (short-
5 term assets / short-term 0.97 0.96 0.85 0.85 0.70 0.69
liabilities)
Asset turnover ratio ( sales and 0.74 0.75 0.82 0.83 0.7 0.72

6 services/ assets)
EBITDA (earnings before
7  interest, taxes, depreciationand 33,009 33,246 20,814 21,239 20,741 22,042
amortization), thousand litas
Profitability of core business,
g  per cent (operating profit/sales 2.4 2.4 0.2 0.2 -2.2 -2.1
and services)* 100
Return on equity (ROE)% (net

9 profit/average equity)*100 5.0 5.1 0.3 0.4 0.7 0.9
Return on assets (ROA)% (net

10 profit/ average assets)*100 S S Uiz U Ut S
Quick ratio((short-term assets-

11 inventory)/short-term liabilities) 0.91 0.90 0.82 081 0.66 0.66
Cash ratio (cash in hand and at

12 pank/ short-term liabilities) e S s L Ut
Net earnings per share (net

13  profit/average weighted number 0.31 0.32 0.02 0.03 0.04 0.07
of shares in issue)

15  Assets, thousand litas 416,069 412,255 450,407 447,221 450,175 447,787

16 Equity, thousand litas 274,027 270,682 264,181 261,195 266,039 264,214

17 Equity per share, litas 6.4 6.3 6.2 6.1 6.2 6.2

Revenue from sales, thousand

18 Jitas 308,622 309,345 369,462 369,723 322,338 322,363
18.1 Of them: Heat energy 302,893 302,842 362,728 362,667 311,632 311,576
18.2 Electric energy 568 568 460 460 767 767
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. Compan Grou Compan Grou Compan Grou
N Inesitolr ieiirs 2011 2011 2015 2012 o013 2013
Maintenance of indoor heating
18.3 and hot water supply systems, 515 1289 399 721 199 280
heating substation facilities
Income from the maintenance
of collectors
Hot water supply including cold
S water price

Income from maintenance of

866 866 775 775 779 779

3,725 3,725 4,818 4,818 8,612 8,612

hot water meters 55 55 282 282 349 349
P/E ratio (last share market
price of the year /(net

19 profit/number of shares at year- 3.84 3.82 101.90 71.32 46.78 28.79
end)

20  Share capital, thousand litas 256,392 256,392 256,392 256,392 256,392 256,392

21 Share capital-to-assets ratio 0.62 0.62 0.57 0.57 0.57 0.57
Return on equity (capital), per

29 cent (net profit/ capital and 5.2 5.2 0.3 0.5 0.7 1.2
reserves)*100
Dividend payment ratio

23 (dividend per share/earnings per ~ 0.79 0.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
share)

Comparison of the Company‘s financial results for the year 2013 (sales revenue, operating profit, net profit)
with those for the first half with 2012 is given in Chart 2012.

Chart5
Group’s and Company's income and profit, thousand
litas
= 371,814 3019
5.000 = = ot 380.000
2,028 1,.- 82.{1,196 1,838

2012 m. 3m.
-5.000 5004 340.000

320.000

s Company's profit from typical activities
s Group’s profit from typical activities
Company's net profit
Group’s net profit

== Group’s operational income

The Group’s and the Company’s profit of 2013 compared to 2012 is higher because of the decision of
Vilnius Commercial Arbitration Court for the award of 7.054 million litas fine from UAB Kauno
Termofikacijos Elektriné for its failure to perform its obligations under the Investment Agreement.

Since 1 July 2013 the Company pays to UAB Kauno Termofikacijos Elektriné a service fee for guaranteeing
the reserve power, i.e. 1.009 million litas per month. Since 1 August 2013, the fee is included in the price of
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heat sold to consumers (0.75 cents/kWh), but according to the heat sold in July-December 2013, in 2013 the
Company paid to UAB Kauno Termofikacijos Elektriné 3 million litas more than in the fees collected from
users. Consumers will have to cover the difference during 2014-2015.

The Group and the Company accounts impairment loss in doubtful receivables. Change of impairment loss
in doubtful receivables in 2013 in the Group's and the Company's general income statements is included in
the item of the cost of changes in the impairment of receivables and in 2013 amounted to 9.982 and 10.151
million litas, accordingly (5.896 and 6.210 million litas in 2012). During 2013, the Group and the Company
wrote off 3.254 million litas (in 2012 — 1.414 million litas) of bad debts. During 2013 the Group and the
Company received 0.015 million litas (in 2012 — 0.017 million litas) of bad debts which were written off in
prior years.

The Company's profits decline also because of the maintenance costs of individual heating units owned by
the Company, where, in accordance with amendments of articles 2, 3, 20, 22, 28, 31, and 32 of the Law on
Heat Sector No XI-1608 of the Republic of Lithuania coming in affect from 1 November 2011, in
accordance with Article 7, the heat and hot water prices may not include any costs related with the indoor
building heating (including heat units), and hot water systems. From 1 November 2011 in accordance with
the law, the cost of heating substation equipment maintenance and repair are not included in the sale price of
heat.

A more detailed analysis of the Group‘s and the Company’s financial results is presented in the Notes to
Financial Statements for the year 2013.

Comparison of non-financial indicators of 2013 with the indicators of 2011-2012 is presented in Table 4.

Table 4
. Measure Company Group Company Group Company Group
No Indicator name units 2011 2011  2012y. 2012 2013 2013
Energy produced and
purchased: thousand
of which supplied to MWh 1,521.8 1521.8 15329 1,532.9 1,442.2 1,442.2
the network
11 thermal energy th&‘mv\?ﬁd 1519.8 15198 15314 15314 1,439.8 14308
. thousand
1.2. electric energy MWh 2.0 2.0 15 1.5 2.4 2.4
2. Energy sold th&uvsvar?d 1,233.9 12337 12514 12512 1,179.3 1,179.1
21.  thermal energy th&‘ﬁv\f‘ﬁd 12319 12317 12499 12497 11769  1,176.7
. thousand
2.2. electric energy MWh 2.0 2.0 15 15 2.4 2.4
Reconstructed heat m 8990 8990 7970 7,970 4,789 4,789
supply networks
N7 m 1317 1317 1496 1496 893 893
supply networks
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Chart 6
Supply of heat to the network (thousand MWh) and
supply loss (per cent)
2000 21,0%
1531
1500 250 20.0%
1000 - 19.0%
500 - 18,0%
0 17.0%

2009 m. 2010 m. 2011 m. 2012 m. 2013 m.

mmm Heat supplied to the network
Sold heat
=—d— Supply loss (incl. heat for own needs)

Environmental impact on operations: The Company’s performance can be affected by changes in sales
turnovers caused by changed heat demand, which can be caused by consumer investments in the renovation
of buildings, heat saving and rational consumption, average higher of lower outdoor temperature during the
heating season, changes in fuel prices, heat purchase price from independent producers.

The dynamics of heat prices in the Company in 2009—2013 are presented in Chart 7.

Chart 7

Price of heat supplied by AB Kauno Energija,
ct/kWh

35,00
30,00
25,00
20,00
15,00
10,00

5,00

0,00

29.87

28.01

23.48

2009.12 2010.12 2011.12 2012.12 2013.12

B Heat price, ct/kWh
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Components of Company’s heat price structure during 2009-2013 are given in Chart 8.

Chart 8
Structural constituents of the heat price, ct/kWh
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Information related to environmental issues. In carrying out their activities, the Group and the Company seek
to prudently use natural resources, introducing less polluting technologies, complying with the
environmental legislation and applying preventive measures to minimize the negative impact on the
environment.

Waste management. The Group and the Company have organized the waste collection, sorting and transfer
of them to waste managers, i.e. to licensed waste management businesses. In 2013, the Group and the
Company transferred for recycling 274.900 tons of mixed municipal waste, 85 tons of ash, 316.550 tons of
scrap metal, 1.320 tons of used tires, and 0.160 tons of fluorescent lamps.

Wastewater management. In accordance with the schedule agreed with Kaunas Regional Environmental
Protection Department, the Group and the Company constantly monitor that the effluent discharges from
stationary sources are within the permissible limits set out in the integrated pollution prevention and control
permits.

Air pollution. The measurement laboratory of stationary air pollution sources of the Group and the Company,
having the permit issued by the Environmental Protection Agency, continuously monitors that the emissions
to the atmosphere from stationary sources are within the permissible limits established in integrated pollution
prevention and control permits. Boiler stations of Silkas, EZerélis, Girionys and Noreikiskés use biofuels,
thereby reducing atmospheric pollution. Below in Table 5 you will find the comparison of the Company's
emissions to the atmosphere from stationary air pollution sources in 2013 with the amount in 2009-2012.

Table 5
Pollutant . Nitrogen Carbon Sulphur Vanadium Other
Particulates : . — Hydrocarbons .
name oxides monoxide dioxide pentoxide  pollutants
;8'1';“?“‘5 N 105967 1013197  299.6656 5.0747 14.9647 0.0000 0.770
;8'1';“;‘“5 N 76130 543160  135.1510 6.0280 1.2080 0.0000  0.4397
;8'1';"?”“ in 7.2641 57.0909 125.3107 6.1983 3.0555 0.0000 0.4397
ggi'gtat‘”ts n 8.4833 65.8444 146.8925 7.3386 2.6571 0.0000 0.4397
zgggti‘”ts in 9.7000 72.7000 179.8000 8.9000 3.4000 0.0000 0.4000
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At boiler stations of Silkas, Ezerélis, Girionys and Noreikigkés, smoke is cleaned from particles in cyclones,
and their working efficiency is checked every year. The Company is involved in the greenhouse gas
emissions trading system. This system includes pollution trade allowances (ATL) appointed to PetraSitinai
power plant, Silkas, Pergalé, Garliava, Jurbarkas boiler stations and Noreikiskés boiler station with a CHP
plant.

Human resource information. In optimising the Company‘s Management Board and management, and
seeking for greater efficiency of performance and ongoing processes in the operating results of structural
division, in 2013 the Company’s administration carried out all actions provided for in the legislation of the
Republic of Lithuania for implementation of changes in the organisation of labour related with decision No
2013-4-2 of the board of the Company of 21 February 2014 “On approval of the management structure of
AB Kauno Energija“ and decision No 2013-7-2 of 22 March 2013 “On approval of position titles of
AB Kauno Energija“. The new management structure was introduced in the Company from on July 2013.
The Company has set up a new structural unit — an internal control group with the aim to control the
Company's structural unit organization, and implementation of tasks and functions.

Upon entry into force of the new management structure, the Company optimized the working functions of
structural units, eliminated 36 posts and reduced the wage fund.

On 24 January 2013 the Company's Employee Conference approved the Company's collective agreement,
which aims to enable coordinated team efforts to ensure the efficient operation of the Company and
representing all Company's employee rights and legitimate interests. The collective agreement specifies the
conditions and guarantees of work, wages, social, economic and professional conditions and guarantees,
which are not governed by laws and other legal acts, but which improve and ensure the labour, economic and
social conditions of personal.

On 31 December 2013 the Company updated its rules of procedure, with the aim to define the Company's
operating procedures, discipline, work and rest regime, wages, confidential information, employee safety,
health and behavioural requirements.

The Company also aims on focused development of staff and improvement of their skills; therefore
employees are encouraged to attend training courses and thematic conferences. During vocational training
the staff upgrades their knowledge required for work and necessary qualification certificates.

The Company actively cooperates with educational institutions and allows higher school students to perform
their field practice at the Company, to apply theoretical knowledge and gain practical skills.

Taking into account the recommendations of the Company's Audit Committee in 2013, the Company
initiated the procurement of independent external assessment of the Company's internal control system which
will include the detailed analysis of all Company's internal control elements and the system as a whole, and
its efficiency, determining the efficiency and validity of the current Company's internal control system. It
will also prepare findings and recommendations for the improvement of the system, and aiming for higher
operational efficiency of the Company's structural units and employees.

In order to enhance the performance, since 2012 the Company evaluates the performance of its personnel
every year. The main goal of such assessment is to evaluate the employee skills and abilities to perform the
job functions assigned in their job regulations, to carry out a proper assessment of the activities of
employees, to provide feedback about the fulfilment of objectives, to increase the employee loyalty and
satisfaction with their work, encouraging them to excel. The main outcome of this process is the information
allowing better coordination of the Company's activities and encouragement of employees to improve their
work performance. The annual performance evaluation of Company employees, who work under the
contracts, is carried out on a regular basis.

8. References to and additional explanations of data presented in the annual financial statements,
and key features of internal control and risk management systems relating to the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements

All main financial data of the Group and the Company are presented in the explanatory notes to the
consolidated financial statements and financial statements of AB Kauno Energija for the year 2013.

Internal control over consolidated statements. When preparing its consolidated financial statements, the
Company combines the itemised financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, by summing up
the items of assets, liabilities, equity, revenue and expenses. Afterwards, it eliminates the book value of the
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Company‘s investment in the subsidiary and the Company‘s share of equity in the subsidiary; amounts on
balance sheets, transactions, income and expenses inside the Group (for this purpose, it prepares a reconciled
report of all transactions, income and expenses for the period); difference in depreciation of contribution in
kind measured at market value as compared to its book value.

For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements of the Group, the financial statements of the
Company and subsidiaries are prepared for the same date.

The accounting policy of the company and its subsidiaries for accounting of similar transactions is the same.
The subsidiaries’ income and expenses are included into the consolidated financial statements as of the date
of acquisition.

9. Significant events after the end of the financial year

On 6 January 2014 the extraordinary meeting of shareholders of AB Kauno Energija was held. It was
attended by and voted in writing by 3 shareholders (controlling holding of 42,018,465 ordinary shares of the
Company, representing 98.33 per cent of the voting stock number), who decided:

- to increase the share capital of open limited liability company Kauno Energija by LTL 420,996
(four hundred twenty thousand nine hundred and ninety six litas) from LTL 256,391,862 (two hundred and
fifty- six million three hundred and ninety one thousand eight hundred and sixty two million litas) to LTL
256,812,858 (two hundred and fifty six million, eight hundred and twelve thousand eight hundred and fifty
eight million litas) by issuing 70,166 (seventy thousand one hundred and sixty six) ordinary shares with par
value of LTL 6 (six litas), the issue price of which is equal to the nominal value of the share.

— to revoke the pre-emptive right to all shareholders to acquire newly issued 70,166 units of ordinary
nominal shares of the open limited liability company Kauno Energija with par value of 6 litas the issue price
of which is equal to the nominal value of the share, by granting the right to acquire these shares to Kaunas
City Municipality, code 111106319, Laisvés al. 96, Kaunas, so that Kaunas City Municipality can transfer to
open public company Kauno Energija the heat supply — heating networks line owned by the municipality
(Karaliaus Mindaugo pr. 50, Kaunas, unique No 4400-2125-5130).

- to amend the articles of association of open limited liability company Kauno Energija by issuing
their new version, and authorise the director-general open public company Kauno Energija Rimantas Bakas
to sign the amended text of the articles of association of the open public company Kauno Energija (attached).

- to revoke Valys Venslovas from the Supervisory Board of open limited liability company Kauno
Energija.

— to elect Zidriinas Garsva to the members of the Supervisory Board of open limited liability company
Kauno Energija.

— to allocate up to LTL 1,000,000 (one million litas) support for public institution Zalgiris basketball
centre (company code 302811111), including this amount of support to the audited project of allocation of
operating profit (loss) of AB Kauno Energija for the year 2013.

The board of AB Kauno Energija, taking into account the proposals of UAB Fortum Heat Lietuva on
strategic cooperation, in its decision No 2014-2-3.2 of 22 January 2014 “On negotiations with UAB Fortum
Heat Lietuva” decided to initiate consultations with UAB Fortum Heat Lietuva on the proposed strategic
investment of UAB Fortum Heat Lietuva in AB Kauno Energija. Report on the results of consultations will
be presented to the board of AB Kauno Energija for consideration, and deciding on subsequent
implementation, and coordination of the terms of preliminary agreements with the shareholders of AB Kauno
Energija.

On 30 January 2014 AB Kauno Energija received a notice that the Vilnius Court of Commercial Arbitration
make a decision on 27 January 2015 in case No 266 in which it is dismissed the claims of the plaintiff
UAB Kauno Termofikacijos Elektriné against the defendant AB Kauno Energija on the award from the
defendant of debt of 1,193,978.52 litas for heating in December 2012, January 2013, 145,713.63 litas of
delay interest, procedural interest and litigation costs. At the same time, 26,430.86 litas of arbitration costs
were awarded in favour of AB Kauno Energija from the plaintiff. The dispute arose because of the heat
purchase prices. According to the plaintiff, AB Kauno Energija hatch to purchase heat from UAB Kauno
Termofikacijos Elektriné at the higher price than the price of the comparative heat production cost offered by
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AB Kauno Energija, but the arbitration tribunal rejected these claims of the plaintiff. The said decision is
final and binding on the parties of the dispute, and became effective from the moment of its adoption.
UAB Kauno Termofikacijos Elektriné acknowledged the decision and did not file an appeal to the
Lithuanian Court of Appeal.

On 20 March 2014 the State Enterprise Centre of Registers, Kaunas branch registered the new version of the
Company's Articles of Association.

On 25 March 2014 it completed the audit of the financial statements for the year 2013. It was performed by
the accounting and control UAB Auditas (Auditor Certificate No 001234). In 2013 the financial statements
were audited with the independent auditor's report thereon, which is presented along with this Annual
Report.

10. Plans and forecasts of activities of the group of companies

The aim of the Group’s and the Company’s investment program for the year 2014 is to further develop the
Company‘s heat production, transmission and distribution through increase of use of bio-fuel for heat
production, heat supply reliability, expansion of maintenance services of engineering systems and
improvement of services quality.

In compliance with the provisions of the plan for the facilities on the implementation of the National
Renewable Energy Development Strategy, in order to implement the Company's key business objectives and
the provisions of the National Energy Independence Strategy related to the assurance of technical
requirements for reliability of heat sources and heat supply networks, to guarantee the quality keeps apply to
consumers, the Company adjusted its “Investment plan for the year 2012-2015 and is financing sources™
according to which it plans to invest 188.04 million litas.

The main investment goals of the Company for 2013-2016 regulation periods are as follows: to decrease
heat production costs in existing sources, increase the share of cheaper types of fuel (bio-fuel) in the total
fuels, increase the capacity of own sources until full satisfaction of power demand. In November 2013 the
Company signed tripartite agreements with the Ministry of Economy and public institution Lithuanian
Business Support Agency for the financial support from the European Union structural funds, which will
grant 15.99 million litas support of the EU SF to the following projects: “Silkas power plant reconstruction,
replacing the fuel type to biofuels (stage II)” (total project value 8.1 million litas, support 3.99 million litas),
“Petrasitinai power plant reconstruction, replacing the fuel type to biofuels (stage I)” (total project value is
25.0 million litas, support 6.0 million litas), “Inkaras boiler-house reconstruction, replacing the fuel type to
biofuels” (total project value is 15.0 million litas, support 6.0 million litas). These projects should be
implemented in 2014-2015: installation of two 8 MW biofuel-fired hot water boilers with 4 MW condensing
smoke economizer (total capacity of 20 MW) in Inkaras boiler station, replacement of boiler 1 for 2 biofuel-
fired 12 MW hot water boilers and installation of 6 MW condensing economizer (total capacity 30 MW) in
Petrasitinai power plant, installation of 8 MW biofuel boiler for water heating and 4 MW condensing
economizer in Silkas power plant.

In 2014, the Company will carry out the following heating network reconstruction projects supported by the
European Union funds: “Modernisation of Kaunas city integrated network trunk 5T”, “Modernisation of
Kaunas city integrated network trunk 6Z%, “Reconstruction of Kaunas city 1Z trunk between the heat
chambers 1Z-7 and 1Z-8 and the heat chambers 1Z-10 and 1Z-12 at Chemijos g.“, “Reconstruction of
Kaunas city trunk 3Z between the heating chambers 3Z-9 and 3Z-9-5 at A. Baranausko g, and
“Reconstruction of Kaunas city trunk 4Z between the heating chambers 4Z-10 and 4Z-15 at Taikos pr.“. The
implementation of these projects will allow upgrading 2.24 km of Kaunas city heat supply networks. These
projects will be supported by 6.59 million litas from the EU Structural Funds under according to the facility
VP2-4.2-UM-04-K “Modernization and development of heat supply system” of Priority 4 “Basic Economic
Infrastructure” of the Economic Development action Programme.

10 MW condensing economizer will be built in Petrasitinai power plant in 2014. The new plant will be built
to an existing 100 MW gas boiler PTVM 100. The device will allow for about 10 per cent reduction in fuel
consumption for the same amount of heat produced. The total installed capacity of the two units will be 110
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MW. Along with the new economizer the Company will equip an automatic boiler control system.
Installation of the economizer will increase its overall efficiency and the boiler efficiency, which will be
about 105 per cent. The existing boiler flue PTVM 100 will be adapted for operation with the economizer
(cost of the project — 5.4 million litas).

All of the above mentioned investment projects are included in the adjusted investment plan for the year
2012-2015 of AB Kauno Energija and its financing sources, approved by Kaunas City Municipality Council
on 17 November 2012 in its decision No T-60. The projects are launched successfully and will be finished in
2014-2015.

In addition to the above mentioned projects the implementation of Company’s investment program in 2014
will involve further modernization of boiler-houses owned by the Company automating the production
process and mounting condensers (economizers); reconstruction of heat networks; replacement of heat
meters. Implementation of these measures will allow to reduce heat production, transmission and selling
losses and to perform optimization of heat supply to the consumers and to ensure heat supplies reliability.

In 2013, the Company offered the services of power object operator. Heating equipment repairs and other
services help the Company earn additional income. Expanding of these additional activities in the future,
offering energy saving services and earning additional income in other ways offer new possibilities of the
growing heat price compensation due to the future decrease in heat sales, related to the renovation of
buildings.

It is planned that by 2014, compared with 2013, the Group's sales revenue will be lower due to the reduced
heating rates; the amount of heat sold to consumers will remain the same as in 2013. The greatest impact on
the Group's and the Company's income and expenses will be made by fuel and purchased heat price changes,
as the price of heat under the requirements of the law is recalculated every month. The Group profit will
remain at a similar level compared with 2013. The submitted data may be adjusted by the heat demand
change, i.e. consumption, which is mainly affected by the average outdoor air temperature, the size of user
investment in housing renovation, energy-saving and its rational use, as well as changes in the economic
situation in Lithuania.

11. Information on research and development activities of the group of companies

Following the provisions of the Law on Heat Sector of the Republic of Lithuania and allowing development
of competition in the heat production sector, the Company initiated and continues to develop the work
“Preparation of regulations of implementation of procedure for centrally supplied heat purchase” (hereinafter
the Heat Networks Code), describing the existing and foreseeing the future requirements of connection of
independent heat producers to the central heating networks system and the principles, ways and processes of
heat selling and purchase. It is also offers the measures to be implemented for transparent and fluent trade
with independent heat producers. It describes the principles, provisions and concepts of the organizational
structure of heat market, process regulations of central heat supplies systems functioning, order of hear
energy trade, regulations of rendering of central heat supplies services and reimbursement, regulations of
central heat supplies development, regulations of reserves accumulation and use, central heat supplies system
functioning for accidents or repair, resolution of disputes. Currently, the document is submitted for
consideration to Kaunas City Municipality.

12. Information on own shares acquired and held by the Issuer
The Company does not hold its own shares. The Company’s subsidiary has not purchased any of the

Company’s shares. Neither the Company nor its subsidiary has purchased or sold own shares during the
reporting period.
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13. Information on the aims of financial risk management, hedging instruments in use and subject to
hedging accounting, and the scope of exposure of the group of companies to price risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and cash flow risk, provided the group of companies uses financial instruments and it is
important for the assessment of assets, equity, liabilities, financial position and performance results of
the group of companies

All relevant information on this issue is presented in Notes 2.11, 15, 23, 24 to the consolidated financial
statements for the year 2013 of AB Kauno Energija and the Company.

14. Information on the Issuer‘s branch office and subsidiary undertakings

The Company’s branch office Jurbarko Silumos Tinklai was established by the decision of the Company*s
Management Board, and registered on 9 September 1997 at the address V. Kudirkos g. 11, 4430 Jurbarkas.
The Company’s branch produces and sells heat to consumers in the town of Jurbarkas.

The Company’s branch Jurbarko Silumos Tinklai had 36 employees as at 31 December 2013.

On 1 July 2006 the Company registered a subsidiary Pastaty Priezitros Paslaugos, headquarters address
Savanoriy pr. 347, 49423 Kaunas, company number 300580563.

On 31 December 2013 an authorised capital of the subsidiary in the amount of 10,000 litas was registered at
the Register of Legal Entities and was divided into 100 ordinary nominal shares at the par value of 100 litas
each, of ordinary nominal shares of UAB Pastaty Priezitiros Paslaugos.

The Company‘s subsidiary UAB Pastaty Priezitiros Paslaugos has no holdings directly or indirectly managed
in other companies.

Activities of UAB Pastaty Priezitiros Paslaugos includes the maintenance of heating and hot water supply
systems of the buildings, maintenance of heating unit equipment, repair of buildings and structures, repair of
heating units and their heating equipment, delivery of transport services and other activities such as the lease
of premises.

Turnover of the Company’s subsidiary in 2013 was 714 thousand litas, a loss was 187 thousand litas, the
previous year's accumulated losses amounted to 54 thousand litas, the total retained loss on 31 December
2013 was 2 thousand litas as the amount of share capital has been reduced by 152 thousand litas,
155 thousand litas were the transferred shareholder contributions, and 68 thousand litas of profit was
transferred to subsidiary UAB Kauno Energijos NT.

As from 1 July 2012, in accordance with item 2 of article 20 of the Law on Heat Sector of the Republic of
Lithuania, “the person maintaining the building heating can hot water system (operator) in apartment houses
may not be the heat supplier or persons related with the heat supplier in employment relations or prices
providing services or products to the heat supplier, or the manufacturers of heating units and devices used for
heat production and heat metering, or other equipment, also persons engaged in the retail and wholesale trade
of fuel used for heat production, or persons belonging in conjunction with the aforementioned entities to the
group of related economic entities according to the Law on Competition” (this restriction is not applied for
the maintenance of the heating and hot water systems of apartment houses in buildings in the residential
locations in which, according to the information of the Athenian Department of statistics, the population is
less than 50,000).

With regard to the provisions of the Law on amendment and supplement of articles 2, 3, 20, 22, 28 and 31 of
the law on heating facilities of 20 May 2003 on the separation of maintenance of the heating can hot water
systems in the buildings from that heat production and supply, in 2012 the board of the Company approved
to the reorganisation of UAB Pastaty Priezitros Paslaugos by way of separation, in performing the
separation of activities carried out by the subsidiary by creating a new company with the same legal form,
named UAB Kauno Energijos NT.
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On 21 February 2003, following the decision of the board of AB Kauno Energija which is the sole
shareholder of UAB Pastaty PrieZitiros Paslaugos, it was decided to reduce the authorised capital up to
4,602 thousand litas by eliminating the eye can related loss of 152 thousand litas. The articles of association
of UAB Pastaty Priezitiros Paslaugos were newly registered on 6 March 2013.

It has been decided by the decision of the meeting of shareholders of UAB Pastaty PriezZitiiros Paslaugos of
22 March 2013 to transfer the contribution of shareholders of 45 thousand litas to cover the loss, and the
contribution of shareholders of 100 thousand litas that were transferred on 22 March 2013.

After completing the procedures of reorganisation by way of separation of UAB Pastaty Prieziiiros
Paslaugos, a subsidiary of AB Kauno Energija, the articles of association of UAB Pastaty Priezitiros
Paslaugos (company number 300580563) continuing the activities were registered in the register of legal
entities on 16 April 2013.

On 11 December 2013, following the decision of AB Kauno Energija performing the functions of the sole
shareholder of UAB Pastaty Priezitiros Paslaugos, it was decided to liquidate the open limited liability
company Pastaty Priezitiros Paslaugos (company code 300580563) from 16 December 2013; in the same
decision the director of Pastaty PrieZitiros Paslaugos was dismissed from 16 December 2013, and the
advocate Aiva Dumcaitiené of the lawyer professional community Magnusson ir partneriai was appointed as
the liquidator of UAB Pastaty Priezitiros Paslaugos 16 December 2013.

On 31 December 2013, the investment in UAB Pastaty Priezitros Paslaugos and accumulated losses of
depreciation to tile to 2,799 thousand litas (on 31 December 2012 it was 1,764 thousand litas) and was
accounted for in the company’s profit and loss is, in the item of financial operation costs. More information
is presented in Note 20 of the explanatory notes to financial statements.

On 31 December 2013, UAB Pastaty Priezitiros Paslaugos had 10 employees.

The comparison of the financial results of UAB Pastaty Priezitiros Paslaugos for 2013 (operating income,
operating profit, net profit) with the indicators of 2012 is given in Chart 9.

Chart9
Income, costs and profit of UAB Pastaty PrieZiaros Paslaugos, thousand litas
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After completing the procedures of reorganisation by way of separation of UAB Pastaty Prieziiiros
Paslaugos, a subsidiary of AB Kauno Energija, the articles of association of the newly established entity
UAB Kauno Energija NT were registered in the Register of Legal Entities on 16 April 2013. Company's
headquarter address is Savanoriy pr. 347, 49423 Kaunas, company number 303042623.
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The authorised capital of UAB Kauno Energija NT registered in the Register of Legal Entities on
31 December 2013 totalled 4,592,100 litas was divided into 45,921 ordinary nominal shares with the par
value of 100 litas each.

UAB Kauno Energija NT has no holdings directly or indirectly managed in other companies.

Activities of UAB Kauno Energija NT include the real estate development, management, leases, purchase
and sale.

Turnover of UAB Kauno Energija NT — in 2013 was 136,574 thousand litas, profit (loss) amounted to
53,125 thousand litas.

On 31 December 2013 UAB Kauno Energija NT had 3 employees.

Financial indicators of UAB Kauno Energija NT in 2013 (operating income, operating profit, net profit)
are given in Chart 10.

Chart 10
Income, costs and profit (loss) of UAB Kauno Energija NT, litas
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15.  Structure of authorized capital

The authorised capital of the Company registered in the Register of Legal Entities on 31 December 2013 is
LTL 256,391,862 (two hundred and fifty six million three hundred ninety one thousand eight hundred sixty
two litas).

Structure of authorized share capital by types of shares is specified in Table 6.

Table 6
Share of private

Municipal share shareholders in

Number of Nominal Total nominal

Uifee el s shares, units value, litas value, litas n (t:ge i?glthl?tgzed the authorised
prtal, capital, litas
Ordinary nominal -, 744 77 6 256,391,862 98.33 1.67
shares
83
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16. Data on shares issued by the Issuer

The authorised capital registered on 26 March 2010, totals LTL 256,391,862 (two hundred fifty six million
three hundred ninety one thousand eight hundred sixty two litas) and is divided into LTL 42,731,977 (forty
two million seven hundred and thirty one thousand nine hundred and seventy seven) ordinary shares of par

value of 6 litas.

There are no limitations on the transfer of securities.

16.1. Main characteristics of shares are released into free circulation of securities (31 December 2013).

Securities registration No

ISON code of securities
Number of shares
Nominal value

Total nominal value of shares

A01031430

LT0000123010

20,031,977 ordinary nominal shares
LTL 6

LTL 120,191,862

16.2. Main characteristics of shares issued and registered for non-public trading (31 December 2012).

ISON code of securities
Number of shares
Nominal value

Total nominal value of shares

LT0000128407

22,700,000 ordinary nominal shares
LTL 6

LTL 6

History of trade in Company’s securities in 2009-2013 is given in Table 7.

Indicator
Opening price
(litas/euro)

Highest price
(litas/euro)

Lowest price
(litas/euro)

Last price
(litas/euro)

Circulation, units

Circulation, million
(litas/euro)

Capitalisation, million
(litas/euro)

2009

2.00/0.579

2.650.768

1.41/0.408

2.40/0.695

92 418

0.19/0.05

102.28/29.62

2010

2.45/0.710

3.18/0.921
1.903/0.551

2.072/0.600

77729

0.2/0.06

41.5/12.02

2011

2.072/0.600

2.659/0.770

1.105/0.320

1.209/0.350

90 239

0.18/0.05

24.21/7.01

2012

1.951/0.565

2.037/0.590

1.433/0.415

1.996/0.578

80 421

0.13/0.04

39.98/11.58

Table 7
2013

1.996/0.578

2.034/0.589

1.581/0.458

2.034/0.589

36 355

0.06/0.02

40.74/11.80
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Historical data on prices (in euro) and turnovers in 2009-2013 are illustrated in Chart 11.

Chart 11
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Chart 12
Comparison of Company’s share price with the index of own sector (utility services) and OMX Vilnius
index
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17. Information on the Issuer‘s shareholders

The number of company’s shareholders as of 31 December 2013 was 295.

Information on Shareholders of the Issuer on 31 December 2013 owning more than 5 per cent of the
authorised capital of the Company registered in 26 March 2010 (42 731 977 ordinary nominal shares), are
given in Table 8 and Chart 13.

Table 8
Owned Share of votes
Eull name of shareholder Number of ordinary  share in Share of votes owned by the
(company name, type nominal shares the carried by shareholder
pany r YPE, owned by the authorised  owned shares. together with
headquartered dress, code) . . : .
shareholder, units capital, per cent acting entities, per
per cent cent
Kaunas City Municipality
Laisvés al. 96, 44251 Kaunas 39,665,892 92.82 92.82 -
Code 111106319
Other shareholders 3,066,085 7.18 7.18 -
Total: 42,731,977 100 100 -
Chart 13

Structure of shareholders as at 31 December 2013

3.76%
1.75%

/ 1.67%

92.82%

Kaunas city municipality m Kaunas district municipality

m Jurbarkas district municipality ™ Qther sharcholders

17.1. The shareholders, whose ownership interest as at 31 December 2013 exceeded 5 per cent of the
Company’s shares (20,031,977 PVA) issued for non-public trading (VP ISIN code — LT0000123010), are
listed in Table 9.
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Table 9
Percentage
Total of shares Share of
Number of nominal from those the
Name Type of shares shares, value of released autho.rised
units s (s into t_he capital
' public (%)
circulation
Kaunas City Municipality Ordinary
Laisvés al. 96, 44251 Kaunas nominal 16,965,892 101,795,352 84.69 39.70
Code 111106319 shares
Kaunas District Municipality Ordinary
Savanoriy pr. 371, 49500 - 1,606,168 9,637,008 8.02 3.76
nominal
Kaunas, shares
Code 111100622
Ordinary
Other Shareholders nominal 1,459,917 8,759,502 7.29 3.42
shares
Total: 20,031,977 120,191,862 100 46.88

17.2. The shareholders, whose ownership interest as at 31 December 2013 exceeded 5 per cent of the
Company’s shares (22 700 000 ordinary registered shares) issued for non-public trading (VP ISIN code —
LT0000128407), are listed in Table 10.

Table 10
Percentage of Share of
Total
Number of nominal shares from the
Name Type of shares shares, those released authorised
- value of . . .
units shares. litas into the public capital
' circulation (%)
Kaunas City Municipality
Laisvés al. 96, 44251 Ordinary 22,700,000 136,200,000 100 53.12
Kaunas nominal shares

Code 111106319

None of the shareholders of the Issuer holds any special rights of control. The rights of all shareholders are
the same, they are specified in article 4 of the Law on Companies are Republic of Lithuania. The number of
shares carrying votes at the general meeting of shareholders of the Company is 42,731,977 units.

The Company has not been notified on the limitations of voting rights or any other mutual agreements of
shareholders which may limit the transfer of securities and/or voting rights.

In 2010, the dividends from the profit of 2009 were allocated and paid to the shareholders of the Issuer.
Dividend per share is 0.084 litas, in total — 3.589 million litas.

In 2011, no dividends were allocated and paid to the shareholders of the Issuer. The profit of 2010 was
allocated to the statutory reserve, the reserve for investment and support.

In 2012, the dividends from the profit of 2011 were allocated and paid to the shareholders of the Issuer.
Dividend per share is 0.25 litas per share, in total 10.683 million litas.

In 2013, no dividends were allocated and paid to the shareholders of the Issuer. Following the decision no
3 of the ordinary general meeting of shareholders, the profit was allocated to the statutory reserve, other
reserves (repair of heating units), support, and part of the profit was transferred to the next financial year.
A total of 0.15 million litas was allocated for support and charity.
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18. Employees

As at 13 December 2013, in total 561 employees were employed in the Group. Changes in the number of
employees in 2011-2013 are specified in Table 11.

Table 11
Abdul number of Company Group Company Group Company Group
employees 2011-12-31  2011-12-31 2012-12-31 2012-12-31 2013-12-31 2013-12-31
Total: 583 628 583 617 548 561
including: 4 6 4 6 5 7
management
specialists 310 325 314 327 288 292
workers 269 297 265 284 255 262
Education of the Group and the Company to the end of the period
Table 12
No Education Company Group  Company Group Company Group
2011-12-31 2011-12-31 2012-12-31 2012-12-31 2013-12-31 2013-12-31
i Sy 9 11 8 9 5 6
incomplete
2 Secondary 219 245 217 231 211 217
College 92 98 83 89 78 80
4 Higher 263 274 275 288 254 258
Total: 583 628 583 617 548 561
Average conditional number and average monthly salary of employees
(at the end of 2013, before taxes)
Table 13
No Employees Company Group
1.1. Average conditional number of managers 3.9 6.2
1.2. Average monthly salary of managers 8,733.1 6,050.7
2.1. Average conditional number of specialists 281.8 286.9
2.2. Average monthly salary of specialists 2,898.5 2,888.8
3.1. Average conditional number of workers 245.3 255.6
3.2. Average monthly salary of workers 2,119.0 2,100.1

The salary of the Issuer consists of the on some part of salary, variable part of salary, benefits and allocations
paid according to the Labour Code of the Republic of Lithuania and other laws, collective agreement of the
company, and bonuses. Bonuses are paid from net profit, if the general meeting of shareholders allocated
part of the profit for the bonuses of the Company employees. From 1998 till 2014, the general meeting of
shareholders has never allocated part of the profit for the bonuses of the Issuer’s employees.

The Collective agreement provides for the special rights and responsibilities of the Issuer's employees or part
thereof. Under the Collective agreement that became effective in the Company on 28 January 2013:
1. For continuous employment with the Company employees are granted additional paid leave:

2. after working for 5 years 1 calendar day;
3. from 6 to 10 years 2 calendar days;
4. after working for more than 10 years 3 calendar days;
5. for every subsequent 5 years 1 calendar day.

6. The length of service of employees of the Lithuanian power system companies transferred to the
Company according to the corporate employer agreement, i.e. when the transfer was carried out according to
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the Labour Code or the Law on Employment Contract, is considered not interrupted, and such employees are
granted additional paid leave for a continuous period of employment with the Company.

7. At the agreement of the employer and employee, the employee may be granted unpaid leave for
family related issues and other important reasons.

8. Company’s employees are entitled to additional paid leave in the following cases:

9. Creating a family 3 calendar days;

10. Death of a close relative (one of the parents or parents of the spouse, the spouse, brother, sister,
daughter, or legal foster son, foster daughter, grandson, granddaughter) 3 calendar days;

11. Wife’s birth giving 1 calendar day;

12. Wedding of the employee's daughter, son or legal foster-child 3 calendar days;

13. employees, raising a child studying at a general education school under twelve years of age, are
given a day off during the first day of the academic year, paying such employees the average wage.

14. Employees who take entrance exams to universities, higher schools and colleges and successfully
study in them, if their chosen specialty is within the interests of the Company and the job carried out, are
granted the statutory paid educational leave, by paying 50 per cent of the employee's average salary.

The employer undertakes:

1. to ensure the conditions of preventive health check and, if necessary, rehabilitation treatment of
employees, to provide free health services at the Company's occupational health unit;

2. in case of death of an employee, the Company pays an allowance in the amount of two monthly
average salaries of the last year of the Company or a branch (depending on where the employee has worked),
gives free transport or covers transport costs. The allowance is granted to the burying person;

3. in case of death of a close relative of the employee (father, mother, child, or spouse), the employee is
granted the allowance of the average salary of the previous year of the Company or an affiliate (depending
on where the employee works), given free transport or transport costs are covered;

4. in case of birth of one or more children, employees are granted 50 per cent of the of the average
salary of the previous year of the Company or an affiliate (depending on where the employee works) for each
child;

5. in case of wedding, employees are granted 50 per cent of the of the average salary of the previous
year of the Company or an affiliate (depending on where the employee works);

6. employees who are raising three or more children under the age of 16, widows (widowers) and
unmarried persons who raise one child or children alone, if they are studying at secondary schools until the
age of 19, and while studying at higher schools or colleges full-time till the age of 21, or if they are caring
for other family members with heavy or moderate disability level or lower than 55 per cent working ability
level, or family members who have reached the retirement age, which according to the laws are established a
major or moderate level of special needs, once a year are granted 50 per cent of the of the average salary of
the previous year of the Company or an affiliate (depending on where the employee works) according to the
date of request;

7. for the 40th, 50th and 60th anniversary, as proposed by the head of the division, for excellent
performance of employees having the 15 and 20 years of continuous employment with the Company are
granted a monetary gift of 25 per cent, and having over 20 years of continuous work experience — a monetary
gift of 50 per cent of the average salary of the previous year of the Company or an affiliate (depending on
where the employee worked);

8. in other cases, where the material support is needed (loss due to natural disasters or other reasons
beyond the employee's control), at the mutual agreement of the representatives who have signed the
Collective Agreement, employees are granted a benefit of up to 2000 litas;

9. in the event of a serious illness or accident of the employee, he is granted an allowance of up to
5 average salaries of the previous year of the Company or an affiliate (depending on where the employee
worked) at the mutual agreement of the representatives who have signed the Collective Agreement;

10. for the occasions of the Lithuanian Energy Day and jubilees of the Company deserving employees
are granted a monetary gift of up to 500 litas.

19. Procedure for amending the Issuer‘s Articles of Association

The articles of association of the Issuer provide that the general meeting of shareholders of the company has
the exceptional right to amend the articles of association other than the exceptions provided in the Law on
Companies of the Republic of Lithuania. The resolution on the amendment of the Company’s articles of
association 2/3 qualified majority of votes of the members participating in the meeting of shareholders.
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In the decision of 26 October 2010 the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders amended the articles of
association of the Company taking into consideration the amendments of legislation. The new version of the
articles of association was registered in the Register of Legal Entities of the Republic of Lithuania on
11 November 2010. It can be found in the Internet website of the Company at www.kaunoenergija.lt.

20. Issuer‘s management bodies

According to the articles of association of the Company, the management bodies of the Company include the
general meeting of shareholders, a collegial management body — the Supervisory Board, a collegial
management body — the board, and a sole management body — the head of the company — director general.

Decisions of the general meeting of shareholders made on the issues within the competence of the general
meeting of shareholders provided for in the articles of association of the Company are binding to its
shareholders, the Supervisory Board, the board and the general director, and other employees of the
Company.

All persons who are the shareholders of the Company on the date of the General meeting of shareholders
shall have the right to attend the Company's general meeting of shareholders in person or by proxy, or be
represented by persons with whom they had entered into the agreement on the transfer of the voting right.
The record date of the meeting of the Company is the fifth working day before the general meeting of
shareholders or the fifth working day before the repeat general meeting of shareholders. A person attending
the general meeting and entitled to vote shall produce a document which is a proof of his personal identity
and sign the registration list of the meeting of shareholders. A person who is not a shareholder shall
additionally produce a document attesting to his right to vote at the general meeting of shareholders.

The collegial management body — Supervisory Board is selected by the general meeting of shareholders
according to the procedure specified in the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania. The Supervisory
Board consists of 7 (seven) members. The Supervisory Board is elected for a term of 4 (four) years. The
Supervisory Board elects the chairman of the Supervisory Board from among its members. The general
meeting of shareholders may remove from office the entire Supervisory Board or its individual members
before the expiry of the term of office of the Supervisory Board. Where individual members of the
Supervisory Board are elected, they shall be elected only until the expiry of the term of office of the current
Supervisory Board.

The Supervisory Board elects and dismisses the board members and supervisors the activities of the board
and the head of the Company; submits its comments and proposals to the general meeting of shareholders on
the Company’s operating strategy, set of annual financial statements, draft of profit/loss appropriation and
the annual report of the Company as well as the activities of the board and the manager of the Company;
submits proposals to the board and the manager of the Company to revoke their decisions which are in
conflict with laws and other legal acts, the articles of association of the Company or decisions of the general
meeting of shareholders; addresses other issues assigned to the scope of powers of the Supervisory Board by
decisions of the general meeting of shareholders regarding the supervision of the activities of the Company
and its management bodies. The Supervisory Board shall not be entitled to assign or delegate the functions
assigned to the scope of its powers by the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania and the articles of
association of the company to other organs of the Company.

The Supervisory Board, in accordance with resolution No 1K-18 of 21 August 20 weight of the Securities
Commission of the Republic of Lithuania ,,On the requirement for Audit Committees®, ,,Guidelines for the
application of requirements for Audit Committees* approved in the decision of 28 November 20 weight of
the Securities Commission, approved the internal rules of procedure for forming the Audit Committee, and
electing the Audit Committee members.

The Supervisory Board of the Company approved a new version of the internal rules of procedure of the
Audit Committee of the open limited liability company Kauno Energija on 21 February 2013.
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The Board is a collegial management body of the company. The board is comprised of 7 (seven) members.
The board is elected for the period of 4 (four) years by the Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board can
remove from office the entire Board in corpore or its individual members before the expiry of their term. If
individual members of the board are elected, they shall serve only until the expiry of the term of office of the
current board. The board elects the chairman of the board from among its members.

The board elect and removes from office the head of the Company, fixes his salary and sets other terms of
the employment contract, approves his job description, provides incentives for him and impose penalties;
makes other decisions assigned to the competence of the board by the Law on Companies of the Republic of
Lithuania, articles of association or the company or resolutions of the general meeting of shareholders.

The general manager is the head of the Company. The head of the Company is a sole person management
body of the Company organising its activities. Powers and responsibilities of the administration members of
the Company are established in the order of the director general.

20.1. Data about the committees in the Company
(Committee members: full names, information on participation in the authorised capital of the issuer,
beginning and end of each person's term of office, workplaces, powers, main functions)

On 21 February 2013 the Supervisory Board elected Valerija Stankiiniené, deputy chief accountant of the
company, and Inga Dragiinien¢, senior economist of the Economic and Planning Division of the Financial
Department of the Company, as the members of the Audit Committee.

On 10 April 2013, the Supervisory Board appointed the Supervisory Board member Edita GudiSauskiené to
the independent members of the Company's Audit Committee. It carries out the activities of the Audit
Committee since 11 April 2013.

Full name Position title Beginning of term End of term*

Audit Committee,

Edita Gudisauskiené . 11 April 2013 30 April 2016
independent member

Inga Dragiiniené Audit Committee, member 21 February 2013 30 April 2016

Valerija Stanktiniené  Audit Committee, member 21 February 2013 30 April 2016

* The term of office of the Audit Committee coincides with the term of office of the Supervisory Board of
the Company.

In carrying out its activities, the Audit Committee follows the internal rules of procedure of the Company’s
Audit Committee approved by decision No 2013-1 of 21 February 2015 of the meeting of the Supervisory
Board of the Company. The Audit Committee performs its functions provided for in article 52 of the Law on
Audit of the Republic of Lithuania. In 2013, the Audit Committee met 6 times, the attendance of the Audit
Committee members was 100 per cent.

Inga Dragtiniené. Senior economist of the Economics and Planning Division of the Financial Department of
the Company. She held the position of the Audit Committee members from 18 August 2011. On January 3,
2012 was re-elected to the members of the Audit Committee and held the position until the withdrawal date
of the Supervisory Board, i.e. 28 September 2012. Higher university education, Kaunas University of
Technology, Master of Management Science in the field of Financial Management (2001). Workplaces in the
last 10 years, and positions held: 1998-10-15 — 2006-07-25 senior accountant of the company, 2006-07-26 —
2009-11-01 deputy senior accountant of UAB Pastaty Priezitiros Paslaugos, 2009-11-02 — 2010-05-07
referent of administration of UAB Pastaty Priezitros Paslaugos.

Holds no shares of the Company. No interest in the capital of the Lithuanian companies.

Valerija Stankiiniené. Deputy senior accountant of the company. Held the position of the Audit Committee
members from 18 August 2011, on 3 January 2012. Re-elected to the members of the Audit Committee and
held the position until the cancellation date of the Supervisory Board, i.e. 28 September 2012. Higher
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university education, Vilnius University, accounting specialty (1983). Workplaces in the last 10 years, and
positions held: 1995-02 — 2002-07 senior accountant of AB Silkas, 2003-02 — 2010-01 senior accountant of
UAB Arisbaltija.

Holds no shares of the Company. No interest in the capital of the Lithuanian companies.

Edita GudiSauskiené. Director of economics and finance of UAB Kauno autobusai, member of the
Supervisory Board of the Company. The Company's independent member of the Audit Committee, acting in
the Audit Committee since 11 April 2013. University education, Kaunas University of Technology, Faculty
of Mechanical Engineering — Master of Science of Thermal Engineering (1995), Faculty of Economics and
Management, Master of Science of Financial Management, (2001), Faculty of Social Sciences, Master of
Regional Development — Public Administration. Workplaces in the last 10 years, and positions held: 2000-
04-02 — 2006-08-30 senior accountant in children the right products and service of Kaunas City
Municipality, 2006-08-31 — 2007-03-29 senior specialist, 2007-2010 Deputy Mayor of Kaunas City
Municipality on the matters of communities and social issues, 2010-2011 director of administration of
Kaunas City Municipality, 2011-2012 Deputy Minister of Agriculture of Republic of Lithuania.

21. Members of collegiate bodies, Company’s manager, chief financier

(full name, information on participation in the authorised capital of the issuer, beginning and end dates of the term of office of each
person, information on the amounts of money calculated by the issuer during the reporting period, other transferred assets and
granted guarantees for those persons in total, and average values per one member of the Company’s Supervisory Board, board
member, members of administration (head of the Company, senior financier), information on participation in the activities of other
companies, institutions and organisations (names of the company, institution and organisation, and position title)

21.1. Information about the members of the Company ‘s Supervisory Board:

Members of the Supervisory Board of the Company as at 31 December 2013:

Full name Position title Beginning of term End of term
Andrius Kup&inskas ggg'rgma” BB SUpER RO 28 September 2012 30 April 2016
Stanislovas Member of the Supervisory 28 September 2012 30 April 2016
Buskevicius Board
Edita Gudigauskiené '\B"(f;r‘é’er 97U STEEIED 28 September 2012 30 April 2016
Ausra Rugiené 'E\:'Oe:r"ger of the Supervisory 28 September 2012 30 April 2016
Artiiras Tepelys 'E\g"oea”r‘g’er i U8 TR 28 September 2012 30 April 2016
Valys Venslovas Member of the Supervisory 15 July 2013 30 April 2016
Board
Gediminas Member of the Supervisory .
Jukauskas Board 28 September 2012 30 April 2016

The Company's Supervisory Board consists of seven members who are also the members of the Kaunas City
Council, as they partially represent the controlling shareholder, i.e. Kaunas City Municipality (all members
of the Supervisory Board are the members of Kaunas City Council) holding 92.82 per cent of the Company's
voting shares.

A total of 4 meetings of the Supervisory Board were held during the year 2013. More than 2/3 members of
the Supervisory Board attended all the meetings.
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Andrius Kup¢inskas. Kaunas City Mayor. Member of the Kaunas City Municipality
Council.

Chairman of the Strategic Planning Commission of Kaunas City Council, Member of the
Board of Academic Affairs, representative of the Business Council of Kaunas City
Municipality, since 2007 the board member of the Lithuanian Association of Local
Authorities (LSA), member of the Kaunas Regional Development Council (KRPT) and
member of the EU Committee of the Regions.

Holds no shares of the Company. No interest in the capital of the Lithuanian companies.

Stanislovas Buskevi¢ius. Deputy Mayor Kaunas city. Member of the Kaunas City AL
Municipality Council. Member of the Culture and Art Committee of Kaunas City Council, 4
Chairman of the Award Council.

Holds no shares of the Company. No interest in the capital of the Lithuanian companies.

1

Edita Gudisauskiené. Chief Officer of Economics and Finances of UAB Kauno
autobusai, independent member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Member of
the Kaunas City Municipality Council. Chairman of the Budget and Finance Committee of
Kaunas City Municipality. Chairman of Lampédziai community centre.

Holds no shares of the Company. No interest in the capital of the Lithuanian companies.
Ausra Ruciené. Lawyer. Member of the Kaunas City Municipality Council. Chairman 1
of City Development, Investments and Tourism Committee of Kaunas City
Municipality Council, member of Anticorruption Commission, member of Strategic ' ' \

Planning Commission, member of the Academic Issue Service.
Holds no shares of the Company. Shareholder of UAB Rucenta.

Arturas Tepelys. Member of the Kaunas City Municipality Council. Member of Social,
) Health and Education Committee of Kaunas City Municipality Council, member of
W 3N Control Committee, member of Administration Commission, member of Anticorruption
Commission. Deputy Director of the Company's branch Jurbarko Silumos Tinklai.
Salary charged in 2013 totalled 65 thousand litas, no charged bonuses, no transfer of
other assets and no granted guarantees.
Holds no shares of the Company. Does not participate in the equity of other companies.

Gediminas Zukauskas. Operational director of UAB Kauno vandenys. Member of the ! w
Kaunas City Municipality Council. Chairman of Self-Government and Communities y

Development Committee of Kaunas City Municipality Council, member of Titles ; fou,
Contriving and Perpetuation of Memories Commission, member of Privatization &;/
Commission, member of Strategic Planning Commission. Chairman of Panemuné
Community centre. ‘&
Holds no shares of the Company. No interest in the capital of the Lithuanian companies.

Valys Venslovas. Technical director of UAB Kauno vandenys. Kaunas City Council member,
chairman of the Education and Sports Committee of Kaunas City Council, member of the
Control Committee, member of the vote counting commission, member of the Traffic Safety
Commission, member of the Strategic Planning Commission, member of the Court Decisions
and Orders Control Committee. Representative of Kaunas City Municipality at Kaunas City
Tripartite Council. Board member of International Hunting Club Safari.

Member of Company‘s Supervisory Board from 15 July 2013 till 6 January 2014.
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Holds no shares of the Company. No interest in the capital of the Lithuanian companies.

During the reporting period, the members of Supervisory Board were not charged any sums of money
(salary, bonuses), had no transfers of other assets and granted no guarantees.

Following the decision of the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders of 6 January 2014, the member
of the supervisory board Valys Venslovas was revoked, and Zidriinas Gar§va was elected to the members of
the Supervisory Board of the Company. Zidriinas Gar$va holds the office of the members of the Supervisory
Board of the Company from the date of his election.

Full name Position title Beginning of term End of term

Member of the Supervisory 6 January 2014 30 April 2016

Zidriinas Gar$va
Board

Zidriinas Gar§va. Member of the Kaunas City Municipality Council. Chairman of the City
Facility Committee of Kaunas City Council, Chairman of the Privatisation Commission,
Member of the Strategic Planning Commission, representative of Kaunas City Municipality
in the Business Council.

Holds no shares of the Company. No interest in the capital of the Lithuanian companies.

21.2. Information on about the members of the Company‘s Management Board
As at 31 December 2013 the members of the Company ‘s Management Board were as follows:

Full name Position title Beginning of term End of term

Chairman of the Management

Valdas LukoSevi¢ius Board 28 September 2012 30 April 2016
Sigitas Groblys Eﬂzelitgeﬁ:‘:r']?g%gf; e 28 September 2012 30 April 2016
Juozas Augutis ||\3/Ioe;1§)er of the Management 28 September 2012 30 April 2016
Rimantas Bakas g;;]ger 5 b TR BT 28 September 2012 30 April 2016

Saulius Megkauskas 'I\B/Ioea?r](?er of the Management 5 oo yomber 2012 30 April 2016

Vaclovas Mikkinis '\B":;r‘g’er of the Management 5 oo tomber 2012 30 April 2016
Mindaugas Varza g"(f;r‘é’er of the Management 5 oo tomber 2012 30 April 2016

The Company held 35 board meetings in 2013. More than 2/3 members of the Management Board attended
all the sessions.

(’ \  Valdas LukoSevi¢ius. Doctor of technical sciences. Manager of Strategy and
W= e ) Investment Projects division of the Company till 13 February 2014. Chairman of the
¥ ©  Company‘s Management Board from 20 September 2012. President of the Lithuanian
> .l Energy Consultants Association (LEKA). Associated Professor of Thermal and
g Nuclear Energy Department of Kaunas University of Technology (KUT).
h i Wik
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Holds no shares of the Company. No interest in the capital of the Lithuanian companies.
Salary charged in 2013 totalled 49 thousand litas, no charged bonuses, no transfer of other assets and no
granted guarantees.

Sigitas Groblys. Partner, Law Firm Foresta Business Law Group. Member of the ;q
Company‘s Management Board since 28 September 2012. UAB Litpirma board member, &

Board Chairman of Gintaras Steponavicius Support Fund. - .
Holds no shares of the Company. No interest in the capital of the Lithuanian companies. j

During the reporting period, the board member did not receive any sums of money Y
(salary, bonuses), had no transfers of other assets and no guarantees. “

Juozas Augutis. Professor. Vice-Rector of Vytautas Magnus University. Professor at
Mathematics and Statistics Department, Vytautas Magnus University (VMU). Member
of the Company‘s Management Board since 28 September 2012. Full member of the
S Lithuanian Academy of Sciences, FP6 and FP7 expert, Expert of the Lithuanian
» Council of Science, Expert of the Lithuanian State Science and Studies Foundation,
‘x . manager of the Energy Security Centre of Vytautas Magnus University (VMU), Safety
Committee chairman of Ignalina NPP, member of the editorial board of magazines
Energetika, Journal of Civil Engineering Management and Mathematics and Mathematical Modelling,
member of the Lithuanian Mathematics Informatics and Lithuanian Energy Institute councils, member of the
European Safety Reliability and Data Association ESREDA SRA, Senate and Board member of Vytautas
Magnus University (VMU), member of the Lithuanian Society of Mathematicians and Statisticians
Association. Chairman of the group panel the National Research Programme “Sustainable Energy” and
Chairman of the group panel the National Research Programme “Energy for the Future”.
Holds no shares of the Company. No interest in the capital of the Lithuanian companies.
During the reporting period, the board member did not receive any sums of money (salary, bonuses), had no
transfers of other assets and no guarantees.

ac

Rimantas Bakas. Doctor of technical sciences. General Director of the Company. Member

PRy

of the Company Management Board since 2012 September 28. Member of the Lithuanian
Thermal Engineers Association, board member of Pl Kaunas Regional Energy Agency, A8 A
Scientific Council Member of the Lithuanian Energy Institute, Member of the Lithuanian ;.:
District Heating Association Council, Chairman of Master Qualification Committee of 4

the Thermal and Nuclear Energy Department of Kaunas University of Technology, ;
certified expert of the PET Lithuanian Committee on Energy approved by the Lithuanian ’
committee of the World Energy Council. Member of Company‘s Management Board A

from 3 May 2011 until 2 January 2012. In 2008, participated as a working group member in the development
of the study “Europe‘s Vulnerability to Energy Crises* presented to the European Commission.

Holds no shares of the Company. Does not participate in the equity of other companies.

Salary charged in 2013 totalled 148 thousand litas, no charged bonuses, no transfer of other assets and no
granted guarantees.

Saulius Meskauskas. Deputy Head of Energy Department of Kaunas City Municipality
Administration. Member of the Management Board of the Company since 28 September
2012.

Holds no shares of the Company. No interest in the capital of the Lithuanian companies.
During the reporting period, the board member did not receive any sums of money (salary,
bonuses), had no transfers of other assets and no guarantees.
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Vaclovas Miskinis. Habilitated Doctor. Head of Complex Energy Research Laboratory
of the Lithuanian Energy Institute, Prof., Dr Habil. Dr., Vice-Chairman of the Scientific
Council of the Lithuanian Energy Institute. Member of the Management Board of the
Company since 28 September 2012.

Holds no shares of the Company. No interest in the capital of the Lithuanian
companies.

During the reporting period, the board member did not receive any sums of money
(salary, bonuses), had no transfers of other assets and no guarantees.

Mindaugas Varza. Director at UAB Novrita. Director at UAB Kauno Verslo Grupé.
Member of the Management Board of the Company since 28 September 2012.

Holds no shares of the Company. No interest in the capital of the Lithuanian companies.
During the reporting period, the board member did not receive any sums of money (salary,
bonuses), had no transfers of other assets and no guarantees.

21.3. Information about the head and senior accountant of the Company:

Rimantas Bakas. Doctor of technical sciences. The Company's CEO since 24 November 2008, Member of
the Company Board since 28 September 2012. Member of the Lithuanian Thermal Engineers Association,
board member of Pl Kaunas Regional Energy Agency, Board Member of the Lithuanian Heat Suppliers
Association, Council Member of the Lithuanian Energy Institute, Chairman of Master Qualification
Committee of the Thermal and Nuclear Energy Department of Kaunas University of Technology, certified
expert of the PET Lithuanian Committee on Energy approved by the Lithuanian committee of the World
Energy Council. Member of the Company Board from free May 2011 to 2 January 2012. Higher university
education, Kaunas University of technology, 1985, industrial thermal energy engineer. Work experience and
positions in the last 10 years: Chief Project Manager of Strategy Division 2003-05 — 2006-01; Head of
Strategy Division — 2006-01 — 2008-11.

The Company's CEO Rimantas Bakas was awarded with letters of appreciation from the Lithuanian District
Heating Association (2007), Lithuanian Electricity Association (2008), Lithuanian Committee of World
Energy Council (2010), Minister of Energy of the Republic of Lithuania (2013), Chairman of the Seimas of
the Republic of Lithuania (2013), Lithuanian Committee of World Energy Council (2013), and the 600th
Anniversary medal of Kaunas City Municipality (2008), Medal of Honour of Lithuanian energy workers
(2011).

Holds no shares of the Company. Does not participate in the equity of other companies.

Violeta Staskiiniené. Company's Chief Financial Officer since 16 January 2003. University education,
Vilnius University, 1984, labour economics, profession — economist. Work experience and positions in the
last 10 years: 2003-01 — 2004-06 UAB Energijos realizacijos centras, chief accountant.

Holds 2 641 of the Company's shares, which represent less than 5 per cent of the authorised capital. Does not
participate in the equity of other companies.

The total amount of money incurred to the head of the company and the Chief Accountant during the year
2013 is 252.6 thousand litas, while the average amount per member — 126.3 thousand litas. No other assets
have been transferred, no guarantees granted.

22. All significant agreements, where the Issuer is one of the contractual parties, and which would
come into effect, would be subject to amendments or termination in case of changes in controls of the
Issuer, also their impact, except for cases where due to the nature of agreements, the disclosure of such
agreements would cause significant damages to the Issuer

None.
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23. All agreements of the Issuer and its managerial body members or employees, which provide for
compensation in case of their resignation or termination of employment on no grounds or in case their
employment is terminated due to changes in controls of the Issuer

None.
24.  Information on major transactions with related parties

There were no larger individual transactions. More information is presented in Note 25 of the explanatory
notes to financial statements.

25. Information about harmful transactions concluded on behalf of the Issuer during the reporting
period (not complying with the Company's objectives, normal market conditions, detrimental to the
interests of shareholders and other interest groups etc.) which were or are likely to have an adverse
effect on the Issuer's activities and (or) performance in the future, as well as information on
transactions entered into in a conflict of interest between the Issuer’s management, controlling
shareholders or other related parties' obligations to the Issuer and their private interests and (or)

other duties
(It is necessary to disclose the substance matter of significant transactions, the nature of conflicts of interest and their impact on the
transaction)

None.

26. Information on compliance with the Governance Code of Companies and the Company’s
corporate social initiatives and policies

Information about compliance with the corporate governance code is presented in Annex 1 to the annual
report. Annual reports on the Company’s corporate social initiatives and policies are published on the
Company's website.

217. Data on publicised information

In performing its obligations under the applicable legislation regulating the securities market, the Issuer has
announced the following information over the past 12 months over the GlobeNewswire news distribution
service, in which notices are disseminated within the European Union. Such information was also posted on
the website of the Issuer. All information is available on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius websites
(http://www.baltic.omxgroup.com/?id=3304) and the issuer’s website (http://www.kaunoenergija.lt).

Title Notice category Language Time

Information about the notice of Vilnius Court of Notice of stock event English, 2014-01-31 14:27:10

Commercial Arbitration (addition) Lithuanian

Informatlo_n aboqt thg notice of Vilnius Court of Notice of stock event E_ngllsh,_ 2014-01-31 14:00:59

Commercial Arbitration Lithuanian

12-month economic performance in 2013 Notice of stock event English, 2014-01-30 17:43:07
Lithuanian

Information on the beginning of consultations . . English, .

with UAB Fortum Heat Lietuva Oiier e Lithuanian ~ 2014-01-2313:04:27

Resolutions of the extraordinary general . English, 0. .

meeting of shareholders of AB Kauno Energija Notice of stock event Lithuanian 2014-01-0709:11:48

Convening the extraordinary general meeting of Enalish

shareholders of AB Kauno Energija and draft Notice of stock event Lit%uan’ian 2013-12-12 14:23:10

resolutions

Financial forr_r_1at|on of 9 months of 2013 of AB Interim information Epgllsh,_ 2013-11-06 12:52:36

Kauno Energija Lithuanian
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Title Notice category Language Time
9-month economic performance in 2013 Notice of stock event Epgllsh,_ 2013-10-28 10:00:43
Lithuanian

Interim formgyon of the 1st half of 2013 of AB Interim information E_ngllsh,_ 2013-08-23 14:54:27

Kauno Energija Lithuanian

Financial formatlg_n of the 1st half of 2013 of Notice of stock event E_ngllsh,_ 2013-08-02 13:06:50

AB Kauno Energija Lithuanian

Economic performance in the 1st half of 2013 Notice of stock event English, 2013-07-30 14:17:50
Lithuanian

Resolutions of the extraordinary general meeting Notice of stock event English, 2013-07-15 16:49:20

of shareholders of AB Kauno Energija Lithuanian

Changes in the agenda of the extraordinary Notice of stock event English, 2013-07-03 09:24:04

general meeting of shareholders of AB Kauno Lithuanian

Energija

Convening the extraordinary general meeting of  Notice of stock event English, 2013-06-2017:55:52

shareholders of AB Kauno Energija and draft Lithuanian

resolutions

Financial formation of the 1st quarter of 2013 of  Interim information English, 2013-06-0317:28:56

AB Kauno Energija Lithuanian

On the repeated tendering of the sale of the Notice of stock event English, 2013-05-24 12:54:52

subsidiary share portfolio Lithuanian

Avrbitration claim of UAB Kauno Termofikacijos Notice of stock event English, 2013-05-07 17:34:02

Elektriné Lithuanian

On the announced tendering of the sale of the Notice of stock event English,  2013-05-06 17:05:14

subsidiary shares Lithuanian

Resolutions of the ordinary general meeting of Notice of stock event English, 2013-04-30 15:51:34

shareholders of AB Kauno Energija Lithuanian

Economic performance in the 1st quarter of 2013 Notice of stock event English,  2013-04-25 17:24:48
Lithuanian

On the sales procedures of subsidiary Notice of stock event English, 2013-04-23 16:58:55
Lithuanian

Information about the notice of Vilnius Court of  Notice of stock event English, 2013-04-22 17:12:33

Commercial Arbitration Lithuanian

On the execution of decision of Vilnius Court of  Notice of stock event English, 2013-04-18 14:46:10

Commercial Arbitration in Case No 203 Lithuanian

On the completion of the subsidiary separation Notice of stock event English,  2013-04-18 13:42:09

procedure by way of reorganisation Lithuanian

Changes in the agenda of the ordinary general Notice of stock event English, 2013-04-17 15:12:31

meeting of shareholders of AB Kauno Energija Lithuanian

Convening the ordinary general meeting of Notice of stock event English,  2013-04-05 19:01:07

shareholders of AB Kauno Energija and draft Lithuanian

resolutions

Audited operational result of 2012 Notice of stock event English, 2013-04-05 14:48:46
Lithuanian

Strategic directions of AB Kauno Energija for Notice of stock event English, 2013-03-07 16:25:12

the regulatory period of 2013-2016 Lithuanian

On the effects of situation in AB Ukio bankas to  Notice of stock event English, 2013-02-13 15:51:16

the activities of AB Kauno Energija Lithuanian

Set of interim financial statements of 12 months  Interim information English, 2013-02-11 16:58:07

of the year 2012 Lithuanian
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Title Notice category
12-month economic performance results in 2012  Notice of stock event

AB Kauno Energija and Lietuvos energija, AB Notice of stock event
signed the memorandum on Petra$itnai
cogeneration plant

General Manager of AB Kauno Energija

Language Time

English, 2013-01-28 16:35:25
Lithuanian

English, 2013-01-11 16:07:09
Lithuanian

Rimantas Bakas

AB KAUNO ENERGIJA
Company number 235014830
Raudondvario pl. 84, 47179 Kaunas, Lithuania
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Annex 1

27. AB Kauno Energija report on the compliance with the Governance Code for the companies listed on the

Stock Exchange NASDAQ OMX Vilnius

AB Kauno Energija, following Article 21 paragraph 3 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania and
item 20.5 of the Trading Rules of the Vilnius Stock Exchange, discloses its compliance with the Governance Code,
approved by the Stock Exchange NASDAQ OMX, Vilnius, for the companies listed on the regulated market, and

its specific provisions.

PRINCIPLES/ RECOMMENDATIONS

YES/NO
INOT
APPLIC
ABLE

COMMENTARY

Principle I: Basic Provisions

optimizing over time shareholder value.

The overriding objective of a company should be to operate in common interests of all the shareholders by

1.1. A company should adopt and make public
the company’s development strategy and
objectives by clearly declaring how the company
intends to meet the interests of its shareholders
and optimize shareholder value.

Yes

The Company prepares and revises the strategies
of production and heat supply system
development every year. Investment plans are
being presented for ratifying to Kaunas city,
Kaunas region and Jurbarkas region
municipalities as well as to The National Control
Commission for Prices and Energy (NCC). The
provisions of the Company’s strategy which
contain no confidential information and the
decisions-making process, as well as the
Company’s development policies and objectives
are published in the Company’s annual reports
and company’s website. Periodic reports and
notifications are disclosing the directions for
Company’s growth. Those reports, notification
on material event and notifications are presented
by the Company’s managers and are published
in press.

1.2. All management bodies of a company
should act in furtherance of the declared
strategic objectives in view of the need to
optimize shareholder value.

Yes

The Company's board accepts strategic decisions
and approves Company’s activities strategy.

The Company's board has also created a long-
term and short-term Company’s development
strategic objectives. Company’s Supervisory
Board renders responses and suggestions for
shareholders regarding Company’s activities
strategy. The management of the Company, the
heads of the areas concerned are making their
every effort in order to implement those
objectives — the structure of the Company and of
the subdivision of the Group is optimised.

1.3. A company’s supervisory and management
bodies should act in close co-operation in order
to attain maximum benefit for the company and
its shareholders.

Yes

The Supervisory Board and the Management
Board are formed. All the bodies of the
Company (Manager, the Management board and
the Supervisory board) aim to implement this
recommendation, mutual meetings of the
Management board and the Supervisory board
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are held.

1.4. A company’s supervisory and management
bodies should ensure that the rights and interests

of persons other than the company’s
shareholders  (e.g. employees, creditors,
suppliers, clients, local community),

participating in or connected with the company’s
operation, are duly respected.

Yes

The Company's supervisory and managing
bodies aim to ensure all interests of the persons
concerned. The Company’s management and the
separate areas managers spend a lot of time
communicating with  customers, suppliers,
representatives of the municipality, in order to
find optimal solutions, related to the Company's
activities.

Company’s politics in respect of employees,
customers and local society is stated in
Company’s Social Responsibility politics and
implementation of this politics is described in
Company’s Social Responsibility reports.

The specific of the Company ensures that
consumers (customers) are periodically invited
to attend meetings where the relevant issues
related to the activity of the Company are
discussed. In addition the “Open doors days” are
being arranged in order to better inform
customers and to ensure closer relations with
them.

Principle 11: The corporate governance framework

The corporate governance framework should ensure the strategic guidance of the company, the effective
oversight of the company’s management bodies, an appropriate balance and distribution of functions
between the company’s bodies, protection of the shareholders’ interests.

2.1. Besides obligatory bodies provided for in
the Law on Companies of the Republic of
Lithuania — a general shareholders’ meeting and
the chief executive officer, it is recommended
that a company should set up both a collegial
supervisory body and a collegial management
body. The setting up of collegial bodies for
supervision and management facilitates clear
separation of management and supervisory
functions in the company, accountability and
control on the part of the chief executive officer,
which, in its turn, facilitate a more efficient and
transparent management process.

Yes

The General Meeting of Shareholders and the
Company’s general manager are compulsory
management bodies of the Company set by the
Law on Joint Stock Companies of the Republic
of Lithuania. The collegial supervisory body -
the Supervisory Board and the collegial
management body — the Management Board are
also being formed.

Division of Company’s management bodies’
competences and responsibility is determinated
in Company’s statute, regulations of
management bodies’ activities, are presented by
the Company’s management and are published
Company’s web site, and managers job
description.

2.2. A collegial management body is responsible
for the strategic management of the company
and performs other key functions of corporate
governance. A collegial supervisory body is
responsible for the effective supervision of the
company’s management bodies.

Yes

A collegial management body of the Company —
the Management Board is responsible for the
strategic management of the Company and also
performs other key functions of the Company
management. A collegial supervisory body — the
Supervisory Board is responsible for the
effective supervision of activities of the
Company’s managing bodies.
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2.3. Where a company chooses to form only one | Not The Supervisory Board and the Management
collegial body, it is recommended that it should | applicable | Board is being formed.

be a supervisory body, i.e. the supervisory
board. In such a case, the supervisory board is
responsible for the effective monitoring of the
functions performed by the company’s chief
executive officer.

2.4. The collegial supervisory body to be elected | Yes The Supervisory Board of the Company is
by the general shareholders’ meeting should be elected and it acts partly in compliance with the
set up and should act in the manner defined in principles Il and IV set out in the procedures
Principles 11l and 1. Where a company should and basic principles for the requirements are not
decide not to set up a collegial supervisory body violated.

but rather a collegial management body, i.e. the
board, Principles 11l and IV should apply to the
board as long as that does not contradict the
essence and purpose of this body.*

2.5. Company’s management and supervisory | Yes According to the Statute of the Company the
bodies should comprise such number of board Supervisory Board of 7 (seven) members is
(executive directors) and supervisory (non- elected and the Supervisory Board elects the
executive directors) board members that no Management Board. It also is formed of 7
individual or small group of individuals can (seven) members.

dominate decision-making on the part of these

bodies.?

2.6. Non-executive directors or members of the | Yes The Supervisory Board of the Company is
supervisory board should be appointed for elected for 4 (four) years. According to the
specified terms subject to individual re-election, Statute of the Company and to the practice it is
at maximum intervals provided for in the not forbidden to re-elect the single members of
Lithuanian legislation with a view to ensuring the Supervisory Board for the new term
necessary  development of  professional (Supervisory Board member’s number of terms
experience and sufficiently frequent of office is not limited). Also the General
reconfirmation of their status. A possibility to meeting of shareholders is able to recall the
remove them should also be stipulated however Supervisory Board in-corpore or its individual
this procedure should not be easier than the members before the end of term of Supervisory
removal procedure for an executive director or a Board and the member of Supervisory Board is
member of the management board. able to resign before the end of term giving a 14

days written warning.

! Provisions of Principles Il and IV are more applicable to those instances when the general shareholders’ meeting elects the supervisory
board, i.e. a body that is essentially formed to ensure oversight of the company’s board and the chief executive officer and to represent the
company’s shareholders. However, in case the company does not form the supervisory board but rather the board, most of the
recommendations set out in Principles 111 and IV become important and applicable to the board as well. Furthermore, it should be noted that
certain recommendations, which are in their essence and nature applicable exclusively to the supervisory board (e.g. formation of the
committees), should not be applied to the board, as the competence and functions of these bodies according to the Law on Companies of the
Republic of Lithuania (Official Gazette, 2003, No 123-5574) are different. For instance, item 3.1 of the Code concerning oversight of the
management bodies applies to the extent it concerns the oversight of the chief executive officer of the company, but not of the board itself;
item 4.1 of the Code concerning recommendations to the management bodies applies to the extent it relates to the provision of
recommendations to the company’s chief executive officer; item 4.4 of the Code concerning independence of the collegial body elected by
the general meeting from the company’s management bodies is applied to the extent it concerns independence from the chief executive
officer.

2 Definitions ‘executive director’ and ‘non-executive director’ are used in cases when a company has only one collegial body.
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2.7. Chairman of the collegial body elected by
the general shareholders’ meeting may be a
person whose current or past office constitutes
no obstacle to conduct independent and
impartial supervision. Where a company should
decide not to set up a supervisory board but
rather the board, it is recommended that the
chairman of the board and chief executive
officer of the company should be a different
person. Former company’s chief executive
officer should not be immediately nominated as
the chairman of the collegial body elected by the
general shareholders’ meeting. When a company
chooses to departure from these
recommendations, it should furnish information
on the measures it has taken to ensure
impartiality of the supervision.

Yes

The Chairman of the Company’s Supervisory
Board hasn’t been the General Manager of the
Company. His current or past position is not an
obstacle for independent and impartial
supervision.

Principle III: The order of the formation of a collegial body to be elected by a general shareholders’

meeting

The order of the formation a collegial body to be elected by a general shareholders’ meeting should ensure
representation of minority shareholders, accountability of this body to the shareholders and objective
monitoring of the company’s operation and its management bodies.?

3.1. The mechanism of the formation of a Yes The mechanism of forming of the Supervisory
collegial body to be elected by a general Board, which corresponds to the requirements of
shareholders’ meeting (hereinafter in this the Law on Joint Stock Companies of the
Principle referred to as the ‘collegial body’) Republic of Lithuania, ensures the objective
should ensure objective and fair monitoring of supervision of the collegial body.

the company’s management bodies as well as

representation of minority shareholders.

3.2. Names and surnames of the candidates to | Yes Information regarding candidates for the

become members of a collegial body,
information about their education, qualification,
professional background, positions taken and
potential conflicts of interest should be disclosed
early enough before the general shareholders’
meeting so that the shareholders would have
sufficient time to make an informed voting
decision. All factors affecting the candidate’s
independence, the sample list of which is set out
in Recommendation 3.7, should be also
disclosed. The collegial body should also be
informed on any subsequent changes in the
provided information. The collegial body
should, on yearly basis, collect data provided in
this item on its members and disclose this in the
company’s annual report.

members of Supervisory Board is being
disclosed for shareholders even before and

during General meeting of shareholders.
Information  regarding  their  education,
gualifications, professional experience,

occupation and other important professional
obligations is being presented in Company’s
annual and interim reports and publicized in
Company’s website as well. It is foreseen in the
work regulations of the Supervisory Board that
every member of the body has to inform the
Chairman of the Supervisory Board and the
Company about his data changes and this data is
being presented in the Company's annual and
interim reports and publicized in Company’s
website as well.

3 Attention should be drawn to the fact that in the situation where the collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeting is the
board, it is natural that being a management body it should ensure oversight not of all management bodies of the company, but only of the
single-person body of management, i.e. the company’s chief executive officer. This note shall apply in respect of item 3.1 as well.

103



3.3. Should a person be nominated for members | Not The shareholders of the Company by offering
of a collegial body, such nomination should be | applicable | candidates for the collegial body must ensure
followed by the disclosure of information on that these members have the required
candidate’s particular competences relevant to competence. The Company publishes only the
his/her service on the collegial body. In order information which is provided by the members
shareholders and investors are able to ascertain of the collegial body. Information which is
whether member’s competence is further presented in the annual and in interim report
relevant, the collegial body should, in its annual (data on participation of the issuer’s statute
report, disclose the information on its capital, data on participation in other
composition and particular competences of undertakings, bodies and organisations (title of
individual members which are relevant to their the company, institution or organization and
service on the collegial body. personal  occupation), is  publicized in
Company’s website.
3.4 In order to maintain a proper balance in | Yes According to the Company's structure and
terms of the current qualifications possessed by activities, the main shareholder of the Company
its members, the desired composition of the introduces candidates for members of the
collegial body shall be determined with regard to collegial body with relevant qualifications. The
the company’s structure and activities, and have Collegial body as a wunit has a versatile
this periodically evaluated. The collegial body knowledge, opinions and experience enabling
should ensure that it is composed of members them to perform their tasks properly. Audit
who, as a whole, have the required diversity of Committee as a unit, has up-to-date knowledge
knowledge, judgment and experience to and relevant experience in finance, accounting,
complete their tasks properly. The members of and (or) auditing.
the audit committee, collectively, should have a
recent knowledge and relevant experience in the
fields of finance, accounting and/or audit for the
stock exchange listed companies. At least one of
the members of the remuneration committee
should have knowledge of and experience in the
field of remuneration policy.
3.5. All new members of the collegial body | Yes In the practice of the Company all the new
should be offered a tailored program focused on members of Supervisory Board are regularly
introducing a member with his/her duties, informed about Company’s activities and its
corporate organization and activities. The alterations, as well as substantial changes of
collegial body should conduct an annual review legal acts, regulating Company’s activities and
to identify fields where its members need to of circumstances, making an influence on
update their skills and knowledge. Company’s activities at the sessions of
Supervisory Board of individually if there is
such need or upon request of members.
3.6. In order to ensure that all material conflicts | No The Company does not make any influence on
of interest related with a member of the collegial the composition of the collegial body.
body are resolved properly, the collegial body Candidates to the members of the Company’s
should comprise a sufficient' number of collegial body are offered by the main
independent® members. shareholder.

% The Code does not provide for a concrete number of independent members to comprise a collegial body. Many codes in foreign countries
fix a concrete number of independent members (e.g. at least 1/3 or 1/2 of the members of the collegial body) to comprise the collegial body.
However, having regard to the novelty of the institution of independent members in Lithuania and potential problems in finding and electing
a concrete number of independent members, the Code provides for a more flexible wording and allows the companies themselves to decide
what number of independent members is sufficient. Of course, a larger number of independent members in a collegial body is encouraged
and will constitute an example of more suitable corporate governance.
® It is notable that in some companies all members of the collegial body may, due to a very small number of minority shareholders, be elected
by the votes of the majority shareholder or a few major shareholders. But even a member of the collegial body elected by the majority
shareholders may be considered independent if he/she meets the independence criteria set out in the Code.
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3.7. A member of the collegial body should be
considered to be independent only if he is free of
any business, family or other relationship with
the company, its controlling shareholder or the
management of either, that creates a conflict of
interest such as to impair his judgment. Since all
cases when member of the collegial body is
likely to become dependent are impossible to
list, moreover, relationships and circumstances
associated  with  the  determination  of
independence may vary amongst companies and
the best practices of solving this problem are yet
to evolve in the course of time, assessment of
independence of a member of the collegial body
should be based on the contents of the
relationship and circumstances rather than their
form. The key criteria for identifying whether a
member of the collegial body can be considered
to be independent are the following:

1) He/she is not an executive director or
member of the board (if a collegial body
elected by the general shareholders’
meeting is the supervisory board) of the
company or any associated company and
has not been such during the last five
years;

2) He/she is not an employee of the company
or some any company and has not been
such during the last three years, except for
cases when a member of the collegial body
does not belong to the senior management
and was elected to the collegial body as a
representative of the employees;

3) He/she is not receiving or has been not
receiving significant additional
remuneration from the company or
associated company other than
remuneration for the office in the collegial
body. Such additional remuneration
includes participation in share options or
some other performance based pay
systems; it does not include compensation
payments for the previous office in the
company (provided that such payment is
no way related with later position) as per
pension plans (inclusive of deferred
compensations);

4) He/she is not a controlling shareholder or
representative of such shareholder (control
as defined in the Council Directive
83/349/EEC Article 1 Part 1);

5) He/she does not have and did not have any
material business relations with the
company or associated company within the

No

Company’s Supervisory Board, elected on
August, 2012 consists of seven dependent
members who are also members of Kaunas city
municipality council and they meet criteria
indicated in item 3.7 of recommendations,
except criteria 4, because they partly represent
controlling shareholder, i.e. Kaunas city
municipality having 92.82 % of votes.
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past year directly or as a partner,
shareholder, director or superior employee
of the subject having such relationship. A
subject is considered to have business
relations when it is a major supplier or
service provider (inclusive of financial,
legal, advisory and consulting services),
major client or organization receiving
significant payments from the company or
its group;

6) He/she is not and has not been, during the
last three years, partner or employee of the
current or former external audit company
of the company or associated company;

7) He/she is not an executive director or
member of the board in some other
company where executive director of the
company or member of the board (if a
collegial body elected by the general
shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory
board) is non-executive director or member
of the supervisory board, he/she may not
also have any other material relationships
with executive directors of the company
that arise from their participation in
activities of other companies or bodies;

8) He/she has not been in the position of a
member of the collegial body for over than
12 years;

9) He/she is not a close relative to an
executive director or member of the board
(if a collegial body elected by the general
shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory
board) or to any person listed in above
items 1 to 8. Close relative is considered to
be a spouse (common-law spouse),
children and parents.

3.8. The determination of what constitutes
independence is fundamentally an issue for the
collegial body itself to determine. The collegial
body may decide that, despite a particular
member meets all the criteria of independence
laid down in this Code, he cannot be considered
independent due to special personal or company-
related circumstances.
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3.9. Necessary information on conclusions the
collegial body has come to in its determination
of whether a particular member of the body
should be considered to be independent should
be disclosed. When a person is nominated to
become a member of the collegial body, the
company should disclose whether it considers
the person to be independent. When a particular
member of the collegial body does not meet one
or more criteria of independence set out in this
Code, the company should disclose its reasons
for nevertheless considering the member to be
independent. In addition, the company should
annually disclose which members of the
collegial body it considers to be independent.

Yes

The Company discloses dependence of the
members of Supervisory Board in this report.

3.10. When one or more criteria of independence
set out in this Code has not been met throughout
the year, the company should disclose its
reasons for considering a particular member of
the collegial body to be independent. To ensure
accuracy of the information disclosed in relation
with the independence of the members of the
collegial body, the company should require
independent  members to  have their
independence periodically re-confirmed.

Not
applicable

Information provided by members of the
Supervisory Board regarding their education,
qualifications, professional experience,
occupation and other important professional
obligations and their relations with the Company
is being presented in Company’s annual and
interim reports as well as in Company’s website.

3.11. In order to remunerate members of a
collegial body for their work and participation in
the meetings of the collegial body, they may be
remunerated from the company’s funds.’. The
general shareholders’ meeting should approve
the amount of such remuneration.

Not
applicable

The members of the Supervisory Board are not
remunerated from the Company’s funds. So, this
provision is not relevant for the Company.

Principle IV: The duties and liabilities of a collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeting

The corporate governance framework should ensure proper and effective functioning of the collegial body
elected by the general shareholders’ meeting, and the powers granted to the collegial body should ensure
effective monitoring’ of the company’s management bodies and protection of interests of all the

company’s shareholders.

4.1. The collegial body elected by the general
shareholders’ meeting (hereinafter in this
Principle referred to as the ‘collegial body’)
should ensure integrity and transparency of the
company’s financial statements and the control
system. The collegial body should issue
recommendations to the company’s

Yes

The Supervisory Board presents to the general
shareholders meeting their opinions and
proposals about the Company’s activities, Set of
the annual financial statements, profit allocation
project, the Company’s annual report, the
activity of the Company’s general manager and
the Management Board, and also carries out

® 1t is notable that currently it is not yet completely clear, in what form members of the supervisory board or the board may be remunerated
for their work in these bodies. The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania (Official Gazette, 2003, No 123-5574) provides that
members of the supervisory board or the board may be remunerated for their work in the supervisory board or the board by payment of
annual bonuses (tantiems) in the manner prescribed by Article 59 of this Law, i.e. from the company’s profit. The current wording, contrary
to the wording effective before 1 January 2004, eliminates the exclusive requirement that annual bonuses (tantiems) should be the only form
of the company’s compensation to members of the supervisory board or the board. So it seems that the Law contains no prohibition to
remunerate members of the supervisory board or the board for their work in other forms, besides bonuses, although this possibility is not
expressly stated either.
" See Footnote 3.
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management bodies and monitor and control other functions allotted to the Supervisory Board
the company’s management performance. competence regarding the Company’s and it’s
managing bodies activity supervision. The
Chairman of the Supervisory Board regularly
meets the Chairman of the Management Board
and the General Manager to discuss the events
or changes of the Company that have taken
place, also the essential questions of the
Company’s activity.

4.2. Members of the collegial body should act | Yes According to the knowledge of the Company all
in good faith, with care and responsibility for the members of the Supervisory Board are acting
the benefit and in the interests of the company in good faith in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders with due regard to the following the Company’s but not the own
interests of employees and public welfare. interests or interests of the third persons.

Independent members of the collegial body
should (a) under all circumstances maintain
independence of their analysis, decision-
making and actions (b) do not seek and accept
any unjustified privileges that might
compromise their independence, and (c)
clearly express their objections should a
member consider that decision of the collegial
body is against the interests of the company.
Should a collegial body have passed decisions
independent member has serious doubts about,
the member should make adequate
conclusions. Should an independent member
resign from his office, he should explain the
reasons in a letter addressed to the collegial
body or audit committee and, if necessary,
respective ~ company-not-pertaining  body
(institution).

4.3. Each member should devote sufficient | Yes The members of the Company’s Supervisory
time and attention to perform his duties as a Board devote enough time and pay enough
member of the collegial body. Each member of attention individually and collectively for the
the collegial body should limit other functions assigned to the competence of the
professional obligations of his (in particular Supervisory Board to carry properly. All the
any directorships held in other companies) in members of Supervisory Board took part in
such a manner they do not interfere with more than a half sessions of the Supervisory
proper performance of duties of a member of Board during Company’s financial year. A
the collegial body. In the event a member of quorum determined in all standard acts was
the collegial body should be present in less present in all sessions (was attended by more
than a half’ of the meetings of the collegial than 2/3 of the Supervisory Board members) of
body throughout the financial year of the Supervisory Board in 2013. Members of
company, shareholders of the company should Supervisory Board participating in session are
be notified. registered in session protocol and in list of

session participants.

8 See Footnote 3. In the event the collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeting is the board, it should provide
recommendations to the company’s single-person body of management, i.e. the company’s chief executive officer.
® It is notable that companies can make this requirement more stringent and provide that shareholders should be informed about failure to
participate at the meetings of the collegial body if, for instance, a member of the collegial body participated at less than 2/3 or 3/4 of the
meetings. Such measures, which ensure active participation in the meetings of the collegial body, are encouraged and will constitute an
example of more suitable corporate governance.
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4.4. Where decisions of a collegial body may | Yes The Company's Supervisory Board in its work

have a different effect on the company’s aim to behave honestly and impartially with all

shareholders, the collegial body should treat all of the Company's shareholders and by the

shareholders impartially and fairly. It should knowledge of the Company, there was no such

ensure that shareholders are properly informed kind of the contrary case. The Chairman of the

on the company’s affairs, strategies, risk Company's Supervisory Board and the Chairman

management and resolution of conflicts of of the Management Board harmonizes and

interest. The company should have a clearly coordinates interaction with Company’s General

established role of members of the collegial Manager and in the name of Supervisory and

body when communicating with and Management Boards communicates  with

committing to shareholders. shareholders, informs the shareholders about the
Company’s strategy, activity and other essential
questions.

45. It is recommended that transactions | Yes Company’s management bodies conclude and

(except insignificant ones due to their low approve their contracts following requirements

value or concluded when carrying out routine of legal acts and Company’s Statute. Members

operations in the company under usual of Company’s supervision or management

conditions), concluded between the company bodies or shareholders are not concluded any

and its shareholders, members of the contracts with Company, including of a big

supervisory or managing bodies or other value or concluded in non-standard conditions.

natural or legal persons that exert or may exert

influence on the company’s management

should be subject to approval of the collegial

body. The decision concerning approval of

such transactions should be deemed adopted

only provided the majority of the independent

members of the collegial body voted for such a

decision.

4.6. The collegial body should be independent | No As members of the Supervisory Board are partly

in passing decisions that are significant for the
company’s operations and strategy. Taken
separately, the collegial body should be
independent of the company’s management
bodies™. Members of the collegial body should
act and pass decisions without an outside
influence from the persons who have elected it.
Companies should ensure that the collegial
body and its committees are provided with
sufficient  administrative  and  financial
resources to discharge their duties, including
the right to obtain, in particular from
employees of the company, all the necessary
information or to seek independent legal,
accounting or any other advice on issues
pertaining to the competence of the collegial
body and its committees. When using the
services of a consultant with a view to
obtaining information on market standards for
remuneration  systems, the remuneration
committee should ensure that the consultant
concerned does not at the same time advice the

related with Kaunas city municipality because
they are members of Kaunas city municipality
council, all their decisions are made only
following Company’s interests. Company’s
Supervisory Board is independent from
Company’s management bodies.

Based on the Company’s opinion, the collegial
body and the Audit Committee are provided
with sufficient resources, including their right to
get all the necessary information, especially
from the employees of the Company.
Remuneration is not set up in the Company
because the salaries of the managers of the
Company, their deputies and of the chief
accountant are determined according to the
schedule approved by Kaunas municipality used
in the municipality enterprises.

The schedule of accounting and allocation of
employees’ variable part of salary is presented in
the annex of the Company’s collective
agreement. Determination of per cent of variable
part of salary, accounting and allocation of

19 In the event the collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeting is the board, the recommendation concerning its independence
from the company’s management bodies applies to the extent it relates to the independence from the company’s chief executive officer.
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human resources department, executive
directors or collegial management organs of
the company concerned.

variable part of salary is detailed in this
schedule.

4.7. Activities of the collegial body should be
organized in a manner that independent
members of the collegial body could have
major influence in relevant areas where
chances of occurrence of conflicts of interest
are very high. Such areas to be considered as
highly relevant are issues of nomination of
company’s  directors, determination  of
directors’ remuneration and control and
assessment of company’s audit. Therefore
when the mentioned issues are attributable to
the competence of the collegial body, it is
recommended that the collegial body should
establish nomination, remuneration, and audit
committees™. Companies should ensure that
the functions attributable to the nomination,
remuneration, and audit committees are carried
out. However they may decide to merge these
functions and set up less than three
committees. In such case a company should
explain in detail reasons behind the selection
of alternative approach and how the selected
approach complies with the objectives set forth
for the three different committees. Should the
collegial body of the company comprise small
number of members, the functions assigned to
the three committees may be performed by the
collegial body itself, provided that it meets
composition requirements advocated for the
committees and that adequate information is
provided in this respect. In such case
provisions of this Code relating to the
committees of the collegial body (in particular
with respect to their role, operation, and
transparency) should apply, where relevant, to

No

Starting from 31 March 2009 an Audit
Committee which has three members is formed
by the Supervisory Board.

The Nomination and the Remuneration
Committees are not formed in the Company.
The Remuneration Committee is not formed
according to the circumstances shown in the
article No. 4.6. In the future, the Company will
seek to implement this provision.

"“The Law of the Republic of Lithuania on Audit (Official Gazette, 2008, No 82-53233) determines that an Audit Committee
shall be formed in each public interest entity (including, but not limited to public companies whose securities are traded in the
regulated market of the Republic of Lithuania and/or any other member state ).
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the collegial body as a whole.

4.8. The key objective of the committees is to
increase efficiency of the activities of the
collegial body by ensuring that decisions are
based on due consideration, and to help
organize its work with a view to ensuring that
the decisions it takes are free of material
conflicts of interest. Committees should
exercise independent judgement and integrity
when exercising its functions as well as present
the collegial body with recommendations
concerning the decisions of the collegial body.
Nevertheless the final decision shall be
adopted by the collegial body. The
recommendation on creation of committees is
not intended, in principle, to constrict the
competence of the collegial body or to remove
the matters considered from the purview of the
collegial body itself, which remains fully
responsible for the decisions taken in its field
of competence.

Yes

Audit committee is being formed in the
Company. One member of this Committee is
independent. The Committee acts independently
and principally and renders recommendations to
collegial body. The Supervisory Board is
responsible for decisions made within its
competence.

4.9. Committees established by the collegial
body should normally be composed of at least
three  members. In companies with small
number of members of the collegial body, they
could exceptionally be composed of two
members. Majority of the members of each
committee should be constituted from
independent members of the collegial body. In
cases when the company chooses not to set up
a supervisory board, remuneration and audit
committees should be entirely comprised of
non-executive directors. Chairmanship and
membership of the committees should be
decided with due regard to the need to ensure
that committee membership is refreshed and
that undue reliance is not placed on particular
individuals. Chairmanship and membership of
the committees should be decided with due
regard to the need to ensure that committee

Yes

Audit Committee is formed in the Company,
consists of three members, one of whom is
independent. Term of office of this Committee
coincides with the term of office of the
Company's Supervisory Board.
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membership is refreshed and that undue
reliance is not placed on particular individuals.

4.10. Authority of each of the committees | No The Company does not follow this
should be determined by the collegial body. recommendation partly because there are no
Committees should perform their duties in line Committees of Nomination and Remuneration at
with authority delegated to them and inform the Company. The Remuneration Committee is
the collegial body on their activities and not formed according to the circumstances
performance on regular basis. Authority of shown in the article No 4.6. The information on
every committee stipulating the role and rights composition of the Audit Committee, the
and duties of the committee should be made number of sessions and attendance during the
public at least once a year (as part of the year 2013 is being announced in this Annual
information disclosed by the company Report.

annually on its corporate governance structures

and practices). Companies should also make

public annually a statement by existing

committees on their composition, number of

meetings and attendance over the year, and

their main activities. Audit committee should

confirm that it is satisfied with the

independence of the audit process and describe

briefly the actions it has taken to reach this

conclusion.

4.11. In order to ensure independence and No The Company does not follow this
impartiality of the committees, members of the recommendation partly because there are no
collegial body that are not members of the Committees of Nomination and Remuneration at
committee should commonly have a right to the Company. The Remuneration Committee is
participate in the meetings of the committee not formed according to the circumstances
only if invited by the committee. A committee shown in the article No 4.6.

may invite or demand participation in the

meeting of particular officers or experts.

Chairman of each of the committees should

have a possibility to maintain direct

communication with the shareholders. Events

when such are to be performed should be

specified in the regulations for committee

activities.

4.12. Nomination Committee. No The Company does not form the committee

4.12.1. Key functions of the nomination
committee should be the following:

* Identify and recommend, for the approval of
the collegial body, candidates to fill board
vacancies. The nomination committee should
evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the management body, prepare a
description of the roles and capabilities
required to assume a particular office, and
assess the time commitment expected.
Nomination committee can also consider
candidates to members of the collegial body
delegated by the shareholders of the company;
» Assess on regular basis the structure, size,
composition and performance of the
supervisory and management bodies, and make
recommendations to the collegial body

which would be obligated to perform all of the
tasks that were designated for the Nomination
Committee. These functions are partly being
performed by Supervisory Board and / or
Company’s Management Board.
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regarding the means of achieving necessary
changes;

* Assess on regular basis the skills, knowledge
and experience of individual directors and
report on this to the collegial body;

* Properly consider issues related to succession
planning;

* Review the policy of the management bodies
for selection and appointment of senior
management.

4.12.2. Nomination committee should consider
proposals by other parties, including
management and shareholders. When dealing
with issues related to executive directors or
members of the board (if a collegial body
elected by the general shareholders’ meeting is
the supervisory board) and senior management,
chief executive officer of the company should
be consulted by, and entitled to submit
proposals to the nomination committee.

4.13. Remuneration Committee. Not The Committee of Remuneration is not formed
4.13.1. Key functions of the remuneration | applicable | according to the circumstances shown in the
committee should be the following: article No 4.6.

* Make proposals, for the approval of the
collegial body, on the remuneration policy for
members of management bodies and executive
directors. Such policy should address all forms
of compensation, including the fixed
remuneration, performance-based
remuneration schemes, pension arrangements,
and  termination  payments.  Proposals
considering performance-based remuneration
schemes should be accompanied with
recommendations on the related objectives and
evaluation criteria, with a view to properly
aligning the pay of executive director and
members of the management bodies with the
long-term interests of the shareholders and the
objectives set by the collegial body;

» Make proposals to the collegial body on the
individual remuneration for executive directors
and member of management bodies in order
their remunerations are consistent with
company’s remuneration policy and the
evaluation of the performance of these persons
concerned. In doing so, the committee should
be properly informed on the total
compensation obtained by executive directors
and members of the management bodies from
the affiliated companies;

* Ensure that remuneration of individual
executive  directors or  members  of
management body is proportionate to the
remuneration of other executive directors or
members of management body and other staff
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members of the company;

* Periodically review the remuneration policy
for executive directors or members of
management body, including the policy
regarding share-based remuneration, and its
implementation;

* Make proposals to the collegial body on
suitable forms of contracts for executive
directors and members of the management
bodies;

* Assist the collegial body in overseeing how
the company complies with applicable
provisions regarding the remuneration-related
information disclosure (in particular the
remuneration policy applied and individual
remuneration of directors);

* Make general recommendations to the
executive directors and members of the
management bodies on the level and structure
of remuneration for senior management (as
defined by the collegial body) with regard to
the respective information provided by the
executive directors and members of the
management bodies.

4.13.2. With respect to stock options and other
share-based incentives which may be granted
to directors or other employees, the committee
should:

* Consider general policy regarding the
granting of the above mentioned schemes, in
particular stock options, and make any related
proposals to the collegial body;

» Examine the related information that is given
in the company’s annual report and documents
intended for the use during the shareholders
meeting;

* Make proposals to the collegial body
regarding the choice between granting options
to subscribe shares or granting options to
purchase shares, specifying the reasons for its
choice as well as the consequences that this
choice has.

4.13.3. Upon resolution of the issues
attributable to the competence of the
remuneration committee, the committee should
at least address the chairman of the collegial
body and/or chief executive officer of the
company for their opinion on the remuneration
of other executive directors or members of the
management bodies.

4.13.4. The remuneration committee should
report on the exercise of its functions to the
shareholders and be present at the annual
general meeting for this purpose.
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4.14. Audit Committee.

4.14.1. Key functions of the audit committee
should be the following:

* Observe the integrity of the financial
information provided by the company, in
particular by reviewing the relevance and
consistency of the accounting methods used by
the company and its group (including the
criteria for the consolidation of the accounts of
companies in the group);

* At least once a year review the systems of
internal control and risk management to ensure
that the key risks (inclusive of the risks in
relation with compliance with existing laws
and regulations) are properly identified,
managed and reflected in the information
provided;

* Ensure the efficiency of the internal audit
function, among other things, by making
recommendations on the selection,
appointment, reappointment and removal of
the head of the internal audit department and
on the budget of the department, and by
monitoring  the responsiveness of the
management  to its  findings and
recommendations. Should there be no internal
audit authority in the company, the need for
one should be reviewed at least annually;

» Make recommendations to the collegial body
related  with  selection,  appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external
auditor (to be done by the general
shareholders’ meeting) and with the terms and
conditions of his engagement. The committee
should investigate situations that lead to a
resignation of the audit company or auditor
and make recommendations on required
actions in such situations;

* Monitor independence and impartiality of the
external auditor, in particular by reviewing the
audit company’s compliance with applicable
guidance relating to the rotation of audit
partners, the level of fees paid by the company,
and similar issues. In order to prevent
occurrence of material conflicts of interest, the
committee, based on the auditor’s disclosed
inter alia data on all remunerations paid by the
company to the auditor and network, should at
all times monitor nature and extent of the non-
audit services. Having regard to the principals
and guidelines established in the 16 May 2002
Commission Recommendation 2002/590/EC,
the committee should determine and apply a
formal policy establishing types of non-audit

Yes

However, as of 31 March 2009 the Audit
Committee of three members was formed by the
Supervisory Board. The term of office of this
committee coincides with the term of office of
the Company's Supervisory Board. This
committee will seek to fully implement
functions assigned to it by this recommendation.
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services that are (a) excluded, (b) permissible
only after review by the committee, and (c)
permissible without referral to the committee;

* Review efficiency of the external audit
process and responsiveness of management to
recommendations made in the external
auditor’s management letter.

4.14.2. All members of the committee should
be furnished with complete information on
particulars of accounting, financial and other
operations of the company. Company’s
management  should inform the audit
committee of the methods used to account for
significant and unusual transactions where the
accounting treatment may be open to different
approaches. In such case a special
consideration should be given to company’s
operations in offshore centres and/or activities
carried out through special purpose vehicles
(organizations) and justification of such
operations.

4.14.3. The audit committee should decide
whether participation of the chairman of the
collegial body, chief executive officer of the
company, chief financial officer (or superior
employees in charge of finances, treasury and
accounting), or internal and external auditors
in the meetings of the committee is required (if
required, when). The committee should be
entitled, when needed, to meet with any
relevant person without executive directors and
members of the management bodies present.
4.14.4. Internal and external auditors should be
secured with not only effective working
relationship with management, but also with
free access to the collegial body. For this
purpose the audit committee should act as the
principal contact person for the internal and
external auditors.

4.14.5. The audit committee should be
informed of the internal auditor’s work
program, and should be furnished with internal
audit’s reports or periodic summaries. The
audit committee should also be informed of the
work program of the external auditor and
should be furnished with report disclosing all
relationships between the independent auditor
and the company and its group. The committee
should be timely furnished information on all
issues arising from the audit.

4.14.6. The audit committee should examine
whether the company is following applicable
provisions regarding the possibility for
employees to report alleged significant
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irregularities in the company, by way of
complaints or through anonymous submissions
(normally to an independent member of the
collegial body), and should ensure that there is
a procedure established for proportionate and
independent investigation of these issues and
for appropriate follow-up action.

4.14.7. The audit committee should report on
its activities to the collegial body at least once
in every six months, at the time the yearly and
half-yearly statements are approved.

4.15. Every year the collegial body should
conduct the assessment of its activities. The
assessment should include evaluation of
collegial body’s structure, work organization
and ability to act as a group, evaluation of each
of the collegial body member’s and
committee’s competence and work efficiency
and assessment whether the collegial body has
achieved its objectives. The collegial body
should, at least once a year, make public (as
part of the information the company annually
discloses on its management structures and
practices) respective information on its internal
organization and working procedures, and
specify what material changes were made as a
result of the assessment of the collegial body
of its own activities.

No

There was no practice of assessment of the
activity of Supervisory Board at the Company
and of informing shareholders about that up to
now because the controlling shareholder who
proposes candidates to the Supervisory Board
exhaustively knows the experiences and
competences of each candidate. The Company
will seek to implement this provision in the
future.

Principle V: The working procedure of the company’s collegial bodies

The working procedure of supervisory and management bodies established in the company should ensure
efficient operation of these bodies and decision-making and encourage active co-operation between the

company’s bodies.

5.1. The company’s supervisory and
management bodies (hereinafter in this
Principle the concept ‘collegial bodies’ covers
both the collegial bodies of supervision and the
collegial bodies of management) should be
chaired by chairpersons of these bodies. The
chairperson of a collegial body is responsible
for proper convocation of the collegial body
meetings. The chairperson should ensure that
information about the meeting being convened
and its agenda are communicated to all
members of the body. The chairperson of a
collegial body should ensure appropriate
conducting of the meetings of the collegial
body. The chairperson should ensure order and
working atmosphere during the meeting.

Yes

The Company fully implements this
recommendation. The Company's Supervisory
Board and Management Board are run by the
Chairman de jure and de facto. In accordance
with the work regulations of the bodies the
chairmen of Supervisory Board and Managing
Board convenes meetings, ensures proper
informing about convening meeting and about
agenda of the meeting. This recommendation is
fully implemented by the Supervisory Board and
by the Managing Board.

5.2. It is recommended that meetings of the
company’s collegial bodies should be carried
out according to the schedule approved in
advance at certain intervals of time. Each

Yes

This recommendation is implemented by the
Supervisory Board and by the Management
Board.
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company is free to decide how often to
convene meetings of the collegial bodies, but it
is recommended that these meetings should be
convened at such intervals, which would
guarantee an interrupted resolution of the
essential  corporate  governance  issues.
Meetings of the company’s supervisory board
should be convened at least once in a quarter,
and the company’s board should meet at least
once a month™,

5.3. Members of a collegial body should be | Yes The Company follows the order foreseen in the
notified about the meeting being convened in work regulations of the Supervisory Board and
advance in order to allow sufficient time for the Management Board and the information
proper preparation for the issues on the agenda about the convened meeting is presented in
of the meeting and to ensure fruitful discussion advance together with an agenda and all the
and adoption of appropriate decisions. necessary information and documents related to
Alongside with the notice about the meeting the meeting agenda.

being convened, all the documents relevant to The Supervisory Board and the Board meeting
the issues on the agenda of the meeting should agenda may be changed or added during the
be submitted to the members of the collegial meeting, in the presence of all members of the
body. The agenda of the meeting should not be collegial body, or when there is an urgent need
changed or supplemented during the meeting, to deal with Company’s certain key issues.
unless all members of the collegial body are

present or certain issues of great importance to

the company require immediate resolution.

5.4. In order to co-ordinate operation of the | Yes The chairmen of Company's supervisory and

company’s collegial bodies and ensure
effective decision-making process,
chairpersons of the company’s collegial bodies
of supervision and management should closely
co-operate by co-coordinating dates of the
meetings, their agendas and resolving other
issues of corporate governance. Members of
the company’s board should be free to attend
meetings of the company’s supervisory board,
especially where issues concerning removal of
the board members, their liability or
remuneration are discussed.

management bodies coordinate dates of the
meetings, their agendas and cooperate in solving
other issues of corporate governance.

Principle VI: The equitable treatment of shareholders and shareholder rights

The corporate governance framework should ensure the equitable treatment of all shareholders, including
minority and foreign shareholders. The corporate governance framework should protect the rights of the

shareholders.

6.1. It is recommended that the company’s
capital should consist only of the shares that
grant the same rights to voting, ownership,
dividend and other rights to all their holders.

Yes

The ordinary registered shares which make the
authorized capital of the Company give the
equal rights for all share owners.

12 The frequency of meetings of the collegial body provided for in the recommendation must be applied in those cases when both additional
collegial bodies are formed at the company, the board and the supervisory board. In the event only one additional collegial body is formed in
the company, the frequency of its meetings may be as established for the supervisory board, i.e. at least once in a quarter.
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6.2. It is recommended that investors should | Yes The Company allows investors to take a look at

have access to the information concerning the the rights conceded by newly issued or already
rights attached to the shares of the new issue or issued shares. Company’s Statute in which the
those issued earlier in advance, i.e. before they rights conceded to Company’s shareholders are
purchase shares. determined, are  publicized in Company’s
website.

6.3. Transactions that are important to the | No In compliance with the Law on the Joint Stock
company and its shareholders, such as transfer, Companies and the Company’s statutes the
investment, and pledge of the company’s transactions confirmation issues foreseen in this
assets or any other type of encumbrance should recommendation are ascribed to the competence
be subject to approval of the general of the Management Board but in individual
shareholders’ meeting.® All shareholders cases for the asset disposal transactions the
should be furnished with equal opportunity to Company applies to the shareholders meeting.

familiarize with and participate in the decision-
making process when significant corporate
issues, including approval of transactions
referred to above, are discussed.

6.4. Procedures of convening and conducting a | Yes There is a possibility for shareholders to vote in
general shareholders” meeting should ensure advance by filling up a general vote bulletin.
equal opportunities for the shareholders to
effectively participate at the meetings and
should not prejudice the rights and interests of
the shareholders. The venue, date, and time of
the shareholders’ meeting should not hinder
wide attendance of the shareholders.

6.5. If it is possible, in order to ensure | Yes Information about the draft shareholders
shareholders living abroad the right to access decisions and the decisions taken by the
to the information, it is recommended that shareholders meeting the Company publicly
documents on the course of the general places on the Company’s website and
shareholders’ meeting should be placed on the disseminates it through the Stock Exchange
publicly accessible website of the company not NASDAQ OMX, Vilnius GlobeNewswire used
only in Lithuanian language, but in English information dissemination system, as it is
and /or other foreign languages in advance. It foreseen in the Law on the Joint Stock
is recommended that the minutes of the general Companies not only in Lithuanian, but also in
shareholders” meeting after signing them English.

and/or adopted resolutions should be also
placed on the publicly accessible website of
the company. Seeking to ensure the right of
foreigners to familiarize with the information,
whenever feasible, documents referred to in
this recommendation should be published in
Lithuanian, English and/or other foreign
languages. Documents referred to in this
recommendation may be published on the
publicly accessible website of the company to
the extent that publishing of these documents

3 The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania (Official Gazette, 2003, No 123-5574) no longer assigns resolutions concerning the
investment, transfer, lease, mortgage or acquisition of the long-terms assets accounting for more than 1/20 of the company’s authorised
capital to the competence of the general shareholders’ meeting. However, transactions that are important and material for the company’s
activity should be considered and approved by the general shareholders’ meeting. The Law on Companies contains no prohibition to this
effect either. Yet, in order not to encumber the company’s activity and escape an unreasonably frequent consideration of transactions at the
meetings, companies are free to establish their own criteria of material transactions, which are subject to the approval of the meeting. While
establishing these criteria of material transactions, companies may follow the criteria set out in items 3, 4, 5 and 6 of paragraph 4 of Article
34 of the Law on Companies or derogate from them in view of the specific nature of their operation and their attempt to ensure
uninterrupted, efficient functioning of the company.
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is not detrimental to the company or the
company’s commercial secrets are not
revealed.

6.6. Shareholders should be furnished with the | Yes The shareholders of the Company can
opportunity to vote in the general shareholders’ implement the right to participate in the General
meeting in  person and in absentia. meeting of shareholders personally or through
Shareholders should not be prevented from their representatives if the person has a proper
voting in writing in advance by completing the authorization or the voting right delegation
general voting ballot. agreement is made with him in compliance with
the legal acts order. The Company also creates
conditions for the shareholders to vote in
advance in writing by completing the general
voting bulletin as it is foreseen by the Law on
the Joint Stock Companies.
6.7. With a view to increasing the | Not According to the order of the Company’s
shareholders” opportunities to participate | applicable | shareholders meetings and the lists of

effectively at shareholders’ meetings, the
companies are recommended to expand use of
modern  technologies by allowing the
shareholders to participate and vote in general
meetings  via  electronic  means  of
communication. In such cases security of
transmitted information and a possibility to
identify the identity of the participating and
voting person should be guaranteed. Moreover,
companies could furnish its shareholders,
especially shareholders living abroad, with the
opportunity to watch shareholder meetings by
means of modern technologies.

shareholders, there was no need to implement
this recommendation in the Company up to now.

Principle VI1: The avoidance of conflicts of interest and their disclosure

The corporate governance framework should encourage members of the corporate bodies to avoid
conflicts of interest and assure transparent and effective mechanism of disclosure of conflicts of interest

regarding members of the corporate bodies.
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7.1. Any member of the company’s | Yes The members of the Company's Supervisory and

supervisory and management body should of the managing bodies act in according with the
avoid a situation, in which his/her personal interests of the Company and their competences
interests are in conflict or may be in conflict and individual features suggest that they behave
with the company’s interests. In case such a so as to avoid conflicts of interests and they
situation did occur, a member of the were not observed in practice. The members of
company’s supervisory and management body the Company's Supervisory and of the managing
should, within reasonable time, inform other bodies did not conclude deals with the
members of the same collegial body or the Company, including high value deals or ones
company’s body that has elected him/her, or to made in not standard conditions.

the company’s shareholders about a situation
of a conflict of interest, indicate the nature of
the conflict and value, where possible.

7.2. Any member of the company’s | Yes
supervisory and management body may not
mix the company’s assets, the use of which has
not been mutually agreed upon, with his/her
personal assets or use them or the information
which he/she learns by virtue of his/her
position as a member of a corporate body for
his/her personal benefit or for the benefit of
any third person without a prior agreement of
the general shareholders’ meeting or any other
corporate body authorized by the meeting.

7.3. Any member of the company’s | Yes The members of the Company's supervisory and
supervisory and management body may management body are not entered into
conclude a transaction with the company, a transactions with the Company, including those
member of a corporate body of which he/she consisting of high value or non-standard
is. Such a transaction (except insignificant conditions.

ones due to their low value or concluded when
carrying out routine operations in the company
under usual conditions) must be immediately
reported in writing or orally, by recording this
in the minutes of the meeting, to other
members of the same corporate body or to the
corporate body that has elected him/her or to
the company’s shareholders. Transactions
specified in this recommendation are also
subject to recommendation 4.5.

7.4. Any member of the company’s | Yes In accordance with regulations of Company’s
supervisory and management body should supervisory and management bodies, the
abstain from voting when decisions concerning provisions of the Law on Joint Stock companies
transactions or other issues of personal or of the Republic of Lithuania, the members of the
business interest are voted on. Company's Supervisory and of the managing

bodies must abstain from voting when decisions
on deals or other questions in which they have a
personal or professional interest.

Principle VIII: Company’s remuneration policy

Remuneration policy and procedure for approval, revision and disclosure of directors’ remuneration
established in the company should prevent potential conflicts of interest and abuse in determining
remuneration of directors, in addition it should ensure publicity and transparency both of company’s
remuneration policy and remuneration of directors.
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8.1. A company should make a public
statement of the company’s remuneration
policy (hereinafter the remuneration statement)
which  should be clear and easily
understandable. This remuneration statement
should be published as a part of the company’s
annual statement as well as posted on the
company’s website.

Not
applicable

The Company publicizes average wages of
employees of the Company (by category) and
the average wage of all employees of the
Company. The remuneration policy as provided
in this recommendation is not confirmed in the
Company because this is not determined by the
valid legal acts. The remuneration for the
Supervisory Board and the Management Board
of the Company is determined by the
shareholders meeting, notwithstanding it is
never been allotted up to now. The remuneration
of the managing director is determined by the
Managing Board considering the schedule of
remuneration order of managers of municipal
enterprises, companies, municipal controlled
joint-stock and close-end companies, their
deputies and chief accountants approved by
Kaunas municipality. Considering this schedule
the remuneration of the deputies and chief
accountant of the Company is determined.
Estimating this there was no need to prepare
separate remuneration policy. Nevertheless in
compliance with the legal acts orders, the
Company publicly announces the information on
the termination payments and loans for the
members of the Supervisory Board, the
Management Board and administration (General
Manager, Chief accountant) in the annual report.
The information regarding average remuneration
of employees of the Company is also announced
in Company’s website.

8.2. Remuneration statement should mainly
focus on directors’ remuneration policy for the
following year and, if appropriate, the
subsequent years. The statement should
contain a summary of the implementation of
the remuneration policy in the previous
financial year. Special attention should be
given to any significant changes in company’s
remuneration policy as compared to the
previous financial year.

Not
applicable

Because of the reasons foreseen in the
recommendation No. 8.1. the remuneration
policy according to which the report on
remuneration would be prepared is not approved
by the Company.
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8.3. Remuneration statement should leastwise
include the following information:

* Explanation of the relative importance of the
variable and non-variable components of
directors’ remuneration;

+ Sufficient information on performance
criteria that entitles directors to share options,
shares or  variable  components  of
remuneration;

* An explanation how the choice of
performance criteria contributes to the long-
term interests of the company;

* An explanation of the methods, applied in
order to determine whether performance
criteria have been fulfilled;

+ Sufficient information on deferment periods
with regard to variable components of
remuneration;

» Sufficient information on the linkage
between the remuneration and performance;

* The main parameters and rationale for any
annual bonus scheme and any other non-cash
benefits;

« Sufficient information on
regarding termination payments;
* Sufficient information with regard to vesting
periods for share-based remuneration, as
referred to in point 8.13 of this Code;

* Sufficient information on the policy
regarding retention of shares after vesting, as
referred to in point 8.15 of this Code;

« Sufficient information on the composition of
peer groups of companies the remuneration
policy of which has been examined in relation
to the establishment of the remuneration policy
of the company concerned;

* A description of the main characteristics of
supplementary pension or early retirement
schemes for directors;

* Remuneration statement should not include
commercially sensitive information.

the policy

Not
applicable

Because of the reasons foreseen in the
recommendation No. 8.1. the remuneration
policy according to which the report on
remuneration would be prepared is not approved
by the Company.

8.4. Remuneration statement should also
summarize and explain company’s policy
regarding the terms of the contracts executed
with executive directors and members of the
management bodies. It should include, inter
alia, information on the duration of contracts
with executive directors and members of the
management bodies, the applicable notice
periods and details of provisions for
termination payments linked to early
termination under contracts for executive
directors and members of the management
bodies.

Not
applicable

Because of the reasons foreseen in the
recommendation No. 8.1. the remuneration
policy according to which the report on
remuneration would be prepared is not approved
by the Company, but the information on the
termination and other payments is publicly
announced in the Company's annual report..
Also Company publicizes average wages of
employees of the Company (by category).
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8.5. Remuneration statement should also
contain detailed information on the entire
amount of remuneration, inclusive of other
benefits, that was paid to individual directors
over the relevant financial year. This document
should list at least the information set out in
items 8.5.1 to 8.5.4 for each person who has
served as a director of the company at any time
during the relevant financial year.

8.5.1. The following remuneration and/or
emoluments-related information should be
disclosed:

* The total amount of remuneration paid or due
to the director for services performed during
the relevant financial year, inclusive of, where
relevant, attendance fees fixed by the annual
general shareholders meeting;

* The remuneration and advantages received
from any undertaking belonging to the same
group;

* The remuneration paid in the form of profit
sharing and/or bonus payments and the reasons
why such bonus payments and/or profit
sharing were granted;

* If permissible by the law, any significant
additional remuneration paid to directors for
special services outside the scope of the usual
functions of a director;

» Compensation receivable or paid to each
former executive director or member of the
management body as a result of his resignation
from the office during the previous financial
year;

 Total estimated value of non-cash benefits
considered as remuneration, other than the
items covered in the above points.

8.5.2. As regards shares and/or rights to
acquire share options and/or all other share-
incentive schemes, the following information
should be disclosed:

* The number of share options offered or
shares granted by the company during the
relevant financial year and their conditions of
application;

* The number of shares options exercised
during the relevant financial year and, for each
of them, the number of shares involved and the
exercise price or the value of the interest in the
share incentive scheme at the end of the
financial year;

* The number of share options unexercised at
the end of the financial year; their exercise
price, the exercise date and the main conditions
for the exercise of the rights;

Not
applicable

Because of the reasons foreseen in the
recommendation No. 8.1. the remuneration
policy according to which the report on
remuneration would be prepared is not approved
by the Company.
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+ All changes in the terms and conditions of
existing share options occurring during the
financial year.

8.5.3. The following supplementary pension
schemes-related  information  should  be
disclosed:

* When the pension scheme is a defined-
benefit scheme, changes in the directors’
accrued benefits under that scheme during the
relevant financial year;

* When the pension scheme is defined-
contribution scheme, detailed information on
contributions paid or payable by the company
in respect of that director during the relevant
financial year.

8.5.4. The statement should also state amounts
that the company or any subsidiary company
or entity included in the consolidated annual
financial report of the company has paid to
each person who has served as a director in the
company at any time during the relevant
financial year in the form of loans, advance
payments or guarantees, including the amount
outstanding and the interest rate.

8.6. Where the remuneration policy includes
variable  components of  remuneration,
companies should set limits on the variable
component(s). The non-variable component of
remuneration should be sufficient to allow the
company to withhold variable components of
remuneration when performance criteria are
not met.

Not
applicable

Because of the reasons foreseen in the
recommendation No. 8.1. the remuneration
policy according to which the report on
remuneration would be prepared is not approved
by the Company.

8.7. Award of variable components of
remuneration  should be  subject to
predetermined and measurable performance
criteria.

8.8. Where a variable component of
remuneration is awarded, a major part of the
variable component should be deferred for a
minimum period of time. The part of the
variable component subject to deferment
should be determined in relation to the relative
weight of the variable component compared to
the non-variable component of remuneration.

8.9. Contractual arrangements with executive
or managing directors should include
provisions that permit the company to reclaim
variable components of remuneration that were
awarded on the basis of data which
subsequently proved to be manifestly
misstated.

Not
applicable

Not
applicable

Not
applicable

Not
applicable

Because of the reasons foreseen in the
recommendation No. 8.1. the remuneration
policy according to which the report on
remuneration would be prepared is not approved
by the Company.
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8.10. Termination payments should not exceed
a fixed amount or fixed number of years of
annual remuneration, which should, in general,
not be higher than two years of the non-
variable component of remuneration or the
equivalent thereof.

8.11. Termination payments should not be paid
if the termination is due to inadequate
performance

Not
applicable

8.12. The information on preparatory and
decision-making processes, during which a
policy of remuneration of directors is being
established, should also be disclosed.
Information should include data, if applicable,
on authorities and composition of the
remuneration committee, names and surnames
of external consultants whose services have
been used in determination of the remuneration
policy as well as the role of shareholders’
annual general meeting.

8.13. Shares should not vest for at least three
years after their award.

8.14. Share options or any other right to
acquire shares or to be remunerated on the
basis of share price movements should not be
exercisable for at least three years after their
award. Vesting of shares and the right to
exercise share options or any other right to
acquire shares or to be remunerated on the
basis of share price movements, should be
subject to predetermined and measurable
performance criteria.

8.15. After vesting, directors should retain a
number of shares, until the end of their
mandate, subject to the need to finance any
costs related to acquisition of the shares. The
number of shares to be retained should be
fixed, for example, twice the value of total
annual remuneration (the non-variable plus the
variable components).

8.16. Remuneration of non-executive or
supervisory directors should not include share
options.

Not
applicable

Not
applicable
Not
applicable

Not
applicable

Not
applicable

8.17. Shareholders, in particular institutional
shareholders, should be encouraged to attend
general meetings where appropriate and make
considered use of their votes regarding
directors’ remuneration.

Not
applicable

Because of the reasons foreseen in the
recommendation No. 8.1. the remuneration
policy according to which the report on
remuneration would be prepared is not approved
by the Company.
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8.18. Without prejudice to the role and | Not

organization of the relevant bodies responsible | applicable

for setting directors’ remunerations, the

remuneration policy or any other significant

change in remuneration policy should be

included into the agenda of the shareholders’

annual general meeting. Remuneration

statement should be put for voting in

shareholders’ annual general meeting. The vote

may be either mandatory or advisory.

8.19. Schemes anticipating remuneration of Not Because of the reasons foreseen in the

directors in shares, share options or any other applicable | recommendation No. 8.1., remuneration policy

right to purchase shares or be remunerated on according to which the report on remuneration

the paS|s of sharg price movements should b,e would be prepared is not approved by the

subject to the prior approval of shareholders i

annual general meeting by way of a resolution Company. Nevertheless, the Company publishes

prior to their adoption_ The approva| of scheme information on the remuneration and other

should be related with the scheme itself and payments of the members of the Supervisory

not to the grant of such share-based benefits Board, Management Board, General Manager

under that scheme to individual directors. All and his deputies and to the chief accountant in

significant changes in scheme provisions Company’s annual reports in accordance with

should also be subject to shareholders’ o )

approval prior to their adoption; the approval the legislation. Information on average

decision should be made in shareholders’ remuneration of Company’s employees is also

annual general meeting. In such case announced in Company’s website. The

shareholders should be notified on all terms of Company does not use schemes under which the

suggested changes and get an explanation on directors can be paid with the shares, stock

the impact of the suggested changes. . . . .
selection transactions or other rights to acquire
shares, or to be paid by the stock price changes.

8.20. The following issues should be subject to | Not Because of the reasons foreseen in the

approval by the shareholders’ annual general | applicable | recommendation No. 8.1. the Company does not

meeting:

1) Grant of share-based schemes, including
share options, to directors;

2) Determination of maximum number of
shares and main conditions of share granting;
3) The term within which options can be
exercised;

4) The conditions for any subsequent change in
the exercise of the options, if permissible by
law;

5) All other long-term incentive schemes for
which directors are eligible and which are not
available to other employees of the company
under similar terms. Annual general meeting
should also set the deadline within which the
body responsible for remuneration of directors
may award compensations listed in this article
to individual directors.

use schemes under which the directors can be
remunerated with the shares, stock selection
transactions or other rights to acquire shares, or
to be paid by the stock price changes.
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8.21. Should national law or company’s
Acrticles of Association allow, any discounted
option arrangement under which any rights are
granted to subscribe to shares at a price lower
than the market value of the share prevailing
on the day of the price determination, or the
average of the market values over a number of
days preceding the date when the exercise
price is determined, should also be subject to
the shareholders’ approval.

8.22. Provisions of Articles 8.19 and 8.20
should not be applicable to schemes allowing
for participation under similar conditions to
company’s employees or employees of any
subsidiary company whose employees are
eligible to participate in the scheme and which
has been approved in the shareholders’ annual
general meeting.

8.23. Prior to the annual general meeting that is
intended to consider decision stipulated in
Article 8.19, the shareholders must be provided
an opportunity to familiarize with draft
resolution and project-related notice (the
documents should be posted on the company’s
website). The notice should contain the full
text of the share-based remuneration schemes
or a description of their key terms, as well as
full names of the participants in the schemes.
Notice should also specify the relationship of
the schemes and the overall remuneration
policy of the directors. Draft resolution must
have a clear reference to the scheme itself or to
the summary of its key terms. Shareholders
must also be presented with information on
how the company intends to provide for the
shares required to meet its obligations under
incentive schemes. It should be clearly stated
whether the company intends to buy shares in
the market, hold the shares in reserve or issue
new ones. There should also be a summary on
scheme-related expenses the company will
suffer due to the anticipated application of the
scheme. All information given in this article
must be posted on the company’s website.

Not
applicable

Not
applicable

Principle IX: The role of stakeholders in corporate governance

The corporate governance framework should recognize the rights of stakeholders as established by law
and encourage active co-operation between companies and stakeholders in creating the company value,
jobs and financial sustainability. For the purposes of this Principle, the concept “stakeholders” includes
investors, employees, creditors, suppliers, clients, local community and other persons having certain

interest in the company concerned.
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9.1. The corporate governance framework
should assure that the rights of stakeholders
that are protected by law are respected.

9.2. The corporate governance framework
should create conditions for the stakeholders to
participate in corporate governance in the
manner prescribed by law. Examples of
mechanisms of stakeholder participation in
corporate  governance include: employee
participation in adoption of certain key
decisions for the company; consulting the
employees on corporate governance and other
important issues; employee participation in the
company’s share capital; creditor involvement
in governance in the context of the company’s
insolvency, etc.

9.3. Where stakeholders participate in the
corporate governance process, they should
have access to relevant information.

Yes

The Company follows all the requirements
foreseen by the law for the stakeholders'
opportunities to participate in the management
of the Company, but any group of interest,
having the right to participate in management of
the Company, determined by the law, is not
created yet in accordance with law.

Principle X: Information disclosure and transparency

The corporate governance framework should ensure that timely and accurate disclosure is made on all
material information regarding the company, including the financial situation, performance and

governance of the company.

10.1. The
information on:
1) The financial and operating results of the
company;

2) Company objectives;

3) Persons holding by the right of ownership or
in control of a block of shares in the company;
4) Members of the company’s supervisory and
management bodies, chief executive officer of
the company and their remuneration;

5) Material foreseeable risk factors;

6) Transactions between the company and
connected persons, as well as transactions
concluded outside the course of the company’s
regular operations;

7) Material issues regarding employees and
other stakeholders;

8) Governance structures and strategy.

company should disclose

This list should be deemed as a minimum
recommendation, while the companies are
encouraged not to limit themselves to
disclosure of the information specified in this
list.

10.2. It is recommended to the company,
which is the parent of other companies, that
consolidated results of the whole group to

Yes

The Company discloses information, provided in
this recommendation, in the reports, in the
annual and interim reports, the Company's
website and Centre of Registers electronic
publication, in which the public information of
legal persons are announced, except the report of
remuneration policy determined in  VIII
principle. This report is not prepared in the
Company because of the reasons foreseen in the
article No. 8.1., and it is not approved, as it is
not required by the law. According to the Law
on Companies and to Company’s Statute the
remuneration for the members of the Company's
Supervisory Board and of the Management
Board can be determined by the meeting of
shareholders, but it has not yet been assigned up
to now (all of this is described in detail in
annotation of VIII recommendations). The
company also attempts not to disclose the
information that can affect the price of Securities
issued by the Company in the comments,
interviews or other means, as long as such
information will be publicly announced at the
NASDAQ stock exchange OMX Vilnius used
GlobeNewswire dissemination system on the
Company's website.
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which the company belongs should be
disclosed when information specified in item 1
of Recommendation 10.1 is under disclosure.
10.3. It is recommended that information on
the professional background, qualifications of
the members of supervisory and management
bodies, chief executive officer of the company
should be disclosed as well as potential
conflicts of interest that may have an effect on
their decisions when information specified in
item 4 of Recommendation 10.1 about the
members of the company’s supervisory and
management bodies is under disclosure. It is
also recommended that information about the
amount of remuneration received from the
company and other income should be disclosed
with regard to members of the company’s
supervisory and management bodies and chief
executive officer as per Principle VIII.

10.4. 1t is recommended that information about
the links between the company and its
stakeholders, including employees, creditors,
suppliers, local community, as well as the
company’s policy with regard to human
resources, employee participation schemes in
the company’s share capital, etc. should be
disclosed when information specified in item 7
of Recommendation 10.1 is under disclosure.

10.5. Information should be disclosed in such a
way that neither shareholders nor investors are
discriminated with regard to the manner or
scope of access to information. Information
should be disclosed to all simultaneously. It is
recommended that notices about material
events should be announced before or after a
trading session on the Vilnius Stock Exchange,
so that all the company’s shareholders and
investors should have equal access to the
information and make informed investing
decisions.

Yes

The Company simultaneously presents the
information through the Stock Exchange
NASDAQ OMX Vilnius used information
dissemination  system  GlobeNewswire in
Lithuanian and English languages as it possible.
The Stock Exchange NASDAQ OMX, Vilnius
places received information on its website and in
trading  system  assuring  simultaneous
presentation of this information to all. In
addition, the Company strives to announce the
information before or after a trading session on
the Stock Exchange NASDAQ OMX Vinius and
to present it to all the markets in which there is
trade in the Company’s stocks at the same time.
The Company does not provide the information
which can have an influence on the price of its
issued stocks on comments, interview and other
ways till this information is publicly announced
through the Stock Exchange NASDAQ OMX
Vinius used dissemination system.

10.6. Channels for disseminating information
should provide for fair, timely and cost-
efficient or in cases provided by the legal acts
free of charge access to relevant information
by users. It is recommended that information

Yes

Company’s information is published on its
website in Lithuanian.
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technologies should be employed for wider
dissemination of information, for instance, by
placing the information on the company’s
website. It is recommended that information
should be published and placed on the
company’s website not only in Lithuanian, but
also in English, and, whenever possible and
necessary, in other languages as well.

10.7. It is recommended that the company’s
annual reports and other periodical accounts
prepared by the company should be placed on
the company’s website. It is recommended that
the company should announce information
about material events and changes in the price
of the company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange on the company’s website too.

Yes

All  the information provided in this
recommendation is announced publicly and
placed on the Company’s website, on the
website of Stock Exchange NASDAQ OMX
Vilnius and it can be reached by all the
interested persons.

Principle XI: The selection of the company’s auditor

The mechanism of the selection of the company’s auditor should ensure independence of the firm of

auditor’s conclusion and opinion.

11.1. An annual audit of the company’s
financial reports and interim reports should be
conducted by an independent firm of auditors
in order to provide an external and objective
opinion on the company’s financial statements

Yes

The set of annual financial statements and the
annual report of the Company is verified by the
independent audit company.

11.2. It is recommended that the company’s
supervisory board and, where it is not set up,
the company’s board should propose a
candidate firm of auditors to the general
shareholders’ meeting.

No

The candidature of the Company's audit
company which accomplished audit of financial
statements of the years 2013-2015, was
presented to the General meeting of shareholders
by the Management Board in compliance with
the results of the public competition
implemented in 2013.

11.3. It is recommended that the company
should disclose to its shareholders the level of
fees paid to the firm of auditors for non-audit
services rendered to the company. This
information should be also known to the
company’s supervisory board and, where it is
not formed, the company’s board upon their
consideration which firm of auditors to
propose for the general shareholders’ meeting.

Not
applicable

The information provided in the
recommendation was not presented to the
shareholders because the audit company did not
provide non-audit services for the Company in
the year 2013.
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AB KAUNO ENERGIJA, Company code 235014830, Raudondvario rd. 84, Kaunas, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2013 (all amounts are in
LTL thousand unless otherwise stated) '

Translation note

This set of Consolidated and Parent Company’s Financial Statements presented
together with Consolidated Annual Report and Independent Auditor’s Report has
been prepared in Lithuanian language and in English language. In all matters of
interpretations of information, views or opinions, the Lithuanian language version
of these documents takes precedence over the English version.
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APSKEAITOS IR KONTROLES i

UAB ,,AUDITAS*

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPCRT

To the shareholders of KAUNC ENERGIJA, AB

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying stand-alone and consolidated financial statements of
Kauno Energija, AB (thereafter — the Company) and its subsidiaries (thereafter - the Group) set out
on pages 5 to 55, which comprise the Company’s and the Group’s statements of financial position
as of December 31, 2013, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity, cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (thereafter — the financial statements).

Management s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. These standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers imternal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
andit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The carrying value of property in the statements of financial position of the
Group and the Company amounting to LTL 374 million and LTL 373 million, respectively, as
at December 31, 2013 (December 31, 2012: LTL 348 million and LTI 347 million, respectively)
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includes assets with the carrying vaiue of LTL 128 million (December 31, 2012: LTL 130 million)
received as a contribution in-kind value of LTL 136 million from one of the Company's
shareholders in 2009. Following to the provision of JAS 16 “‘Property, plant and equipment”, the
cost of property. plant and equipment acquired in exchange for non-monetary assets should be
measured at fair value. In 2012, the Company performed an additional valuations of contribution in-
kind date received, as described in the paragraph 2.25 ‘‘Carrying value of non-current assets
received as a contribution in-kind*‘, however, any related adjustments did not be added in the
financial statements. Earlier auditors expressed a modified opinion due to scope limitation, related
with the appropriateness of the valuation of a contribution in-kind assets. In the absence of reliable
information about the fair value of these assets we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence about whether the assets received as a contribution in-kind have been recognized in
appropriate values in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion paragraph, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company and the Group as at December 31, 2013, and their financial
performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Other of Matter

The financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended at
December 31, 2012 were audited by other aunditors who expressed a modified opinion on those
statements on March 29, 2013 due to scope limitation related with the non-monetary assets received
in exchange at fair value of evaluation.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, we have read the consolidated Annual Report for the year ended at
December 31, 2013 set out on pages 56 to 131 and have not noted any material inconsistencies
between the financial information included in it and the audited financial statements for the year
ended at December 31, 2013,

Lithuanian Certified Auditor Jiraté Sakalauskiené

25 March, 2914
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AB KAUNO ENERGIJA, Company code 235014830, Raudondvario rd. 84, Kaunas, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2013 (all amounts are in

LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of Financial Position

Notes
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 3
Property, plant and equipment 4

Land and buildings

Structures and machinery

Vehicles

Equipment and tools

Construction in progress and prepayments
Total property, plant and equipment
Non-current financial assets

Investments into subsidiary 1
Non-current accounts receivable 5
" Qther financial assets 6

Total non-current financial assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories and prepayments

Inventories ‘ 7
Prepayments

Total inventories and prepayments

Current accounts receivable 8
Trade receivables 23
Other receivables

Total accounts receivable
Cash and cash equivalents 9,23
Total current assets-

Total assets

Group Company
As of 31 Asof 31 As of 31 As of 31
December December December Deceniber

2013 2012 2013 2012
209 204 209 204
27,097 26,577 25,798 25,220
320,178 307,592 320,187 307,602
848 413 903 441
18,730 11,605 18,723 11,563
7,289 2,198 7,289 2,198
374,142 348,385 372,900 347,024
] ) 3,719 4,754
40 45 40 45
95 433 95 433
135 478 . 3,854 5,232
374,486 349,067 376,963 352,460
3,897 4,246 3,844 4,155
800 396 800 409
4,697 4,642 4,644 4,564
57,021 82,086 37,009 81,981
0,428 6,094 9,424 6,094
66,449 88,180 66,433 88,075
2,155 5,332 2,135 5,308
73,301 98,154 73,212 97,947
447,787 447,221 450,175 450,407

(cont’d on the next page)



AB KAUNO ENERGIJA, Company code 235014830, Raudondvario rd. 84, Kaunas, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2013 (ali amounis are in

LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of Financial Position (cont’d)

Group Company
Asof31  Asof31 As of 31 As of 31
Notes December December December December
2013 2012 2013 2012

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 1 256,392 256,392 256,392 256,392
Legal reserve 10 6,845 1,307 6,845 1,307
Other reserve 10 250 2,584 250 2,584
Retained earnings (deficit)

Profit for the current year 3,019 1,196 1,858 837

Profit (foss) for the prior year (2,292) (284) 694 3,061
Total retained earnings (deficit) 727 912 2,552 3,808
Total equity 264,214 261,195 266,039 264,181
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities '
Non-current borrowings 11,23 38,994 33,746 38,994 33,746
Financial lease obligations 12,23 125 67 ’ 125 67
Deferred tax Hability 21 8.340 3,110 5,004 8,798
Grants (deferred income) 13 28,987 26,546 28,987 26,546
Employee benefit liability .14 2,079 2,173 2,079 1,996
Non-current trade liabilities 23 14 23 14 23
Total non-current liabilities 78,539 70,665 79,203 71,176
Current liabilities ‘
Current po_rtlon of non-current borrowings 11,1223 20401 8,533 20,401 8,533
and financial lease o _ _
Current borrowings 11,23 16,997 27,631 © 16,997 27,631
Trade payables 23 61,321 72,865 61,305 72,897
Payroll-related liabilities 1,950 2,011 1,927 1,825
Advances received 1,444 878 1,444 878
Taxes payable 1,146 1,071 1,142 1,038
Derivative financial instruments 15 51 204 51 204
(.Sur{'e.nt portion of employee benefit 14 937 1,124 879 1,003
liability ‘
Other current liabilities 787 1,044 787 1,041
Total current liabilities 105,034 . 115,361 104,933 115,050
Total liabilities 183,573 186,026 184,136 186,226
Total equity and liabilities 447,787 4477221 450,175 450,407

' (the end)
(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
General Manager Rimantas Bakas o % 25 March 2014
Chief Accountant Violeta Stadkiiniené /%"/ 25 March 2014



AB KAUNO ENERGIJA, Company code 235014830, Raudondvario rd. 84, Kaunas, Lithuania '

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2013 (all amounts are in
LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of Comprehensive Income

Group
, Notes 2013 2012 2011 .
" Income S
Sales income 16 322,363 369,723 309,345
Other operating income - 18 3,561 2,091 2,343
Total income . 325,924 371,814 311,688
Expenses
Fuel and heat acquired (257,154) - (296,717) (233,756)
Salaries and social security : » . (21,631)  (22,827). (22,334)
Depreciation and amortisation - 34 (15,936) ° (15,879) (15,888)
Repairs and maintenance (2,678) (5,948) (5,703)
Write-offs a,ngl change in allowance for 538 (9,082) (5,896) (2,189)
accounts receivable \ .
Taxes other than income tax (5,101) (5,073) (4,312)
Electricity (2,919) (2,574) (2,515)
Raw materials and consumables ' : (1,876) (1,857) - (1,962)
Maintenance of heating and hot water systems (2) - (463)
Water | 2,167) (1,172) (1,160)
Ch.emge in Yvrlte-down to net realisable value . : (67) (644) (999)
of inventories
Other expenses 17 (9,656) (10,252) (10,661)
Other activities expenses .18 (1,753} (1,193) (1,334)
Total expenses _ : : (330,922) (370,032) (303,276)
Profit (4,998) 1,782 8,412
Finance income .19 10,160 2,463 8,001
Finance costs 20 (1,913) (1,710) (1,653)
Finance cost, net 8,247 753 6,348
Profit before income tax - o 3,249 2,535 14,760
Income tax 21 (230) (1,339) (1,220)
Net profit 3,019 1,196 13,540
Basic and diluted earnings per share (L'TL) 22 0.07 0.03 0.32

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager Rimantas Bakas /‘%’:___, 25 March 2014

—

Chief Accountant Violeta Staskiiniene e e 25 March 2014

/



AB KAUNO ENERGIJA, Company code 235014830, Raudondvario rd. 84, Kaunas, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2013 (all amounts are in

LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of Comprehensive Income

Company

Notes 2013 2012 2011
Income
Sales income 16 322,338 369,462 308,622
Other operating income 18 3,358 1,908 1,846
Total income 325,696 . 371,370 310,468
Expenses
Fuel and heat acquired (257,154) (296,717) (233,756)
Salaries and social security " (21,455) (22,078) (21,412)
Depreciation and amortisation 34 (16,014) {15,879) (15,842)
Repairs and maintenance ' (2,678) (5,948) (5,703)
Write-offs ant.:l change in allowance for 5.8 (10,1 5'1) o (6210) (2,189)
accounts receivable
Taxes other than income tax (5,101) (5,043) (4,286)
Electricity (2,919) (2,565) (2,504)
Raw materials and consumables (1,881) (1,766) (1,847)
Maintenance of heating and hot water éystems (95) (383) {(1,026)
Water 2,167y (1,170) (1,156)
chl‘liariiil chlsr\i?gte-down to net realisable value. " (67) (644) (999)
Other expenses 17 (9,690) (10,210) (10,541)
Other activities expenses 18 (1,318) | (723) (677)
Total expenses (330,690) (369,341) (301,938)
Profit {4,994) 2,029 8,530
Finance income 19 10,160 2,463 8,001
Finance costs 20 (G,102) - (2,297) (1,869)
Finance cost, net 7,058 166 6,132
Profit before income tax 2,064 2,195 14,662
Income tax 21 (2006) (1,358) (1,220)
Net profit 1,858 837 13,442
Basic and diluted earnings per share (LTL) 22 0.04 0.02 0.31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
General Manager Rimantas Bakas % 25 March 2014
_ Chief Accountant Violeta Staskiniené - /%/@{/@u—— 25 March 2014




AB KAUNO ENERGIJA, Company code 235014830, Raudondvario rd. 84, Kaunas, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2013 (all amounts are in
LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of Changes in Equity

Retained

Group Notes csal;:;::l rE: egﬂe r?:tl:]::e (ace:ur:lllllllisted Total
deficit)
Balance as of 31 December 2011 256,392 635 3,468 10,187 270,682
Transferred from reserves 10 - - {3,468 3,468 -
Transferred to reserves 10 - 672 2,584 (3.256) -
Dividends : 1 - - - -~ (10,683) - (10,683)
Total comprehensive income ' - - - 1,196 1,196
Balance as of 31 December 2012 256,392 1,307 2,584 912 261,195
Transferred from reserves 10 - - (2,584 2,584 -
Transferred to reserves \ 10 - 5,538 250 (5,788) -
Total comprehensive income ’ - - - - 3,019 3,019
Balance as of 31 December 2013 256,392 6,845 250 727 264,214
Retained
Company Notes Sha_re Legal Other earnings Total
capital reserve reserve (accumulated
deficit)

Balance as of 31 December 2011 256,392 635 3,468 13,532 274,027
Transferred from reserves 10 - - (3,468 3,468 “
Transferred to reserves 10 - 672 2,584 (3,256) -
Dividends 1 - - - (10,683) (10,683)
Total comprehensive income - - - 837 837
Balance as of 31 December 2012 256,392 1,307 2,584 3,898 204,181
lsolgiesholder (contribution) to cover - { | B ) . “5) (45)
Transferred from reserves 10 - - (2,584) 2,584 -
Transferred to reserves 10 - 5,538 250 (5,788) -
Total comprehensive income : o - - - 1,903 1,903
Balance as of 31 December 2013 256,392 6,845 250 2,552 266,039

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager Rimantas Bakas . 4 25 March 2014

Chief Accountant Violeta Stadkiiniens %«w 25 March 2014
. ~



AB KAUNO ENERGIJA, Company code 235014830, Raudondvario rd. 84, Kaunas, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2013 (all amounts are in

LTL. thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from (to) operatmg activities
Net profit .

Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation

Write-offs and change in allowance for
accounts receivable

Interest expenses

Change in fair value of derivatives

Loss (profit) from sale and write-off of

property, plant and equipment and value of
the shares

(Amortisation) of grants (deferred incorme)
Change in write-down to net realisable
value of inventories

Change employee benefit liability
Income tax expenses

Change in accruals

Impairment of investment in subsidiary
Elimination of other financial and investing
activity results

Total adjustments for non—cash items:
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) in inventories

{Increase) decrease in prepayments
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables
(Increase) in other receivables
{Decrease) i mcrease in other non- current
liabilities

Increase in current trade payables and
advances received

{Decrease) increase in payroll-related
liabilities ‘
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities to
budget

Increase (decrease) in other current
liabilities

Total changes in working capltal

Net cash flows from operating activities

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
3,019 ° 1,19 - 1,858 837
18,711 18,371 18,595 18,286
9,997 5,913 10,166 6,227
1,418 1,496 1,418 1,496
(153) (129) (153) (129)
418 (413) 371 (412)
(1,336) (1,163) (1,336) (1,163)
67 644 67 644
494 1,093 544 791
230 1,339 206 1,358
(159) (222) (109) (192)
- - 1,035 587
(9.850) © (1,782) 9,695) (1,782)
19,837 25,147 21,109 25,711
269 (141) 246 (174)
(516) 6 (589) 2
14,729 (28,919) 14,581  (29,023)
(2,892) (543) (2,903) (530)
) a4 ©) (14)
(10,978) 17,863 (11,026) 17,829
(831) (207) (528) (199)
75 969 104 968
(134) 463 (96) 445
(287) (10,523) - (220)  (10,696)
22,569 15,820 22,747 15,852
(cont’d on the next page)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AB KAUNO ENERGIJA, Company code 235014830, Raudondvario rd. 84, Kaunas, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2013 (all amounts are in
LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012
Cash flows from (to) the investing
activities
(Acquisition) of tangible and intangible (44.399) (30,172) (44,416) (30,201)
assets ’ ’ i i
Proceeds from sale of tangible assets 209 166 207 165
InteI:est received for overdue ag:counts 2,952 1984 2952 1,984
receivable :
Penalties received 7,054 - 7,054 -
Decrease of non-current accounts ' . _ } .
receivable ‘
Interest received : ‘ 1 12 I 12
Net cash (used in) investing activities . {(34,183) (28,010) (34,202) (28,040)
Cash flows from (to) financing activities
Proceeds from loans 25,539 29,955 25,539 29,955
(Repayment) of loans (19,123) (11,318) (19,123) (11,318)
Interest (paid) {1,474) (1,552) {1,474) (1,552)
Financial lease (payments) : (125) (67) (125 (56)
Penalties and fines (paid) {(157) (214) (157) (214)
Shareholder (contributions) to a subsidiary - - (155) -
Dividends (paid) o - (10,670) - (10,670)
Received grants 3,777 5,452 3,777 5,452
Net. c.a-sh flows from (used in) financing 8,437 11,586 8,282 11,597
activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents 3,177) {604) (3,173) (.591)
Cas_h apd cash equlv_alents at the 5,332 5,936 5,308 5,899
beginning of the period
Cash al:ld cash equivalents at the end of 2,155 5332 2,135 5,308
the period

(the end)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager Rimantas Bakas %ﬁ 25 March 2014

Chief Accountant Violeta Stagkiiniené /4%/;@‘—— 25 March 2014

/

- 11



AB KAUNO ENERGIJA, Company code 235014330, Raudondvario rd. 84, Kaunas, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2013 (all amounts are in
LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements

1. General information

AB Kauno Energija (hereinafter — the Company) is a pubhc limited lability company registered in the
Republic of Lithuania. The address of its registered office is as follows: Raudondvario Rd. 84; Kaunas
Lithuania.

AB Kauno Energija consists of the Company’s head office and the branch of Jurbarko Silumos Tinklai.

The Company is involved in heat and hot water supplies, electricity generation and distribution and also in
maintenance of manifolds. The Company was registeted on 1 July 1997 after the reorganisation of AB
Lietuvos Energija. The Company’s shares are traded on the Baltic Secondary List of the NASDAQ OMX

Vilnius.

As of 31 December 2013 and of 31 December 2012 the shareholders of the Conipahy were as follows:

As of 31 December 2013 As of 31 December 2012
Number of Percentage Number of Percentage
shares owned  of ownership shares owned of ownership

(unit) (percent) (unit) (percent)
Kaunas city municipality 39,665,892 : 19282 39,665,892 92.82
Kaunas district municipality - 1,606;168 : - 376 1,606,168 - 3.76
Turbarkas district municipality 746,403 1.75 746,405 1.75
Qther minor shareholders 713,512 1.67 713,512 1.67

42,731,971 100.00 42,731,977 100.00

All the shares with a par value of LTL 6 each are ordinary shares. The Company did not hold its own shares
in 2013 and 2012.

On 23 July 2009 in the Company’s Shareholders Meeting it was decided to increase the share capital by
issuing 22,700,000 ordinary shares with the par vatue L'TL 6 each. Priority right to acquire issued shares was
granted to Kaunas city municipality. The issue price of shares is equal to their nominal value. For this share
the Company received a contribution in-kind comprising manifolds in Kaunas city with the value of
LTL 136,200 thousand which was estabhshed by the independent property valuators under the replacement
cost method.

On 17 February 2010 in the Company’s Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting it was decided to increase the
share capital by LTL 682 thousand (from LTL 255,710 thousand to LTL 256,392 thousand) issuing
113,595 ordinary shares with the par value LTL 6 each. The issue price of shares is equal to their nominal
value. A building of a boiler house located in Kaunas city, owned by Kaunas City Municipality, and
engineering networks located in Jurbarkas city, owned by Jurbarkas Region Municipality, were received as a
non-monetary contribution in kind for these shares. The value of this non-monetary contribution as of the
transfer date was determined by independent valuators under the replacement cost method.

All shares were fully paid as of 31 December 2013 and as of 31 December 2012.

On 30 April 2012 the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders has made a decision to pay
LTL 10,683 thousand, i.e. at 25 cents a share in dividends from the profit of the year 2011. The dividends
were started to pay in the end of June 2012, as soon as the permissions under credit agreements from credit
institutions were received. The unpaid part of dividends amotnting to LTL 9 thousand as of 31 December
2013 (31 December 2012 — LTL 13 thousand) is accounted for in other current liabilities.

12



AB KAUNO ENERGIJA, Company code 235014830, Raudondvarie rd. 84, Kaunas, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2013 (all amounts are in
LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

The Group and the Company are also involved in maintenance of heating systems. On 1 July 2006 on the
basis of Kaunas Energy Services Department the Company established the subsidiary
UAB Pastaty PrieZifiros Paslaugos (hereinafter — PPP). The main activity of the PPP is exploitation and
maintenance of building heating network and heating consumption equipment, internal engineering networks
and systems as well as building structures. Starting from July 1, 2006 the Company contracted the PPP for
permanent technical maintenance of heating and hot water supply systems of the buildings maintained by the
Company. Wheteas, according to the changes in the Law on Heat Sector, the PPP is not able to provide
heating and hot water supply systems maintenance services starting from 1 July 2012, reorganization of the
PPP in the way of separation was approved by the decision of the Company’s Management Board of 6 April
2012. On 16 April, 2013 the Company completed procedures of reorganization of PPP in the way of
separation. On 16 April, 2013 the new statutes of activity continuing PPP and newly established subsidiary
UAB Kauno Energija NT (hereinafier — KENT)} were registered in Register of Legal Entities. On 22 April,
2013 the Company announced a tender of sale of PPP. On 19 June, 2013 Company’s Management Board
decided not to sell block of shares of PPP at the price bid. On 24 September 2013 the Company’s
Management Board assigned Company’s administration by protoco! decision to pursue procedures of the end
of PPP as of a legal entity in the way chosen by administration. On 25 October, 2013 Company’s Board
accepted by the protocol decision liquidation of PPP and pursuance of procedures of choosing of liquidator.
On 11 December, 2013 the Company’s Board decided as filling functions of the only sharehclder of PPP to
liquidate a subsidiary PPP starting from 16 December, 2013 and to appoint Attorney’s Professional
Community Magnusson ir Partneriai attormey Aiva Duméaitiené as a liquidator.

The Groﬁp consists of the Company and the Subsidiaries PPP and KENT (hereinafter — the Group):

Loss
Share Writing-off  reported
Principal heldby  Costof | costof  after capltal Total Main
Company place of . investment reduction . L
busi the investment . equity activities
usiness . - - reducing . and
' P the capital shareholder
' contribution
UAB Pastaty Savanoriy 100 T ' I\?flr;?;?ce
PrieziGiros Ave. 347, 6,518 {1,916) . 107 4,709 £
* percent and hot water
Pastaugos Kaunas
systems
UAB Pastaty ~ Savanoriy 100 : Nﬁﬁt:;;}sce
Priezifiros Ave. 347, 10 - ) s 08
" .2 percent - : : and hot water
Paslaugos Kaunas
systems
Savanoriy
UABRauno ) 0oy, 100 45 (883) 15 4,607 Rent
energija NT percent _
Kaunas

e *The data presented as of 31 March, 2013 — until company’s separation;
¢ ** The data presented as of 31 December, 2013 — after company’s separation.

As of 31 December 2013 accumulated impairment loss on investment in PPP amounted to LTL 2,799
thousand (31 December 2012 — LTL 1,764 thousand) in the Company’s profit or loss in article of financial
activity expenses (Note 20).

It has been decided by the decision of the meeting of PPP shareholders of 28" of May, 2012 to reduce
authorised capital to LTL 4,915 thousand by adjusting accumulated loss of LTL 1,603 thousand. The new
Articles of Association of PPP were registered on 13% of June, 2012. It has been decided by the decision of
the meeting of shareholders of 16" of November, 2012 to reduce authorised capital to LTL 4,754 thousand
by withdrawing accumulated loss of LTL 161 thousand. The new Articles of Association of PPP were
registered on 7" of December, 2012. It has been decided by the decision of the meeting of shareholders of 21
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AB KAUNO ENERGIJA, Company code 235014830, Raudondvario rd. 84, Kaunas, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2013 (all amounts are in
LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

February 2013 to reduce authorised capital to LTL 4,602 thousand by withdrawing accumulated loss of LTL
152 thousand. The new Articles of Association of PPP were registered on 6 March, 2013.

It has been decided by the decision of the meeting of PPP’s sharcholders of 22% of March, 2013 to transfer to
PPP LTL 45 thousand - shareholder's contribution in, and LTL 110 thousand targeted shareholder
contributions, that were transferred in 22 March 2013

Legal Regulations :

Operations of the Company are regulated by the Heating Law No. IX-1565 of 20 May 2003 of the Republic
of Lithuania. Starting from 1 January 2008, the Law amending the Heating Law No. X-1329 of
20 November 2007 of the Republic of Lithuania came in to force. On 13 of October, 2011 the change in
Heating Law has been announced. It determines that heating and hot water systems as well as heat points of
blocks of flats must be supervised by the supervisor unrelated to the supplier of heat and hot water, who must
be chosen by inhabitants of this block of flats, without reference to ownership of these heat points. This
prohibition, provided by the law, is not applied to the maintenance of heating and hot water systems of
buildings which appear in populated localities with less than 50 000 inhabitants according to the data of the
Lithuanian Department of Statistics, if the municipal council doesn’t make a different decision. This change
in the Law on Heat Sector of the Republic of Lithuania No XI-1613 came into force starting
November 1, 2011. Any expenses, related to maintenance of the heat points are not included in a heat price
since that date.

According to the Heating Law of the Republic of Lithuania, the Company’s activities are licensed and
regulated by the State Price Regulation Commission of Energy Resources (hereinafter the Commission).
On 26 February 2004 the Commission granted the Company the heat distribution license. The license has
indefinite maturity, but is subject to meeting certain requirements and may be revoked based on the
respective decision of the Commission. The Commission also sets price cap for the heat supply.
On the 14 December 2012 the Commission determined by its decision No. O3-413 a new basic heat rates
force components for the period from 1 January 2013 till 31 December 2016.

Operational Activity

The Company’s generation capacity includes a power plant in Petra3itinai, 4 district boiler-houses in Kaunas
integrated network, 7 regional boiler-houses in Kaunas region, 1 regional boiler-house in Jurbarkas city,
13 isolated networks and 31 local gas burning boiler-houses in Kaunas.

Total installed heat generation capacity is 443.4 MW and electricity — 8.75 MW, respectively, out of which
254.8 MW of heat generation and 8 MW of electric capacity are located at the power plant in PetraSitinai.
27 MW of heat generation capacity is located in Jurbarkas city. The total Company’s power generation
capacity is 452.15 MW,

In the year 2003 the Company sold a part of the assets of the subdivision Kauno Elektriné to
UAB Kauno Termofikacijos Elektriné (hereinafter — KTE) and committed to purchase at least 80 percent of
the annual demand of Kaunas integrated heating network from this company. The contract is valid for
15 years from the signing day. It was determined in this contract that heat purchase price from KTE will not
increase in 5 years from the day of contract signing. Starting from 1 December 2008 a new basic heat prices
for each 4 years period are being approved by the Commission for KTE and for the Company according to
valid legal acts.

The Company received an official note on 13® of April, 2012 confirming the decision of Gazprom OAO to
sell its shares to the smaller shareholder “Clement Power Venture Inc.”, and the provision, that
Gazprom OAQ as the main shareholder of KTE must ensure that during the term of agreement, i. e. until
30® of March, 2018 it will own the. main block of shares and adequate (not less than 51 percent) number of
votes in General meeting of shareholders, is confirmed in heat purchase agreement signed in 2003 between
the Company and KTE, Company’s Management Board decided on 10% of July, 2012 to approve the selling
of all the shares of Kauno Termofikacijos Elektringé UAB owned by Gazprom OAO to Clement Power
Venture Inc., regularizing terms of change of contracts agreements signed with Kauno Termofikacijos
Flekiriné UAB and seeking the best for the Company from this selling On 13 March 2013 KTE adduced to
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Company an evidence, i.e. an extract from securities account, saying that ownership of the shares of KTE
owned by Gazprom OAQ is transferred to Clement Power Venture Inc. since 7 March 2013. The changes of
Agreement on Investments and of Heat Sales Contract of 31 March 2003 which were signed respectively on
13 August 2012 and 28 September 2012, as well as termination of Contract of Guarantee signed between
Company and Gazprom OAO on 13 August 2013 came into force since that date. Following changes of Heat
Sales Contract that came into force, Company’s cbligation to purchase from KTE at least 80 per cent of
produced heat, demanded in Kaunas integrated heat supply network was withdrawn. According to changes of
Agreement on Investments it was newly agreed and investments objects were intended for a preliminary sum
of LTL 350 million as well as detailed schediile of investmerits implementation for the years 2013 — 2017.
Herewith KTE took the obligations from these investments to finance Company’s investments in Company’s
infrastructure in amount of LTL 10 million, which will be fulfilled during the period of 2012 — 2016. KTE
obliged to pay 10 percent forfeit from the value of unfulfilled investments. Notwithstanding agreements
reached, on 30 April, 2013 KTE placed a claim to Vilnius Court of Commercial Arbitration. KTE seeks to
argue obligations, determined by chapters 2 and 3 of Investments Agreement of 13 August, 2013 by this
claim regarding investments in Company heat economy in amount of LTL 10 million and the terms of
1mplementat10n as well as forfeit (penalties) determined if those investments would not be 1mplemented The
session in this case is appomted on § May 2014 |

In 2013 the average number of employees at the Group was 575 (626 employees in 2012). In 2013 the
average number of employees at the Company was 565 (589 employees in 2012).

Strategic Decisions

On 6 June, 2013 the Kaunas city council approved Company’s investment plans for the years 2012 — 2015,
according to which investments in amount of LTL 173,934 million are intended to invest into Company’s
assets duting the period of the years 2012 — 2015, The Group and the Company invested LTL 44,701 and
44,718 thousand in the own property durmg 2012 (durmg 2012 - LTL 30,620 thousand. and
30,661 thousand). '

Estimating conditionally high price of the heat bought from KTE, which owns a main Kaunas heat
production source, and seeking to contribute to the international liabilities of Lithuania to increase usage of
renewable energy sources in heat production, to reduce Lithuania’s dependence from imported fossil fuel and
to provide the heat energy at a competitive price, the Company initiated reconstruction projects of existing
boiler-houses, fitting them to work on wood fuel (wooden chips, waste of deforestation, sawdust).

In November — December 2013 the projects “Reconstruction of Noreikiskes boiler-house equipping it with
biofuel burned 4 MW capacity water heating boiler” (value of the project is LTL 5.3 million, planned-
amount of produced heat — 6500 MWh per year) and “Reconstruction of EZerélis boiler-house equipping it
with biofuel burned 3.5 MW capacity water heating boiler” (value of the project is LTL 4.6 million, planned
amount of produced heat — 6710 MWh per year) were implemented. Both projects were 1mp1emented using
financial support from Lithuanian Environmental Investment Fund (LEIF) in amount of LTL 4.1 million.

Biofuel burmed § MW capacity fully automatized water heating boiler with 4 MW condensational
economizer was installed in Silkas boiler-house. Total installed capacity of boiler-house is 12 MW. Planned
annual production with new equipment is 96 GWh of heat.

The new gas burned 18 MW capacity water heating boiler was installed in Pergale boiler-house.

Indicator of fuel used for heat production decreased from 90.5 to 89.7 kg,./MWh i. e. 0.8 kg,./MWh. The
total production was 22 433 MWh. Fuel economized — 17 946 t,. or LTL 293 thousand per year.

The Company has already started and plans to equip in 2014 a biofuel burned 8 MW capacity water heating
boiler and 4 MW capacity condensational economizer combined for boilers No 5 and No 6 in Silkas boiler-
house (II stage of Silkas boiler-house project). The total value of the project with support from LBSA is LTL
8 million.
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It is planned in 2014 to install a new 15 MW capacity gas burned water heating boiler with 1.5 capacity
condensational economizer in Silkas boiler-house. Value of the project is LTL 2 million.

The Company has already started and plans to equlp in 2014 in Inkaras boiler-house two biofuel burned §
MW capacity water heating boilers with furnace and 4 MW capacity condensational economizer. The total
value of the project with support from LBSA is LTL 14.994 million.

The Company has already started and plans to implement in 2014 a reconstruction of water heating boiler
PTVM-100 No 2 in Petragifinal power plant equipping it with condensational economizer of capacity 10
MW. 1t is also planned to automatize it and to equip with frequency gear convertor. Total value of the project
is LTL 7.25 million.

The Company plans to start a reconstruction of Petra$ifinai power plant in 2014 changing currently used fuel
to biofuel. Total heat capacity of new equipment will reach 30 MW. It is planned to produce approximately
244 GWh of heat energy with these new equipment. It is also planned to use approximately 93 thousand tons
of wooden fuel for heat production annually. Estimated value of the project with support from LBSA is
LTL 25 million.

Further progress of PetraSilinai power plant project is described in Note 26.

Tt is planned these projects will be 1mplemented in 2014 - 2015 and it will p0551bly have an 1mpact on heat
consumer prices reduction. = : : S

The Company plans to reconstruct its own mains of integrated heat supply network named 5T, 6Z, 17, 37
and 47. Total estimated value of these projects is LTL 13,889 thousand.

The Company has applications from 21 potential independent heat producers at the moment (with total
capacity 526 MW) to connect to Company’s integrated heat supply network.

2 independent heat producers, hereinafter — IHP, with total capacity of 30 MW supply heat produced from
biofuel for the Company: It is presumable estimating real actions that 3 more IHP, i. e. UAB Pramonés
Energija with capacity of 20 MW, UAB Okseta with capacity of 57 MW and UAB Aldec General with
capacity of 20 MW, whose maximum total capacity of biofuel burned boilers will reach 97 MW will start to
produce heat in 2014, However along with coming of IHP the new issues emerged: network management in
case of unexpected stop of heat producer equipment, holding of network parameters, regulation of heat
purchase procedure and its changes.
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2. Accounting principles
2.1. Adoption of new and/or amended IFRS

The following new or amendments to the existing standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee and adopted by the EU are effective for the annual accouting periods beginning on after
2013 and relevant to the Company and the Group:Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instrument:

¢ Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities, adopted by the ES on 13 December
2012 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013). The amendment requires
disclosures that will enable users of an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect
of netting arrangements, including rights of set-off.

s IFRS 13 Fair value measurement, adopted by the ES on 11 December 2012 (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013). Aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by
providing a revised definition of fair va.lue and a smgle source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across IFRSs.

» Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements — Changes the disclosure of items
presented in other comprehensive income, adopted by the ES on 5 June 2012 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012). The amendments require entities to separate items presented in other
comprehensive income into two groups, based on whether or not they may be reclassified to profit or loss in
the future. The suggested title used by IAS 1 has changed to ‘statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income’.

» Amended IAS 19 Employee benefits — Makes significant changes to the recognition and measurement
of defined benefit pension expense and termination benefits, and to the disclosures for all employee benefits,
adopted by the ES on 5 June 2012 (effective for periods beginning on-or after 1 January 2013), The standard
requires recognition of all changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) when they occur, as follows:
(1) service cost and net interest in profit or loss; and (ii) remeasurements in other comprehensive income.
Improvements to IFRS (effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2013). The improvements consist
of changes to five standards:

e JFRS 1 was amended to (i) clarify that.an entity that resumes preparing its JFRS financial statements
may either repeatedly apply IFRS 1 or apply all IFRSs retrospectively as if it had never stopped applying
them, and (ii) to add an exemption from applying IAS 23, Borrowing costs, retrospectively by first-time
adopters. IAS 1 was amended to clarify that explanatory notes are not required to support the third balance
sheet presented at the beginning of the preceding period when it is provided because it was materially
impacted by a retrospective restatement, changes in accounting policies or reclassifications for presentation
purposes, while explanatory notes will be required when an entity voluntarily decides to provide additional
comparative statements.

o TAS 16 was amended to clarify that servicing equlpment that is used for more than one period is
classified as property, plant and equipment rather than inventory.

e JAS 32 was amended to clarify that certain tax consequences of distributions to owners should be
accounted for in the income statement as was always required by IAS 12,

* TAS 34 was amended to bring its requirements in line with IFRS 8. IAS 34 will require disclosure of a
measure of total assets and liabilities for an operating segment only if such information is regularly provided
to chief operating decision maker and there has been a material change in those measures since the last
anmual financial statements.

The following new or amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations adopted by the EU that are
mandatory for annual accounting periods beginning on or after 2013 but not relevant to the
Group/Company are as follows:

o Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards —
Government loans, adopted by the ES on 4 March 2013 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013). The amendments of the standard related to loans obtained from the state with a lower than
market interest rates and their purpose — to allow for dperators to dispense with all the provisions
retrospective of accounting for these loans when they use to IFRS first time.
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s Amendments to- IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standard — . .
Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates for first-time adopters, adopted by the ES on
11 December 2012 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013).

e IFRIC 20 Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine, adopted by the ES on
11 December 2012 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013).

e« Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes — Recovery of underlying assets, adopted by the ES on
11 December 2012 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013). Thsese amendments
These amendments changed the defined benefit pension and severance costs of recognition and evaluation,
also information about the requirements of all employee benefits disclosure. According to the standard
required to recognize all of the net defined benefit liability (asset) changes when they occur as follows:
(i) the service cost and net interest profit or loss and (ii) repeated assessments in other comprehensive
income.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements the following standarts, revisions and
interpretations adopted by the ES were in issue but not yet effective becanse are mandatory for annual
accouting periods beggining on or after 1 January 2014 and have not been early adopted by the
Group/Company:

e IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements, adopted by the ES on 11 December 2012 (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014), replaces all of the guidance on control -and
consolidation in IAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements and SIC-12 Consolidation — special
purpose entities. [FRS 10 changes the definition of control so that the same criteria are applied to all entities
to determine control. This definition is supported by extensive application guidance.

e TFRS 11 Joint arrangements, adopted by the ES on 11 December 2012 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014), replaces IAS 31 Interests in jodint ventures and SIC-13 Jointly
controlled entities—non-monetary contributions by ventures. Changes in the definitions have reduced the
number of types of joint arrangements to two: joint operations and joint ventures. The existing policy choice
of proportionate consolidation for jointly controlled entities has been eliminated. Equity a.ccountmg is
mandatory for participants in joint ventures.

* ' IFRS 12 Disclosure of interest in other entities, adopted by the ES on 11 December 2012 (effecnve
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014), applies to entities that have an interest in a
subsidiary, a joint arrangement, an associate or an unconsolidated structured entity. IFRS 12 sets out the
required disclosures for entities reporting under the two new standards: IFRS 10, Consolidated financial
statements, and [FRS 11, Joint arrangements, and replaces the disclosure requirements currently found in
IAS 28, Investments in associates. JFRS 12 requires entities to disclose information that helps financial
statement readers to evaluate the nature, risks and financial effects associated with the entity’s interests in
subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements and unconsolidated structured entities. To meet these objectives,
the new standard requires disclosures in a mumber of areas, including significant judgments and assumptions
made in determining whether an entity controls, jointly controls, or significantly influences its interests in
other entities, extended disclosures on share of non-controlling interests in group activities and cash flows,
summarised financial information of subsidiaries with material noncontrolling interests, and detailed
disclosures of interests in unconsolidated structured entities.

e IAS 27 Separate financial statements (revised in 2011), adopted by the ES on 11 December 2012
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014) was changed and its objective is now to
prescribe the accounting and disclosure requirements for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates when an entity prepares separate financial statements. The guidance on control and consolidated
financial statements was replaced by IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements.

¢ TAS 28 Investments in- associates and joint ventures(revised.in 2011) , adopted by the ES on
11 December 2012 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014). The amendment of
IAS 28 resulted from IFRS 11 and now requires accountmg for joint ventures and associates using the equity
method.

o Amendments to TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities, adopted by the ES on 13 December 2012 (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014). The amendment added application guidance to IAS 32 to address inconsistencies
identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria. This includes clarifying the meaning of ‘currently has a
legally enforceable right of set -off” and that some gross settlement systems may be considered eqmvalent to
net settlement.
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e Transition guidance amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements, IFRS 11 Joint
arrangements and IFRS 12 Disclosure of interest in other entities, adopted by the ES on 4 April 2013
(effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2014). The amendments clarify the transition guidance in
IFRS 10. Entities adopting IFRS 10 should assess control at the first day of the annual period in which IFRS
10 is adopted, and if the consolidation conclusion under [FRS 10 dif fers from IAS 27 and SIC 12, the
immediately preceding comparative period (that is, year 2012 for a calendar year-end entity that adopts IFRS
10 in 2013) is restated, unless impracticable. The amendments also provide additional transition relief in
IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 by limiting the requirement to provide adjusted comparative information
only for the immediately preceding comparative period. Further, the amendments will remove the
requirement to present comparative information for disclosures related to unconsolidated structured entities
for periods before IFRS 12 is first applied.

e  Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of interest in
other entities and TAS 27 Separate financial statements — Investment enities, adopted by the ES on
20 November 2013 (effective for armual periods beginning 1 January 2014). The amendment introduced a
definition of an investment entity as an entity that (i) obtains funds from investors for the purpose of
providing them with investment management services, (ii) cornmits to its investors that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for capital appreciation or investment income and (iii) measures and evaluates its
investments on a fair value basis. An investment entity will be required to account for its subsidjaries at fair
value through profit or loss, and to consolidate only those subsidiaries that provide services that are related to
the entity's investment activities. IFRS 12 wads amended to introduce new disclosures, including any
significant judgements made in determining whether an entity is an investment entity and information about
financial or other support io an unconsolidated subs;d1ary, whether intended or already provided to the
subsidiary.

*  Amendments to IAS 36 Impalrment of Assets — Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assets, adopted by the ES on 19 December 2013 (effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2014;

earlier application is permitted if TFRS 13 is applied for the same accounting and comparative period). The
amendments remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable amount when a cash generating unit
contains goodwill or indefinite lived intangible assets but there has been no impairment.

¢ Amendments to IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement — Novation of
derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting,adopted by the ES on 19 December 2013 (effective for
annual periods beginning 1 January 2014).The amendments will allow hedge accounting to continue in a
situation where a derivative, which has been designated as a hedging instrument, is novated (i.e parties have
agreed to replace their original counterparty with a new one) to effect clearing with a central counterparty as
a result of laws ar regulation, if specific conditions are met.

At present, IFRS as adopted by the EU do not significantly differ from regulations adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board except from the following standards, amendments to the
existing standards and interpretations, which were not endorsed for use as at 2013 and that have not
been early adopted by the Group/Company :

e IFRS 9 Financial instruments: Classification and measurement;

s JFRIC 21, Taxes;

. Amendments t0-IAS 19 Defined benefit plans Employee contnbutlons

*  Annual improvements to 2012 TFRSs;

»  Annual improvements to 2013 [FRSs.

The Group/Company is currently assessing the impact of these amendments on its financial statements.

There are no other new or amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and that may have
a material impact for the Group/Company.

2.2. Statement of Compliance
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU) and interpretations of them. The standards are issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the mterpretatlons by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC).-
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Basis of the preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on a cost basis, except for certain financial instruments, which
are stated at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for-assets.

The financial year of the Company and other Group companies coincides with the calendar year.

Ttems included in the financial statements of the Group and the Company are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which they operate (the ‘functional currency’). The amounts shown in
these financial statements are measured and presented in the local currency of the Republic of Lithuania,

litas (LTL) which is a functional and presentation currency of the Company and its subsidiaries and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousands, except when otherwise indicated.

Starting from 2 February 2002, Lithuanian litas is pegged to EUR at the rate of 3.4528 LTL for 1| EUR, and
the exchange rates in relation to other currencies are set daily by the Bank of Lithuania.

Principles of consolidation

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include AB Kauno Energija and its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company.
Consolidated financial statements are prepared on the basis of the same accounting principles applied to
similar transactions and other events under similar circumstances.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners -of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Subsidiary is the company which is directly or indirectly controlled by the parent company. The control is
normally evidenced when the Group owns, either directly or indirectly, more than 50 percent of the voting
rights of a company’s share capital or otherwise has power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an enterptise so as to benefit from its activities.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaties

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts
or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of the relevant assets (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by applicable IFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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2.3. Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries in the Company s Statements of Financial Position are recognized at cost The
dividend i income from the investment is recognized in the. profit (loss). - ‘

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in a subsidiary. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impajrment of
Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

2.4.Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Derecognition of intangible assets :

An intangible asset is derecogmzed on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use
or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in profit ot loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Licenses o
Amounts paid for licenses are capitalised and then amortised over useful life (3 — 4 years).

Software :
The costs of acquisition of new software are capitalised and treated as an intangible asset if these costs are
not an integral part of the related hardware. Software is amortised over a period not exceeding 3 years.

Costs incurred in order to restore or maintain the future economic benefits of performance of the existing
software systems are recognised as an expense for the period when the restoration or maintenance work is
carried out.

2.5. Accounting for emission rights

The Group and the Company apply a ‘net liabilitjf’ approach in accounting for the emission rights received.
It records the emission allowances granted to it at nominal amount, as permitted by [AS 20 Accounting for
Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance.

Liabilities for emissions are recognised only as emissions are made (i.e. provisions are never made on the
basis of expected future emissions) and only when the reporting entity has made emissions in excess of the
rights held.

When applying the net liability approach, the Group and the Company have chosen a system that measures
deﬁc1ts on the basis of an annual allocation of émission rlghts

The ouiright sale of an emission right is recorded as a salo at the value of consideration received. Any
difference between the fair value of the consideration received and its carrying amount is recorded as a gain
or loss, irrespective of whether this creates an actual or an expected deficit of the allowances held. When a
sale creates an actual deficit an additional liability is recognised with a charge to the profit or loss.
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2.6. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of such property, plant and equipment when that cost is incurred if the asset recognition
criteria are met.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes, or for purposes not
yet determined, are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and,
for qualifving assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Group’s and the Company’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences When
the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold fand and properties under
construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. ‘

The useful lives are reviewed annually to ensﬁre that the period of depreciation is consistent with the
expected pattern of economic benefits from the items in property, plant and equipment. Depreciation periods
were revised as of 1 Septemiber 2008, as further described in Note 2.25.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings 7-50
Structures and machmery ‘ L 570
Vehicles 3-10

Equipment and tools 2-20
Freehold land is not depreciated. x

The Group and the Company capitalizes property, plant and equipment purchases with useful life over one
year and an acquisition cost above L'TL 500.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. : .

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognized.

Subsequent repair costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs -and
maintenance are recognized in profit or loss in the peried in which they are incurred. :

Lease hold improvement expenses related to property under rental and/or operating lease agreements which
prolong the estimated useful life of the asset are capitalized and depreciated during the term of rental and/or
operating lease agreements.

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost. This includes the cost of construction, plant and equipment and
other directly attributable costs. Construction-in-progress is not depreciated until the relevant assets are
completed and put into operation. :
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2.7.Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each statement of financial position date, the Group and the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment foss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group and the Company estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, Group’s and Company’s assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basm can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. ' '

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately. in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset {cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

2.8.Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, [oans and
receivables or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. All purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs. .

Effective interest rate method

The effective interest method is a method' of calculatmg the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on 1mt1al
recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL When the financial asset is either held for tradmg or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for tradmg if:
e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
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e  on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio. of identified financial instruments that the Group and the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
s  itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

* such designation eliminates or swmﬁcantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its .performance is evaluated on-a fdir value basis, in accordance with the Group’s and the
Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 3% Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or hablhty) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ lme item in the statement
of comprehensive income. :

Available-for-sale financial assets (AFS financial assets)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS or are not classified
as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to- maturlty investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. | .

Listed redeemable notes held by the Group and the Company that are traded in an active market are
classified as available-for-sale and are stated at fair value. The Group and the Company also has investments
in unlisted shares that are not fraded in an active market but that are also classified as available-for-sale
financial assets and stated at fair value (because the directors consider that fair value can be reliably
measured). Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve, with the exception of impairment losses,
interest calculated using the effective interest method, and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary
assets, which are recognized in profit or loss. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss when the Group’s and the
Company’s right to receive the dividends is established.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange gains
and losses that are recognized in profit or loss are determined based on the amortized cost of the monetary
asset. Other foreign exchange gains and losses arerecognized in other comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with {ixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment. Gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset value decreases
or it is amortized.

Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each

reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that cccurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For listed and unlisted equity investments classified as AFS, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, including redeemable notes classified as AFS and finance lease recelvables
objective evidence of impairment could include: '

» significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

» default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

» it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s and the Company’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of -
30 days, as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group and the Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group and the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
and the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group and the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group and the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also
recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity s recognized in profit or loss.

2.9.Derivative financial instruments

The Group and the Company uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps to hedge its
interest rate risks. Such derivative financial Instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as ﬁnancml liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives during the year are taken directly to the
profit (loss) for the period if they do not qualify for hedge accounting.

The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is determined by the reference to market values for slmllar
instruments.

2.10. Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value represents the

estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out (FIFQ) basis.
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The cost of inventories is net of volume discounts and rebates received from suppliers during the reporting
period but applicable to the inventories still held in stock.

2.11. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group and the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group and the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made-of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to setfle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
catrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2.12. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand, cash at banks and cash in transit. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or
less and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purposes of the cash flow étatement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on haﬁd, cash with
banks, cash in transit, deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments.

2.13. Employee benefits

Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and unrecognized past service cost,
and as reduced by the fair value of plan assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to
unrecognized actuarial losses and past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions
in future contributions to the plan. '

2.14. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets aie substantially ready for their intended

use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit of foss in the period in which they are incurred.
2.17. Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity |

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group and the Company are recognized at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities “at FVTPL® or ‘other financial Habilities’.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or 1t is
designated as at FVTPL.

Other financial liabilities .
Other financial liabilities (including borrowmgs) are subsequently measured at amort:sed cost using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense aver the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial Liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Detecognition of financial liabilities
The Group and the Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s and the
Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

2.18. Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group and the Company as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s
and the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s and the Company’s net investment outstanding
in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.’
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group and the Company as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Group and the Company at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance iease
obligation. :

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s and the Company’s general policy on borrowing costs.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals ansmg under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.
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In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as
a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. :

2.19. Grants (deferred income)

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group and the Company
will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
and the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Group and the Company should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Grants received in the form of non-current assets or intended for the purchase, construction or other
acquisition of non-current assets are considered as asset-related ‘grants. Assets received free of charge are
also allocated to this group of grants. The amount of the grants related to assets is recognized as deferred
income and is credited to profit or loss in equal annual amounts over the expected useful life of related asset.
In the statement of comprehenswe income, a relevant expense account is reduced by the amount of grant
amortisation. :

Assets received free of charge are initially recognised at fair value.

Grants received as a compensation for the expenses or unearned income of the current or previous reporting
period, also, all the grants, which are not grants related to assets, are considered as grants related to income.
The income-related grants are recognised as used in parts to the extent of the expenses incurred during the
reporting period or unearned income to be compensated by that grant.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant,
measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing
market inferest rates.

The balance of unutilised grants is shown in the caption Grants (deferred income) in the balance sheet.

2.20. Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax -

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the vear. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. Income
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. In 2013 the income tax applied to the Group and the Company was 15 percent (2012 — 15 percent).

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary d1fferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the cormnputation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

28



AB KAUNO ENERGIJA, Company code 235014830, Raudondvario rd. 84, Kaunas, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY"'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2013 {all amounts are in
LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the beneﬁts of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset 10 be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is seftled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group and the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax-liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when they relate to
itemns that are recognised outside profit or loss (whether in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity), in which case the tax is also recognised outside profit or loss, or where they arise from the initial
accounting for a business combination. In the case ofa busmess combmatlon the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

2.21. Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the shareholders by the
- weighted average of ordinary registered shares issued. There are no instructions reducing earnings per share,
there is no difference between the basic and diluted earnings per share.

2.22. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is pfobable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the enterprise and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. Sales are recognised net of
VAT and discounts.

Revenue from sales of heat energy is recognised based on the bills issued to residential and other customers
for heating and heating-up of cold water. The customers are billed monthly according to the readings of heat
meters.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied:

* the Group and the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods;

* the Group and the Company retains neither continuing managerial mvolvement to the degree usnally
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

» the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; ‘

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group and the
Company; and

*  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Late payment interest income from overdue receivables is recognised upon receipt.
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Dividend revenue from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the Company
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s and the Company’s policy for recogmtmn of revenue from operating leases is described in
Note 2.18 below.

2.23. Expense recognition

Expenses are recognised on the basis of accrual and revenue and expense matching principles in the
reporting period when the income related to these expenses was earned, irrespective of the time the money
was spent. In those cases when the costs incurred cannot be directly attributed to the specific income and
they will not bring income during the future periods, they are expensed as incurred.

The amount of expenses is usually accounted for as the amount paid or due, excluding VAT. In those cases
when a long period of payment is established and the interest is not d1st1ngu15hed the amount of expenses is
est1mated by discounting the amount of payment using the market interest rate.

2.24. Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities of the Group, transactions in currencies other
- than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that dre measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

The presentation currency is Litas (LTL). All transactions had functional currency other than LTL translated
into LTL at the official Bank of Lithuania exchange rate on the date of the transaction, which approximates
the prevailing market rates. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Gains and losses arising on exchange are
included in profit or loss for the period.

The applicable rates used-for principal currencies were as follews:

As of 31 December 2013 As of 31 December 2012

1 EUR = 34528 LTL 1 EUR = 3.4528 LTL
1 USD = 25098 LTL 1 USD = 2.6060 LTL
1 GBP = 4.1391 LTL. - 1GBP = 42015 LTL

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

» cxchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustmerit to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

*  exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the net investment.
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2.25. Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, Habilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingencies, at the
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in cutcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.

[Estimates and assumptions - ‘
The key assumptions concerning the future and ofher key sources of estimation uncertamty at the Statements

of Financial Position date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Property, plant and equipment — useful life

The key assumptions concerning determination the useful hfe of property, plant and equipment are as
follows: expected usage of the asset, expected physlcal wear and tear, technical or commercial absolescence
arising from changes or improvements in the services, legal or similar limits on the use of the asset, such as
the exp1ry dates of related leases. :

The Group and the Company has considered the actual useful life of property, plant and equipment and
increased a depreciation rate for the heating connections from 20 years to 30 years and for the heating
stations from 10 years to 15 years respectively starting from 1 September 2008.

Realisable value of inventory
Starting from 2011, the management of the Company forms a 100 per cent ad]ustment to the net realizable
value for inventory bought more than one year ago.

Carrymg value of non-current assets recezved asa conrrzburzon in kind

In 2009 a new shares issue was paid by contribution in-kind - manifolds situated in Kaunas city: i.e. market
value of assets determined upon their transfer by local qualified valuators using depreciated replacement
costs method amounted to LTL 136 million.

In 2010 a new shares issue was paid by contribution in-kind: i.e. building — boiler-house situated in Kaunas
city and by networks system situated in Jurbarkas city. Market value of assets estimated upon their transfer
by local qualified valuators by using depreciated replacement costs method amounted to LTL 0.616 million.

Following decision of 12 August 2012 of the Commission stated in 2012, the Company performed an
additional valuations of contribution in-kind, i. e. manifolds in 2012. It’s emphasized in the valuation report,
that in this particular case a value of manifolds calculated in the method of income is not correct market
value of the asset and the value of the manifolds, determined under the replacement cost method, is
considered to be the market value of the assets.

As of 31 December 2013 carrying value of total contribution in-kind amounted to LTL 128,423 thousand,
including the manifolds, which amounted to LTL 127,840 thousand (31 December 2012:
LTL 130,395 thousand and L.TL 129,785 thousand respectlvely)

Allowances for accounts recezvable

The Group and the Company makes allowances for doubtful accounts receivable. Slgmﬁcant judgment is
used to estimate doubtful accounts. In estimating doubtful accounts historical and anticipated customer
performance are considered. Changes in the economy, industry, or specific customer conditions may require
adjustments to the allowance for doubtful accounts recorded in the financial statements.

Deferred Tax Asset

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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Lifigations

The Group and the Compamy reviews all legaI cages for the end of the repomng perlod and disclose all
relevant information in the Note 24.

2.26. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the possibility
of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but dlsclosed when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

2.27. Subsequent events

Post-balance sheet events that provide additional information about the Group’s and the Company’s position
at the balance sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post-balance sheet events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.

2.28. Offsetting and comparative figures

When preparing the financial statements, assets and liabilities, as well as revenue and expenses are not set
off, except the cases when certam IFRS specifically require such set-of¥. :

2.29. Segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief-
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that

makes strategic decisions.

The activities of the Grbup and the Company are organised in one operating segment therefore further
information on segments has not been disclosed in these financial statements
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3. Intangible assets

Movements of intangible assets for the current and prior reporting periods are as follows:

Group Company
Patenfs, licenses

Cost: - :
Balance as of 31 December 2011 - 5,287 5,234
Additions - -
Disposals and write-offs : . - -
Transfers from property, plant and equipment 92 92
Balance as of 31 December 2012 . 5,379 5,326
Additions 73 10
Disposals and write-offs S (155) (40)
Transfers from property, plant and equipment ' o _ %4 - 84
Balance as of 31 December 2013 5,381 5,380
Amortisation: _ - -
Balance as of 31 December 2011 4,982 4,935
Charge for the year ' ‘ 193 187
Disposals and write-offs - -
Balance as of 31 December 2012 : 5,175 5,122
Charge for the year . - 139 ‘ 89 -
Disposals and write-offs o - ' ‘ (142) o (40)
Balance as of 31 December 2013 5172 5,171

: ‘ 0 0
Net boek value as of 31 December 2011 ' _ 305 299
Net book value as of 31 December 2012 204 204
Net book value as of 31 December 2013 : 209 209

Amortisation expenseé of intangible assets are included in the operating expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income.

As of 31 December 2013 part of the non-current intangible assets of the Group with the acquisition cost of
LTL 4,816 thousand (LTL 4,909 thousand as of 31 December 2012) and the Company -—
LTL 4,816 thousand (LTL 4,858 thousand as of 31 December 2012) were fully amortised but were still in
active use. :
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4. Property, plant and equipment

Group

Cost: ‘ .
Balance as of 31 December 2011
Additions '
Disposals and write-offs
Reclassifications

Transfers to intangible assets
Balance as of 31 December 2012
Additions

Disposals and write-offs
Reclassifications

Transfers to intangible assets
Balance as of 31 December 2013

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as of 31 Decembey 2011
Charge for the year

Disposals and write-offs
Reclassifications

Balance as of 31 December 2012
Charge for the year

Disposals and write-offs
Reclassifications

Balance as of 31 December 2013

Net book value as of 31
Pecember 2011
Net book value as of 31
December 2012

Net book value as of
31 December 2013

Structures

Construction in

]l;?llilltlii?l?r‘: an'd Vehicles E;l]:l(;ptzl;ils]t progress and  Total
=7 machinery prepayments
57,127 550,510 4,678 38,604 998 651,917
- 490 318 1,846 27,966 30,620
(254)  (1,536) - (3,566) - (5,356)
136 25,533 - 1,005 (26,674) -
- - - - (92) (92)
37,009 . 574,997 4,99 37,889 2,198 677,089
. 6,830 628 4,352 32,881 44,691
(485)y  (1,153) (485 (246) - (2,369)
1,854 20,428 - 5424 (27,706) -
- . . - (84) (84)
58,378 601,102 5,139 47,419 7,289 719,327
29,454 255,191 4,419 26,724 - 315,788
1,169 13,904 164 2,941 - 18,178
(191)  (1,509) - (3,562) -~ (5262)
- (181) - 181 - -
30,432 - 267,405 4,583 26,284 - 328,704
1,159 14,599 165 2,649 - 18572
(310)  (1,092) (457 (232) - (2,091)
. 12 - (12) - -
31,281 280,924 4,291 28,689 - 345,185
27,673 295,319 259 11,880 998 336,129
26,577 307,592 413 11,605 2,198 348,385
27,007 320,178 848 18,730 7,289 374,142
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Land Structures Equlpment Constructionin -
Company ‘ and and Vehicles progress and Total
i . - and tools
buildings machinery prepayments

Cost: ‘

Balance as of 31 December 2011 54,585 549,886 3,463 38,230 998 647,162
Additions - - 480 360 1,845 27,966 30,661
Disposals and write-offs (254) - (1,534) - (3,559) - (5,347)
Reclassifications 136 25,533 - 1,005 (26,674) -
Transfers to intangible assets - - - - (92) (92)
Balance as of 31 December 2012 54,467 574,375 3,823 37,521 2,198 672,384
Additions - 6,830 628 4,369 32,881 44,708
Disposals and write-offs (485) (1,052)  (123) (90) - (1,752)
Reclassifications 20,428 - 5424 (27,700) - -
Transfers to intangible assets - - - - (84) (84)
Balance as of 31 December 2013 55,836 600,581 4,326 47,224 7,289 715256
Accumulated depreciation: - - - Co- - -
Balance as of 31 December 2011 28,326 254,550 3,221 26,417 - 312,514
Charge for the year : 1,112 13,911 161 2,915 - 18,099
Disposals and write-offs {191) (1,507) - (3,555) - (5,253)
Reclassifications - (181) - 181 - -
Balance as of 31 December 2012 29,247 266,773 3,382 25,958 : - 325,360
Charge for the year 1,101 14,602 166 2,637 - 18,506
Disposals and write-offs ‘ (310 (993  (125) (82) - (1,510)
Reclassifications - 12 - (12) - -
Balance as of 31 December 2013 30,038 280,394 3,423 28,501 - 342,356
Sy bookvalueas of 31 December 5950 205336 242 11813 998 334,648
1:;;21)001( value as of 31 December 25220 307,602 441 11,563 2,198 347,024
Potpookvalue as of 31 December 55798 320,187 903 18,723 7,289 372,900

The depreciation charge of the Group’s and Company’s property, plant and equipment for the half ended as
of 31 December 2013 amounts to LTL 17,220 thousand and LTL 17,151 thousand, respectively (as of
31 December 2012: LTL 18,178 thousand and LTL 18,099 thousand respectively). The amounts of
LTL 17,119 thousand and LTL 17,050 thousand (as of 31 December 2012: LTI 16,844 thousand and
LTL 16,764 thousand respectively) were included into operating expenses (under depreciation and
amortisation and other expenses lines) in the Group’s and the Company’s statement of comprehensive
income. The remaining amounts were included into other activity expenses.

As of 31 December 2013 part of the property, plant and equipment of the Group with acquisition cost of
LTL 114,753 thousand (LTL 105,177 thousand as of 31 December 2012) and the Company -
LTL 114,724 thousand were fully depreciated (LTL 104,726 thousand as of 31 December 2012), but were
still in active use. .

As of 31 December 2013 and as of 31 December 2012 the major part of the Group’s and Company ]
construction in progress consisted of heat supply networks, boiler-houses reconstruction and repair works.

As of 31 December 2013 the sum of the Group‘s and the Company’s contractual commitments for the

acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounted to LTL 35,414 thousand (as of 31 December 2012 —
1.TL 2,020 thousand}.
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As of 31 December 2013 property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company with the net book
value of LTL 207,522 thousand (LTL 80,886 thousand as of 31 December 2012) was pledged to banks as a
collateral for loans (Note 11).

The sum of Group’s and Company’s capitalized interest was equal to LTL 82 thousand in 2013 (as of
31 December 2012: LTL 295 thousand). The capltahzatlon rate varied from 1.40 percent to 2.96 percent in
2013 (in 2012 — from 1.99 percent to 2.8 percent).

As of 31 December 2013 the Group and the Company accounted for assets, not yet ready for use, amounting
to LTL 3,604 thousand in the category Equipment and tools (ILTL 917 thousand as of 31 December 2012).

5. Non-current accounts receivable

Group. Company

As of 31 As of 31 December As of 31 Asof31 .
December 2013 - 2012 December 2013 December 2012
Long-term loans granted to 40 45 40 45

the Company’s employees

Long-term loans granted to the employees of the Company for the period from 1997 to 2023 are non-interest
bearing. These loans are accounted for at discounted value as of 31 December 2013 and as of
31 December 2012 using 3.47 percent interest rate. In 2013 effect of reversed discounting amounted to
LTL 1 thousand (2012 — LTL 9 thousand). The reversal of discounting is accounted in the change of

depreciation of realisable value of recelvables line in the Group’s and Company’s statement of
comprehensive income :

As of 31 December 2013 and as of 31 December 2012 the repayment term of non-current accounts
receivable is not yet due and valuation allowance is not determined.

6. Other financial assets

Group Company
As of 31 Asof31 As of 31 Asof 31
December 2013 December 2012 = December 2013 December 2012

Available-for-sale financial assets .
Fair value of shares 95 433 95 433

Valuators performed the valuation of the assets of UAB Silumos Ukic Servisas, less than 19 percent of
shares of which is owned by the Company, and determined a market value of the shares. As of
31 December 2013 a change in fair value of shares was loss in amount of LTL 338 thousand (as of
31 December 2012 — profit LTL 338 thousand) Impairment loss is accounted in the Group’s and the
Company’s profit (Joss).

7. Inventories

Group Company
As of 31 As of 31 As of 31 As of 31
December December December  December
2013 2012 2013 2012

Technelogical fuel 3,502 3,461 3,502 3,461
Spare parts 1,140 1,292 1,140 1,292
Materials L,L175 . 1,347 1,122 1,256

L 5817 T 6,100 - 5,764 6,009
Less: write-down to net realisable value
of inventory at the end of the period (1,920) (1,854) (1,920) (1,854)
Carrying amount of inventories _ 3,897 4,246 3,844 4,155
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As of 31 December 2013 Group’s and Company’s amounted to LTL 1,920  thowsand (as of
31 December 2012 — LTL 1,854 thousand) write-down to net realisable value of inventories. Changes in the
Write-down to net realisable value of inventories for the 2013 and for the year 2012 were included into
change in write-down to net realisable value of inventories caption in the Group’s and the Company’s
statement of comprehensive income. -

8. Current accounts receivable

Group ' Company
. As of 31 As of 31 As of 31 As of 31
December December - December December
2013 2012 2013 2012
Trade receivables, gross 111,871 129,841 112,036 129,858
Less: impairment of doubtful receivables (54,850) (47,755) (55,027) (47,877)
57,021 82,086 57,009 81,081

Of 31 December 2013 Group’s and Company’s receivables as include the factored receivables amounting to
LTL 2,453 thousand (as of 31 December 2012 — LTL 3,068 thousand), under the agreement -with
UAB Swedbank Lizingas, described in Note 11.

Change in impairment of doubtful receivables in 2013 and 2012 is included into the caption of write-offs and
change in allowance for accounts receivables in the Group’s and the Company’s statements of

comprehensive income.

Movements in the allowance for impairment of the Group’s and the Company’s receivables were as follows:

Group Company
Balance as of 31 December 2011 o : 43,315 43,315
Additional allowance formed ' ' 5,827 5,949
Write-off (1,387) (1,387)
Balance as of 31 December 2012 47,755 47,877
Additional allowance formed 10,336 10,391
Write-off ' (3,241) (3,241)
Balance as of 31 December 2013 : 54,850 55,027

In 2013 the Group and the Company wrote off LTL 3,241 thousand (2012.— LTL 1,387 thousand) of bad .
debts. In 2013 the Group and the Company also recovered LTL 15 thousand (2012 — LTL 17 thousand) of
doubtful receivables, which were written off in the previous periods.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s- net value of trade receivables as of 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2012 is as follows: '

Trade receivables past due

Trade receivables neither 60 - 151 - 241 -
past due nor impaired ~ Lessthan o ) 0 360 More than ., .,
. 60 days .360 days
‘ days days days ,
2013 44,691 3,295 995 973 1,231 5,836 57,021
2012 61,676 6,026 1,243 712 1,594 10,835 82,086

The ageing analysis of the Company’s net value of trade receivables as of 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2012 is as follows:
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Trade receivables past due

Trade receivables neither 60 - 151 - 241 -
past due nor impaired Less than 150 240 360 More than Total
_ §0 days days days days 360 days
2013 44,679 - 3,295 995 973 1,231 5,836 57,009
2012 61,571 6,026 1,243 712 1,594 10,835 81,981

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the payment terms are usually 30 days or agreed individually.

Other Group’s and the Company’s receivables consisted of:

Group Company
As of 31. As of 31 As of 31 December  As of 31

December 2013 December 2012 ' 2013 December 2012
Taxes ' 4,130 3,535 4,130 3,535
Other receivables 5,526 3,126 5,828 3,318

Less: value impairment of -
doubtfill recei\}'jables (228) (567) (534) (759)
9428 6,094 0,424 6,094

Movements in the allowance for impairment of the Group’s and the Company s other receivables were as
follows:

‘ ‘ : Group ‘ Company
Balance as of 31 December 2011 433 481
Additional allowance formed , . 113 305
Write-off _ (27) (27)
Balance as of 31 December 2012 . 567 759
Additional allowance formed . (326) {212)
Balance as of 31 December 2013 228 534

As of 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 the major part of the Group’s and the Company’s other
receivables consisted of compensations from municipalities for low income families, receivables from sold
inventories (metals, heating equipment) and services supplied (maintenance of manifolds and similar
services). '

The ageing analysis of the Group’s net value of other receivables (excluding taxes) as of 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2012 is as follows:

Other receivables Other receivables past due but

neither past due nor  Less than 60 60-150 151-240 241-360 More than360 .. .
‘ impaired "~ days days days  days days
2013 2,126 32 37 6 3,071 26 5,298

2012 2,451 44 51 . 11 2 - 2,559

The ageing analysis of the Company’s net value of other receivables (excluding taxes) as of
31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 is as follows:

Other receivables Other receivables past due but
neither past due nor  T.ess than 60 60 - 150 151-240.241-360 More than 360 .
impaired - ‘days days days days ~ days Tota]
2013 2,122 32 37 6 3,071 26 5,294
2012 2,451 44 51 11 2 - 2,559
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The Group’s and the Company’s other receivables are non-interest ‘bearing and the payment terms. are
usually 30 — 45 days.

According to the management opinion, there are no indications as of the reporting date that the debtors will
not meet their payment obligations regarding trade receivables and other receivables that are neither
impaired nor past due.

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
As of 31 As of 31 As of 31 As of 31
December 2013 December 2012 December 2013 December 2612
Cash in transit ‘ o7 4,181 977 4,181
Cash at bank 1,160 1,141 1,140 1,117
Cash on hand i © 18 10 18 10

2,155 5,332 2,135 5,308

The Group’s and the Company’s accounts in banks amounting to LTL 1137thousand as of
31 December 2013 (31 December 2012 — LTL 459 thousand) are pledged as collateral for the loans

(Note 11).

10. Reserves

Legal and other reserves

A legal reserve is a compulsory reserve under Lithuanian legislation. Annual transfers of not less than
5 percent of net profit calculated in accordance with IFRS are compulsory until the reserve reaches
10 percent of the share capltal The legal reserve cannot be distributed as dividends but can be used to cover
any future losses.

The Company allocated LTL 672 thousand from profit brought forward to legal reserve by the decision of
shareholders of 30 of April, 2012 and LTL 2,584 thousand from profit brought forward to other reserves.
The reserve has been formed for investments.

On 30 April, 2013 the Company annulled other reserves (LTL 2,584 thousand) by the decision of
shareholders, LTL 5,538 thousand transferred from retained earnings to legal reserve and LTL 250 thousand
to other reserves. Reserve was formed for investments.

11. Borrowings |

Group Company
As of 31 As of 31 As of 31 As of 31
December 2013 December 2012 December 2013 December 2012

Non-current borrowings 38,994 33,746 38,994 33,746
Current portion of non-current
borrowings {except leasing which) 20,291 8,489 ' 20,291 8,489
is disclosed in Note 12) : _ '
Current borrowings (including: 14,544 24,563 14,544 24,563
credit line)
Factoring with recourse 2,453 3,068 2453 3.068
agreement
Current borrowings 37,288 : 36,120 37,288 36,120

‘ 76,282 69,866 ‘ 76,282 69,866

Terms of repayment of non-current borrowings are as follows:
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Group Company
As of 31 As of 31 As of 31 As of 31

December 2013 December 2012 December 2013 December 2012

2013 : - - 8,489 - 8,489
2014 20,291 8,761 20,291 8,761
2015 8,568 5,908 8,568 5,908
2016 : 7,121 4,188 7,121 4,188
2017 4,993 2,439 4,993 2,439
2018 3,780 1,944 3,780 1,944
2019 2,551 913 2,551 913
2020 1,432 640 1,432 640
2021 : 754 639 ' 754 - 639
2022 753 640 753 ‘ 640
2023 754 639 754 639
2024 753 640 753 640
2025 754 640 754 640
2026 753 640 753 640
2027 N 754 639 754 639
2028 753 640 753 640
2029 753 639 753 639
2030 ' 754 ' 640 754 640
2031 - 754 639 754 639
2032 753 640 753 640
2033 754 639 754 639
2034 753 639 . 753 639
59,285 42,235 59,285 42235

Average of interest rates (in percent) of borrowings weighted outstanding at the year-end were as follows:

Group _ Company _
As of 31 Asof31 - As of 31 . As of 31
December 2013 December 2012 December 2013 December 2012
Current borrowings 0.97 1.01 0.97 1.01
Non-current borrowings ‘ 2.59 2.78 2.59 2.78

Balance of borrowings (except factoring) at the end of the term in national and foreign currencies was as
follows: :

Group Company
Currency of the loan: o Asof 31 Asof31 As of 31 As of 31
December 2013 December 2012 December 2013 December 2012
EUR 36,816 39,765 36,816 39,765
LTL 37,013 27,033 37,013 27,033

73,829 66,798 73,829 66,798

Detailed information on loans as of 31 December 2013;
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Currency Sum

Balance as of A part of

Credit institution Date of Currency - sum, LTL  Term 0 f 31.12.2013 2014,
contract thousand maturity LTL LTL
thousand

. thousand thousand

1. AB SEB Bank 8/23/2005 EUR 8,776 - 30,300 12/31/2014 2,500 2,500
2. Nordea* 12/1/2006 LTL 6,090 6,090 12/31/2015 1,632 839
3. ABSEBBank = 12/21/2006 EUR 2,059 - 7,108 11/30/2016 891 - 395
4. ABDNB bankas 11/14/2007  EUR 576 1,989 12/31/2016 746 248
5. Danske** 7/31/2008 EUR o84 3,398 12/31/2018 1,736 350
6. Danske** 7/31/2008 EUR 1,158 4,000 9/30/2017 1,955 600
7. Swedbank, AB 12/2/2009 - EUR 3,815 9,819 12/2/2016 3,236 1,203
8. MF Lithuania*** 4/9/2010 EUR 2,410 8,323 3/15/2034 6,139 -
9. Swedbank, AB 6/21/2010 EUR 649 2,240  6/21/2017 599 404
10. Nordea* 9/17/2010 EUR 1,625 5,611 5/31/2016 2,390 989
11. MF Lithuania®*** 10/26/2010 EUR - 807 2,788 3/15/2034 2,526 -
12. AB SEB Bank 2/11/2011 EUR 1,031 3,560 - 2/10/2019 2,830. 548
13. Nordea* 4/19/2011 EUR 921 3,180 4/30/2019 2,907 545
14. MF Lithuania*** 9/2/2011 EUR 1,672 5,773 9/1/2034 5,652 -
15. AB SEB Bank 10/13/2011 EUR". 290 1,000 11/30/2019 448 141
16. AB SEB bankas 5/23/2013 LTL 10,567 10,567 11/30/2014 10,567 10,567
17. AB DNB bank 6/28/2013 LTL 15,000 15,000 6/27/2014 12,758 12,758
18. AB SEB Bank 8/22/2013 LTL 10,000 10,000 8/22/2014 1,786 1,786
19. AB SEB Bank 9/10/2013 LTL 5,200 5,200 9/30/2020 4,709 217
20. Nordea* 9/27/2013 "LTL - 1,300 1,300  9/30/2020 206 -
21, Nordea* 6/3/2013 LTL 9,000 9,000  6/3/2020 212 20
22, AB SEB Bank 6/3/2013 LTL 2,760 2,760 6/30/2020 1,685 230
23. AB SEB Bank 6/3/2013 LTL 4,240 4,240  6/30/2020 2,197 353
24. Nordea* 9/27/2013 EUR 635 2,261 9/30/2020 2,261 124
25. Nordea* 11/28/2013 LTL 2,000 2,000 11/27/2020 1,261 18
73,829 34,835

* Nordea Bank Finland Plc. Lithuanian branch;
** Danske Bank A/S Lithuania branch;
*** Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Lithuania.

On 24 October 2012 the Group and the Company signed a factoring with recourse agreement with
Swedbank Lizingas, UAR amounted to the limit LTI 8,500 thousand. Factoring advance is 90 percent. The
term of validity of agreement is 31 December 2013, Liability of the factoring with recourse, amounting to
LTL 2,453 thousand as of 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012 — LTL 3,068 thousand) is accounted
within the caption of current borrowings.

The immovable property (Note 4), bank accounts (Note 9) and land lease right of the Group and the
Company were pledged as collateral for the borrowings.

12. Finance lease obligations

The assets leased by the Group and the Company under finance lease contracts mainly consist of vehicles.
The terms of financial lease are 3 years. The finance lease agreement is in EUR.

Future minimal lease payments were:
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Group Company
As of 31 Asof 31 Asof31  Asof3l
December December December December
2013 2012 - 2013 2012
Within one year 116 48 116 48
From one to five years o 125 67 125 67
Total financial lease obligations 241 115 241 115
Interest (8) {6) (3) {(6)
Present value of financial lease obligations 233 109 233 109
Financial lease obligations are accounted for as: - - - -
- current ‘ 110 ‘ 44 110 44
- non-current ‘ ' ‘ 123 65 123 65
13. Grants (deferred income)
Group Company

Asof31 Asof31 As of 31 As of 31
December December December December

2013 2012 2013 2012
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 26,546 22,211 26,546 22,211
Received during the year : 3,777 5,498 3,777 5,498
Amortisation ' ‘ ©(1,336)  (1,163) - (1,336) 1 (1,163)
Balance at the end of the reporting perlod 28,987 26,546 28,987 26,546

On 15 October 2009 the Group and the Company signed the agreement on the financing and administration
of the project “Renovation of Centralised Heat Networks in the Kaunas City by Installing Advanced
Technologies (Reconstruction of Heat Supply Networks at V. Krévés Ave. 82 A, 118 H, Kaunas)”, according
to which the Company will be receiving financing from the European Regional Development Fund in the
amount of LTL 6,000 thousand after terms and conditions of the agreement are fulfilled. The Company
received the financial support in the amount of LTL 5,843 thousand by 31 December 2013. The project is,
completed.

On 15 October 2009 the Group and the Company signed the agreement on the financing and administration
of the project “Modernisation of Kaunas City Integrated Network Centre Main (4T)”, according to which the
Company will be receiving financing from the European Regional Development Fund in the amount of
LTL 5,990 thousand after terms and conditions of the agreement are fulfilled. The Company received the
financial support in the amount of LTL 4,414 thousand by 31 December 2013. The project is completed.

On 15 October 2009 the Group and the Company signed the agreement on the financing and administration
of the project “Kaunas City Main Heat Supply Networks 6T at Kur¥iy St. 49C, Jonavos St. between NA-7
and NA-9 and Networks under the Bridge through the river Neris in the auto-highway Vilnius—Klaipéda near
Kaunas city, Complex Reconstruction for the Increase of Reliability by Installing Advanced Technologies”,
according to which the Company will be receiving financing from the European Regional Development Fund
in the amount of LTL 2,333 thousand after terms and conditions of the agreement are fulfilled. The Company
received the financial support in the amount of LTL 1,725 thousand by 31 December 2013. The project is
completed.

On 21 July 2010 the Group and the Company signed the agreement on the financing and administration of
the project “The development of centralized heat supply by building a new heat supply trace (heat supply
network from A. Juozapavidiaus ave. 23A to A. Juozapavidiaus ave. 90)”, according to which the Company
will be receiving financing from the European Regional Development Fund in the amount of
LTL 1,566 thousand after terms and conditions of the agreement are fulfilled. As of 31 December 2013
financing in amount of LTL 1,426 thousand has been received. The project is completed.

On 21 July 2010 the Group and the Company signed the agreement on the financing and administration of
the project “The modernisation of Zaliakalnis main of Kaunas integrated network (4Z)”, according to which
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the Company will be receiving financing from the European Regional Development Fund in the amount of
LTL 2,788 thousand after terms and conditions of the agreement are fulfilied. As of 31 December 2013
financing in amount of LTL 2,526 thousand has been received. The project is completed.

On 21 July 2011 the Group and the Company signed the agreement on the financing and administration of
the project “The modernisation of Dainava aréa main of Kaunas integrated network (1T)”, according to
which the Company will be receiving financing from the European Regional Development Fund in the
amount of LTL 1,560 thousand after terms and conditions of the agreement are fulfilled As of
31 December 2013 financial support in amount of LTL 1,489 thousand has been received. The project is
completed.

On 21 July 2011 the Group and the Company signed the agreement on the financing and administration of
the project “The modernisation of Aukstieji Sanéiai area main of Kaunas integrated network (22)”, according
to which the Company will be receiving financing from the European Regional Development Fund in the
amount of LTL. 1,618 thousand after terms and conditions of the agreement are fulfilled. As of 31 December
2013 financial support in amount of LTL 1,593 thousand has been received. :

On 21 July 2011 the Group and the Company signed the agreement on the financing and administration of
the project “The modernisation of Vilijampolé area heating network of Kaunas integrated network (9K)”,
according to which the Company will be receiving financing from the European Regional Development Fund
in the amount of LTL 595 thousand after terms and conditions of the agreement are fulfilled. As of
31 December 2013 financial support in amount of LTL 570 thousand has been received.

On 21 July 201! the Group and the Company signed the agreement on the financing and administration of
the project “The modernisation of Pramoné area main of Kaunas integrated network (1Z)”, according to
which the Company will be receiving financing from the European Regional Development Fund in the
amount of LTL 2,000 thousand after terms and conditions of the agreement are fulfilled. As of
31 December 2013 financing in amount of LTL 2,000 thousand has been received. The project is completed.

On 16 January 2013 the Group and the Company signed a financing agreement for the project
“Reconstruction of EZerélis boiler-house equipping it with bio-filel burned 3.5 MW capacity water boiler”,
according to which the financing in amount of LTL 1,791 thousand is provided for the Company from the
funds of LEIF Climate Change Special Program after terms and conditions of the agreement are fulfilled. As
of 31 December 2013 financial support in amount of LTL 537 thousand has been received. L

On 16 January 2013 the Group and the Company signed a financing agreement for the project
“Reconstruction of Noreikifkés boiler-house equipping it with bio-fuel burned 4 MW capacity water boiler”,
according to which the financing in amount of LTL 2,299 thousand is provided for the Company from the
funds of LEIF Climate Change Special Program after terms and conditions of the agreement are fulfilled. As
of 31 December 2013 financial support in amount of LTL 690 thousand has been received.

On 8 July 2013 the Group and the Company signed a financing agreement of the project “Reconstruction of
Pergalé boiler-house equipping it with condensational economizer”, under which financing in amount of
LTL 638 thousand is provided for the Compary from Lithuanian Environmental Investment Fund after the
terms of agreement are fulfilled. As of 31 December 2013 financial support in amount of LTL 383 thousand
has been received.

On 28 November 2013 the Group and the Company signed agreement of financing of the project
“Reconstruction of Silkas boiler-house, changing used fuel to biofuel (stage I1)” under which a financing in
amount of LTL 3,990 thousand is allocated to the Company from Cohesion fund after fulfilling of the terms
of agreement.

On 28 Noveniber 2013 the Group and the Company signed agreement of financing of the project
“Reconstruction of Petrafitinai power plant, changing used fuel fo biofuel (stage I)” under which a financing
in amount of LTL 6,000 thousand is allocated to the Company from Cohesion fund after fulfilling of the
terms of agreement.
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On 28 November 2013 the Group and the Company signed agreement of financing of the project
“Reconstruction of Inkaras boiler-house, changing used fuel to biofuel” under which a financing in amount
of LTL 6,000 thousand is allocated to the Company from Cohesion fund after fulfilling of the terms of
agreement. '

On 31 December 2013 the Group and the Company signed agreement of financing and administration of the
project “Reconstruction of Kaunas main 17 between heat cameras 17-7 and 1Z-8 and between heat cameras
17-10 and 1#-12” under which a financing in amount of LTL 2,000 thousand is allocated to the Company
from European Regional Development Fund after fulﬁlling of the terms of agreement.

On 31 December 2013 the Group and the Company signed agreement of financing and administration of the
project “Modemization of Kaunas integrated network main 677 under which a financing in amount of
LTL 1,033 thousand is allocated to the Company from European Regional Development Fund after fulfilling
of the terms of agreement.

On 31 December 2013 the Group and the Company signed agreement of financing and administration of the
project “Modernization of Kaunas integrated network main ST under which a financing in amount of
LTL 1,706 thousand is allocated to the Company from European Regional Development Fund after fulﬁllmg
of the terms of agreement.

14, Employee benefit liability

Accerding to Litlluam'an legislation and the conditions of the collective employment agreement, each
employee of the Group and the Company is entitled to 1 - 6 months salary payment when leaving the job at
or after the start of the pension period.

The Group’s and the Company’s total employee benefit liability is stated below:

Group Company

: ‘ ] 2013 2012 2013 2012
Employee benefit liability at the beginning of the year 3,297 2,406 2,999 2,406
Paid (775)  (202) (585)  (19%)
Formed 494 1,093 544 791
Employee benefit liability at the end of the year 3,016 3,297 2,958 2,999
Non-current employee benefit liability 2,079 2,173 2,079 1996
Current employee benefit liability : 937 1,124 879 1,003

During the year 2013 total amount of the benefit paid to the employees by the Group amounted to
LTL 775 thousand (in 2012 — LTL 202 thousand), and by the Company — LTL 585 thousand (in 2012 -
LTL 198 thousand) and are included in the caption of salaries and social security expenses in the Group’s
and the Company s statement of comprehensive income.

The principal assumptions used in-determining pension benefit obligation for the Group’s and the
Company’s plan is shown below: _ .
' As of 31 December 2013 As of 31 December 2012

Discount rate 4.0 percent 4.0 percent
Employee turnover rate 18.9 percent - 18.9 percent
Expected average annual salary increases . '_ 3.0 percent 3.0 percent

15. Derivative financial instruments

On 9 April 2009, the Group and the Company concluded an interest rate swap agreement. For the period
from 24 August 2009 to 22 August 2014 the Group and the Company set a fixed interest rate at 4,15 percent
for a floating interest rate at 6-month EUR LIBOR. The nominal amount of the transaction was
EUR 784 thousand (the equivalent of LTL 2,708 thousand) as at 31 December 2013 (EUR 1,508 thousand
(the equivalent of LTL 5,208 thousand) as at 31 December 2012). Market value of swap agreement as of
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31 December 2013 amounted to LTL 51 thousaﬁd (LTL 204 thousands as of 31 December 2012). This
transaction does not have material impact on the future cash flows of the Group and the Company.

16. Sales income

The Group’s and the Company’s activities are heat supplies, maintenance of manifolds, electricity production
and other activities. Starting from the vear 2010 a part of inhabitants chose the Company as the hot water
supplier. Those activities are inter-related, so consequently for management purposes the Group’s and the
Company’s activities are organised as one main segment — heat energy supply. The Group’s and the
Company’s sales income according to the activities are stated below.

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012
Heat supplies 311,576 362,667 311,632 362,728
Hot water supplies - 8,612 4,818 8,612 4,818
Maintenance of manifolds . ) _ 779 775 779 775
Maintenance of heat and hot water systems . 280 721 199 - 399
Electric energy 767 460 767 460
Maintenance of hot water meters 349 282 349 282

322,363 369,723 322,338 369,462

17. Other expenses

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Cash collection expenses ' 1,838 2,217 1,838 2,203
Equipment verification and inspection ‘ 1,657 1,490 . 1,657 . 1,487
Maintenance of manifolds : ’ 1,863 1,883 1,863 . 1,883
Debts collection expenses ' : 198 - 917 198 917
Sponsorship 157 503 157 503
Consulting expenses ' 485 285 485 283
Customer bills issue and delivery expenses 457 455 457 455
Communication expenses 188 193 188 182
Employees related expenses 261 234 261 228
Insurance 261 223 261 213
Long term assets maintenance and related services . - 212 173 212 161
Membership fee ‘ . ' 292 281 ' 292 281
Transport expenses - ' 101 52 100 115
Advertising expenses 170 111 170 109
Audit expenses . . 36 36 36 52
Rent of equipment and machinery 32 32 32 18
Other expenses , 1,448 1,147 1,483 . 1,120
9,656 10,252 9,690 10,210
18. Other activities income and expenses
. Group Company -
: 2013 2012 2013 2012

Income from other operating activities :
Miscellaneous services 3,204 1,575 3,023 1,416
Materials sold 219 260 201 251
Gain from sale of non-current assets 13 92 13 91
Other 125 164 121 150
' 3,51 2,091 3,358 1,908

Expenses from other operating activities :

Cost of miscellaneous services ' (1,689) (1,139 {1,248) (651)
Cost of materials sold - : , ‘ L . 29) (1 7N
Write off of non-current assets : (8) (12) {14y (12)
Loss from sale of non-current assets (32) (5) {32) (3
Other . (23) (8) (23) (8)
‘ (1,753) (1,193) (1,318) (723)
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19. Finance income

Interest from late payment of accounts receivable
Fines

Impairment of non-current financial assets _
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments
Bank interest

Other

20. Finance costs

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts
Impairment of non-current financial assets
Penalties

Shareholder’s contributions in subSIdlary

21. Income tax

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
2,952 1,984 2,952 1,984
7,054 - 7,054 -
- 338 - 338
153 129 153 129
1 11 1 11
- 1 - 1
-10,160 2,463 10,160 2,463
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
{1,418)  (1,496) (1,418) (1,496)
(338) (1,372) (587)

(157) (2143

(157)  (214)
(155)

(1,913) (1,710

(3,102) - (2.297)

The recorded income tax for the year can be reconciled with the theoretical calculated income tax, which is

computed by applying the standard income tax rate to profit before taxes as follows:

Profit before tax

Income tax (expenses) calculated at statutory rate

Permanent differences and impact of valuation
allowance of deferred income tax asset
Income tax (expenses) reported in the statement of
comprehensive income

Effective rate of income tax ( percent)

Components of the income tax expense

Current income tax for the reporting year

Deferred income tax (expenses)

Income tax (expenses) recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
3,249 . 2,535 2,064 2,195
(487) (380) ~(310) (329)
257 (959) 104 (1,029)

(230)  (1,339)

(206)  (1,358)

7.08 52.80
Group
2013 2012

9.98 61.87
Company
2013 2012

(2303 (1,3393

(2063 (1,3583

(230)  (1,339)

(206) (1,358)

As of 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 deferred income tax asset and liability were accounted for
by applying 15 percent rate. All changes m deferred tax are reported in the statement of comprehensive

income.

As 0f 31 December deferred income tax consists of:

Net deferred income tax asset

Tax loss carried forward
Accruals

The change in value of financial assets
Deferred income tax asset
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Deferred income tax liability

Differences of depreciation (15,114) (12,435) (15,114)  (12,455)
Investment relief : (162) (203) (162) (203)
Revaluation of the assets transferred to subsidiary - - {664) {669)
Deferred income tax liabilities (15,276) (12,658) {15,940y  (13,327)
Deferred income tax, net ' (8,340) (8,110) (9,004) (8,798)

Deferred income tax assets on tax losses carried forward have been recognised in full amount as the Group’s
and the Company’s management believes it will be realised in the foreseeable future, based on taxable profit

forecasts.

At 31 December unrecognizéd deferred tax assets of the Gfoup and the Company consisted of:

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Allowance for trade receivables 8,228 7,161 8,254 7,179
Property, plant and equipment depreciation 98 90 98 90
Allowance for other accounts receivable 4 82 50 111
Impairment for the investment into sub51d1ary - - 420 264
Unrecogmzed deferred tax asset net ' ' 8,330 7333 8,522 7,644
22. Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share -
Calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share of the Group are presented below:
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Net profit ‘ © 3,019 1,196 1,858 837
Number of shares (thousand) opening balance = T42,732 42,732 42,732 42,732
Number of shares (thousand), closing balance 42,732 42,732 42,732 42,732
Average number of shares (thousand) 42,732 42,732 42,732 42732
Basic and diluted earnings per share (LTL) 0.07 0.03 0.04 0.02

23. Financial assets and liabilities and risk management

Credit risk
The Group and the Company do not have any credit concentration risk because they work with a large
number of customers. ‘ :
Number of customers Group Company
As of 31  Asof3l Asof 31 . As of 31
December 2013  December 2012 December 2013  December 2012
Individuals 114,240 114,711 114,240 114,499
Other legal entities 2,098 2,110 2,082 2,055
Legal entities financed -
from municipalities” and 345 365 336 333
state budget o : . .
116,683 117,186 116,658 116,387

Trade receivables of the Group and the Company by the customer groups:
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Group Company
As of 31 As of 31 As of 31 As of 31
December 2013 December 2012 December 2013 December 2012
Individuals 39,320 57,211 39,319 57,208
Other legal entities - 8,645 10,387 : 8,638 10,330
Legal ecutities financed from 9,05 14488 9,052 14,443
municipalities’ and state budget - ‘ <
57,021 82,086 57,009 - 81,981

Considering trade and other accounts receivables, the terms of which is still not expired and their impairment
as of date of financial statements is not determined, according to Management opinion there is no indications
that debtors will not fulfil their payment liabilities, because a balance of receivables are controlled
constantly. The Group and the Company considers that maximum risk is equal to the sum of receivables
from buyers and other receivables, less recognized impairment losses as of the date of balance sheet (note 8).

Cash and cash equivaients in banks, which were evaluated in accordance with iong—tenn borrowing ratings®:

Group : Company
~Asof3l As of 31 As of 31 Asof 31

December 2013 December 2012  December 2013 December 2012

A - 322 407 302 383
A+ 674 674 674 674
AA- 138 29 138 29
Bank with no rating atiributed 26 31 26 31
1,160 1,141 © 1,140 | 1,117

*. external credit ratings set by Fitch Ratings agency.
The Group and the Company do not guarantee obligations of the other parties in 2013 and in 2012.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group and the Company, which
comprise cash and cash equivélents and available-for-sale financial investments, the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, w1th a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amount of these.instruments.

Interest rate risk '

All of the borrowings of the Group and the Company, except those loans s1gncd with Ministry of Finance of
the Republic of Lithuania, are at variable interest rates, therefore the Group and the Company faces an
interest rate risk. In 2013 and 2012 to manage variable rate risk the Company has entered into interest rate
swap agreements, in which the Company agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between
fixed and variable rate interest amounts as descrlbed in Note 15, calculated by the reference to an agreed
upon notional principal amount.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (increase
and decrease in basis points was determinéd based on Lithuanian economic environment and the Group’s
and the Company’s historical experience), with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s and the
Company’s profit before tax (estimating debts with floating interest rate). There is no impact on the Group’s
and the Company’s equity, other than current year. profit impact.

Increase/decrease in basis points Effect on income tax
2013
LTL ' 200 . (111)
LTL . ‘ (200) 111 .
EUR ‘ o 50 (13
EUR (50) 15
2012
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LTL . . 200 . _ . (81)
LTL - , ' ' (200) : 81
EUR 50 21
EUR : (50) 21

Liguidity risk : ‘

The Group’s and the Company’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents or have available
funding through an adequate amount of overdrafts and committed credit facilities to meet its commitments at
a given date in accordance with its strategic plans. The Group’s liquidity (total current assets / total current
liabilities) and quick ((total current assets — inventories) / tofal current liabilities} ratios as of 31 December
2013 were 0.70 and 0.66, respectively (0.85 and 0.81 as of 31 December 2012). The Company’s liquidity and
quick ratics as of 31 December 2013 were 0.70 and 0.66, respectively (0.85 and 0.82 as of
31 December 2012).

To solve all liquidity issues the Group and the Company implement the following action plan:
s Considering the current situation the Group and the Company started to reduce its expenses;
« The Company increases heat production in its own effective production sources;

» The new measures of reducing losses in production and supply are being implemented;

e The Company seeks to shorten money cycle. increasing turnover of purchaser’s debts and reducing
turnover of debts to suppliers. ' '
L J

Unsecured bank overdraft and bank loan facilities:

Group ‘ Company
As of 31 ~Asof31 ' As of 31 As of 31
December 2013 December 2012 December 2013 December 2012
Amount used 14,544 24,563 14,544 24,563
Amount unused 10456 . 437 10,456 437
25,000 25,000 ' 25,000 25,000

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as of 31 December 2013
and as of 31 December 2012 based on contractual undiscounted payments (scheduled payments including
interest). ‘

Less than  From 4 to 2to 5 More than

3 months 12 months years S years Total
Interest bearing loans and . 5,180 31,174 27,610 18,408 82,372
borrowings :
Trade payables 61,210 111 14 - 61,335
Balance as of 31 December 2013 66,390 31,285 27,624 18,408 143,707
Less than = From 4 to 2teS More than Total
3 months 12 months years 5 years
;ntere’“. bearing loans and 2422 31,900 24,038 16,061 74,421
orrowings
Trade payables : 72,592 273 23 ‘ - 72,888
Balance as of 31 December 2012 75,014 32,173 24,061 16,061 147,309

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liébilities, as of

31 December 2013 and as of 31 December 2012 based on contractual undiscounted payments (scheduled
payments including interest).
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Less than  From 4 to 2to 5 More than

" 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
Interest bearing loans and 5,180 31,174 27,610 18,408 82,372

borrowings ‘ , ‘ . :
Trade payables 61,194 111 14 - .. 61,319
Balance as of 31 December 2013 66,374 31,285 27.624 18,408 143,691

Less than From 4 to 2t05 More than Total

3 months 12 months years 5 years
Interest bearing loans and 2422 31000 24038 16061 74421
borrowings ,
Trade payables 72,624 273 23 - 72,920
Balance as of 31 December 2812 75,046 32,173 . 24,061 16,061 147,341
Trade payables .
Trade payables of the Group and the Company by supplier groups:
Group Company
As of 31 As of 31 As of 31 As of 31

December 2013 December 2012 December 2013 December 2012
For heat purchased ' 35,826 55,308 ‘ 35,826 55,308
Contractors : 14,904 - 9,689 14,904 9,689
Other suppliers 10,605 7,891 10,589 © 7,923
61,335 72,888 61,319 72,920

30 day settlement period is set with KTE for purchased heat energy, 90—180 day settlement period — with
contractors, 5-30 day settlement period — with other suppliers,

As of 31 December 2013 the Group had an LTL 2,667 thousand (31 December 2012 — LTL 9,828 thousand)
of overdue trade creditors, and the Company - LTL 2,667 thousand (31 December 2012 -
LTL 9,817 thousand). : :

Foreign currency risk

All sales and purchases transactions as well as the financial debt portfolio of the Group and the Comparny are
denominated in LTL and EUR. As litas is pegged to euro, therefore, material foreign currency risk is not
incurred.

Fair value of financial instruments :

The Group and the Company’s principal financial instruments accounted for at amortised cost are trade and
other current and non-current receivables, trade and other payables, long-term and short-term borrowings.
The net book value of these amounts is similar to their fair value

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than in forced or liquidation sale. Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and option pricing models as appropriate.

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments: ‘

e The carrying amount of current trade accounts receivable, current trade accounts payable, other
receivables and other payables and current borrowings approximate their fair value. '
e  The fair value of trade and other payables, long-term and short-term borrowings is based on the quoted
market price for the same or similar issues or on the current rates available for borrowings with the same
maturity profile. The fair value of non-current borrowings with variable and fixed interest rates approximates
their carrying amounts.
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The Group and the Company’s categories of financial instruments:

Group Company
Asof 31 Asof31 Asof 31 Asof31  Asof31 Asof3l
Financial assets: _ December December December December December December
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Cash and bank balances 2,135 5,332 5,936 2,135 5,308 5,899
Loans and receivables 66,489 88,225 64,639 66,473 88,120 64,690
Financial assets _ 95 - 433 95 95 . 433 95
68,739 93,990 70,670 - 68,703 93,361 70,684
. Group ‘ Company
Asof31  Asof31  Asof3l Asof31 Asof31  Asof3l
Financial liabilities: December December December December December December
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Carried at fair value through :
profit or loss (level 2 in the 51 . 204 333 51 204 1333
fair value hierarchy) , ‘ ‘ . _ ‘
Carried at amortised cost 123,522 142,842 106,203 123,506 142,874 106,266
123,573 143,046 106,536 123,557 143,078 106,599

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial Habilities approximate their fair values.

Capital management
The primary objectives of the Group’s and the Company’s capital management are to ensure that the Group

and the Company comply with externally imposed capital requirements and that the Group and the Company
maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group and the Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group and the Company may issue new shares, reconsider the dividend payment to
shareholders, and return capital to shareholders. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes of capital managerment as of 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012. '

The Group and the Company is obliged to upkeep its equity of not less than 50 percent of its share capital, as
imposed by the Law on Companies ¢f Republic of Lithuania. The Group and the Company complies with
equity requirements imposed by the Law on Companies of Republic of Lithuania. There were no other
externally imposed capital requirements on the Group and the Company.

The Group and the Company monitor capital using debt to equity ratio. Capital includes ordinary shares,
reserves, earnings retained attributable to the equity holders of the parent. There is no specific debt to equity
ratio target set out by the Group’s and the Company’s management, however current ratios presented below
are treated as sustainable performance indicators: as satisfactory performance indicators and as creditable
performance indicators: ‘
: Group Company
As of 31 As of 31 As 0f 31 As of 31
December 2013 December 2012 December 2013 December 2012

Non-current liabilities (including

deferred tax and grants (deferred 78,539 70,665 79,203 71,176
income)) :

Current liabilities . 105,034 115,361 104,933 115,050
Liabilities 183,573 186,026 184,136 186,226
Equity 264,214 261,195 266,039 264,181
Debt* to equity ratio ( percent) - - 69.48 L7122 69.21 . 70.49
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*  Debt contains all non-current (including deferred income tax liability and grants (deferred revenues))
and current liabilities,

Market risk
External risk factors that make 1nﬂuence to the Group’s and the Company’s main actmty increase in fuel
prices, unfavourable law and legal acts of Government and other institutions, decisions of local municipality,
decrease of number of consumers, the cycle of activity, environmental requirements.

24. Commitments and contingencies

Litigations
On 3 of November, 2010 the Company placed claim to Vilnius Commercial Arbitration Court (hereafter —

VCAQ) regarding additional forfeit in amount LTL 12,352 thousand from defendant KTE due to the
improper fulfilment of the Investments agreement. VCAC satisfied Company’s claim partly by its decision
of 19 of December, 2011: a fine in amount of LTL 7,054 thousand, 6 percent annual interest for the period
from 4 of November, 2010 until the day of fulfilment of this decision from the sum awarded,
LTL 37 thousand and LTL 42 thousand of compensation expenses were awarded from the defendant KTE in
favour of the Company. On 23 December, 2011 KTE placed a claim to Lithuanian Court of Appeal in order
to discharge a decision of VCAC, also an application to stop prosecution of this decision until the case will
be investigated. KTE agreed to refuse the appeal in Vilnius Commercial Arbitration Court case No 203, and
with no further litigation to pay to Company a fine in amount of a little bit more than LTL 7 million,
adjudged from KTE in.this case. On 11 April,. 2013 the Company and KTE signed the internecine
indebtedness harmonization act regarding inclusion of sums adjudged (LTL 8,164 thousand).

As of 31 December, 2012 the accrual for the sum of claims was not made in financial statements of the
Group and the Company, because the income from fines and penalties is shown in those statements only
when it is paid-in.

On 15 April, 2013 the Company applied to Vilnius Regional Court with the claim “Due to the defendant’s
UAB GECO Kaunas claim to recalculate AB Kauno Energija heat purchase prices of November and
December 2012 according to comparative expenditures of heat production”. Company’s claim was rejected.
Decision was not appealed in appellation order: The parties signed a peace agreement. -

On 17 April, 2013 the Company got a message from Vilnius Court of Commercial Arbitration (hereinafter —

Arbitration) saying that KTE claim to the Company regarding LTL 1,340 thousand has been received in
Arbitration on 12 April, 2013. According to KTE allegation, the debt formed due to the Company’s lower
reither it was determined by KTE payment for heat amount in December 2012 and January 2013.
Considering Company’s comparative expenditures of heat production and following provision of chapter 10
of the Law on Heat Sector of the Republic of Lithuania, that in all occasions the heat, purchased from
independent heat producers cannot be more expensive than heat supplier’s comparative expenditures of heat
production, the Company purchased heat from KTE following provision of the law. On 17 May, 2013 the
Company placed an objection to the Court regarding the claim. Arbitration rejected a claim of KTE by the
decision of 27 January, 2014. KTE did not complain this decision, the case is closed.

On September 2013 the Company has been incorporated as a third party in the civil case under claimant’s
UAB KTE claim to defendant BAB Ukio Bankas regarding the termination of factoring contract ant
regarding the recognizing as a property of UAB KTE a sum of LTL 3,063 thousand, which were transferred
by the Company when implementing its liability and which are now on hand of notary deposit account. A
session in this case is still not appointed. On September 2013 a preliminary court decision under the
specified claim of claimant BAB Ukio Bankas to the Company regarding adjudgement of debt in amount of
LTL 3,063 thousand, penalty, process interest and litigation expenses was delivered to the Company. The
Company placed an objection to the Court regarding this preliminary decision and regarding rejection of
specified claim of claimant BAB Ukio Bankas Both cases were integrated by the decision of Kaunas
Regional court of 2 December 2013.
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The National Control Commission for Prices and Energy (NCC) brought a decision on 18 July 2013 by
which satisfied application of KTE to acknowledge that the Company infringed legal acts regarding heat
purchasing from THP by refusing to purchase a part, i. ¢. 11,181.5 MWh of heat energy purchased from KTE
in July 2013. If this decision of NCC would come into force KTE would gain a right to ask to make amends
(loss of income) for not purchased heat amount. The Company placed a claim to Vilnius Regional court
objecting this decision of NCC. The Court rejected a claim of KE by the decision of 20 February, 2014, the
30 days term for appeal is valid.

Leasing and construction wom’c purchase arrangements
On 18 March, 2010 The Company entered into the lease arrangements with KTE for the real estate. Under

this lease arrangement the Company leases to KTE the boiler with technological pipelines for heat
production, located in Petra§itinal power plant territory. The term of lease is 5 years. -

On 20 December, 2010 the Company entered into the lease arrangements with UAB ENG for the real estate.
Under this lease arrangement the Company leases to UAB ENG Garliava boiler-house for building of heat
production equipment. The Company undertakes obligations to procure heat produced in this equipment. The
term of lease is 20 years. :

Future liabilities of Group and the Company under valid pufchase arrangements as of 31 December 2013
amounted to LTL 88,013 thousand.

25, Related parties transactions

The parties are considered related when one party has the possibility to control the other or have significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operatmg decisions.

In 2013 and 2012 the Group and.the Company d.ld not have any.significant transactions with the other
companies controlled by Kaunas city municipality except for the purchases or sales of the utility services.
The services provided to the Kaunas city municipality and the entities controlled by the Kaunas city
municipality were executed at market prices.

In 2013 and 2012 the Group’s and the Company’s transactions with Jurbarkas city municipality, Kaunas city
municipality and the entities, financed and controlled by Kaunas city munmicipality and amounts of
receivables from and liabilities to them at the end of the year were as follows:

2013 : R Purchases Sales Receivables Payables
Kaunas city municipality and entities financed and

controlled by Kaunas city municipality 2,687 37,791 20,705 524
Turbarkas city municipality o 4 2,535 237 2
2012 ‘ Purchases Sales Receivables Pavables
Kaunas city municipality and entities financed and

controlled by Kaunas city municipality 1,351 41,896 20,312 _ 440
Jurbarkas city municipality : ' 4 2947 427 1

The Group’s and the Company’s as of 31 December 2013 allowance for overdue receivables from entities
financed and controlled by municipalities amounted to LTL 10,362 thousand (as of 31 December 2012 —
LTL 10,905 thousand). The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees on
receivables have been received.

In 2013 and 2012 the Company’s transactions with the subsidiaries and the balances at the end of the year
were as follows:

Pastaty PrieZifiros Paslaugos UAB ‘ Purchases Sales Receivables Payables
2013 ‘ : 544 69 o 7
2012 1,204 87 - 143
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Kauno Energija NT UAB Purchases Sales Receivables  Payables

2013 : 1 4 -

As of 31 December, 2013 the Company has formed an LTL 483 thousand (as of 31 December 2012 —
LTL 314 thousand) of common postponements for the receivables from subsidiaries.

Remuneration of the management and other payments
As at 31 December 2013 the Group’s and the Company’s mzmagement team comprised 7 and 4 persons
respectively (as at 31 December 2012 — 6 and 4).

Group - Company

2013 2012 2013 - 2012
Key management remuneration 455 528 400 417
Calculated post-employment benefits : 104 97 104 90

In the year 2013 and 2012 the management of the Group and the Company did not receive amy loans or
guarantees; no other payments or property transfers were made or accrued.

26. Pcst balance sheet events

It is decided in Company’s Extraordinary meetlng of shareholders held on 6 Janmary 2014:

e 1o increase Company’s authorised capital by LTL 420,996 from LTL 256,391,826 to LTL 256,812,858
by issuing 70,166 ordinary shares at a nominal value of LTL 6, whose emission price is equal to nominal
value of the share and to withdraw a priority right of all shareholders to buy a newly issued
70,166 Company’s shares, giving the right to buy those shares to Kaunas city municipality, seeking that
Kaunas city municipality would dispose its own heat supply pipeline — heat network, situated in
Karaliaus Mindaugo av. 50, Kaunas;

+ to allocate support for public institition “Zalgmo kJ-epsmm centras” in amount of LTL up to
1,000 thousand, including this support in Company’s audited activity profit (loss) appropriation project of
the year 2013.

Articles of Association with increased- Authorised Capital of Company were registered on 20 March, 2014 at
the Register of Legal entities.

On 15 January 2014 the Group and the Company signed a credit agreement with Ministry of Finances of the
Republic of Lithuania in amount of EUR 793 thousand (equivalent LTL- 2,739 thousand). The term of
repayment of last portion of the loan is 1 December 2034

On 21 January 2014 the Prime Minister of the Republic of Lithuania Algirdas Butkevitius visited
Company’s Petra§ifinai power plant. Prime Minister was interested in possibilities of modernization of power
plant and also in perspectives of development of heat sector of Kaunas city. Current situation of the sector,
already implemented projects of modemization of Company’s production sources and networks was
presented to Prime Minister during the visit. Projects of modernization of Company’s production sources that
are planned to implement in 2014 were also presented. Prime Minister was also interested in possibilities of
modemnization of power plant together with AB Lietuvos Energija. It was presented to Prime Minister that it
is planned to build 2 biofuel burned water heating boilers 12 MW capacity each and 6 MW capacity
condensational economizer for these boilers in power plant territory until the year 2015 as well as 10 MW
capacity biofuel burned water heating boiler with 3 MW capacity condensational economizer. Project of
equipment of 10 MW capacity condensational economizer, currently implemented in power plant was also
presented to the Prime Minister. After equipment of these boilers heat production price in this object will be
approximately 12 — 13 ct/lkWh excluding VAT.

On 22 January 2014 Company’s Board considering propositions of UAB Fortum Heat Lietuva regarding
strategic cooperation, decided to start consultations with UAB Fortum heat Lietuva regarding proposed
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strategic investment of UAB Fortum Heat Lietuva in Company. Report on results of consultations will be
presented to Company’s Board for consideration and decision making regarding further pursuance and
harmonization of conditions of preliminary agreements with shareholders of Company.

On 27 February 2014 the Group and the Company signed a credit agreement with AB DNB bank for partial
refunding in amount of LTL 5.227 thousand of 23 May 2013 agreement signed with AB SEB bank,
reclassifying this sum into financial borrowmgs payable after year The matunty date of the last poition of
the loan is 30 May 2015. ‘
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